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Financial Highlights

. =7
B 154 2
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
—F-1f —T-mEF
FTET FHET
OPERATING RESULTS B& %45
For the year ended 31 March #E=F=+—H It FE
Revenue W z5 1,341,924 1,244,828
Gross profit £ 180,065 174,668
Operating profit 48 & ¥ 7 178,144 90,661
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 78 A Al ¥ A A JE 14 3% 7 170,406 81,487
Earnings per share — Basic (HK cents) 8% & | — & A& (B1l) 62.55 29.93
Interim dividend, paid, per ordinary share (HK cents) &% & @R 2 4 #p #8AL B (B4L) 7.0 6.0
Special dividend, paid, per ordinary share (HK Cents) &A% & @ A% 45 BI A% 8 (B1l) 5.0 -
Final dividend, proposed, per ordinary share (HK cents) & % & i@ % %tk R 1A% 2 (81L) 8.0 8.0
FINANCIAL POSITION Bf # kiR
Asat31 March R=A=+—H
Total equity #2458 645,216 518,529
Net current assets 7 &) & & F & 296,971 270,262
Net cash 3 & %% 76,201 83,875
Capital expenditure & 7852 111,481 98,543
Net assets value per share (HK cents) &% & & FE (A1) 235.7 190.4
FINANCIAL RATIOS BA 7%tk %
Current ratio R )Lt & 2.03 2.00
Debt to equity ratio & (&%t & 15.6% 16.5%
Inventory turnover days 77 & % H £ 53 48
Debtors turnover days FEURBR 71 B 8 H #1 50 44
Return on average equity “F £ i& X [2] & & 29.3% 16.4%
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Financial Highlights

g E
REVENUE BY PRODUCT TYPE W =R EmE R 41
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE
2015 2014 % Change
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-If —ET-UF gHBEHL
F#T T
Electronic products & F = fa 1,317,435 1,216,396 8.3%
Moulds and plastic products 18 & K& B B &= & 24,489 28,432 -13.9%
Total 425t 1,341,924 1,244 828 7.8%
REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT Ui Z iz i [E 5 #hr
For the year ended 31 March
BEZE=H=+—HLEE
2015 2014 % Change
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—IF —ET-HF EHBEOL
FHET FHET
The United States of America £ 560,669 523,527 7.1%
Japan A7 311,398 276,167 12.8%
United Kingdom %[ 180,847 177,372 2.0%
PRC (including Hong Kong) B ( B35 &) 164,547 126,135 30.5%
Australia 38N 53,718 61,140 -12.1%
Others E 70,745 80,487 -12.1%
Total 85t 1,341,924 1,244,828 7.8%
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W a8 2 em KRB 20 AT
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Production Facility
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present
the annual results of Suga International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (“SUGA” or the “Group”) for
the financial year ended 31 March 2015 (“FY2014/15").

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year under review, the global economy has
gradually recovered and the overall atmosphere of the market
has improved in comparison to the last few years, although
uncertainties still linger. In this financial year, the Group
recorded a revenue of HK$1,341.9 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 7.8% (FY 2013/14: HK$1,244.8
million). Gross profit rose 3.1% from HK$174.7 million to
HK$180.1 million, with gross profit margin of 13.4% (FY
2013/14: 14.0%). The decrease of the gross profit margin
was a result of the relocation of the factory during the
year, which affected production, but the new factory has
commenced full operation in October 2014.

In this financial year, the Group completed the disposal of
an industrial land parcel in Buji, Shenzhen, the PRC. After
deducting the relocation expenses of HK$32.4 million,
which mainly consisted of severance payments to employees
at its Shenzhen production facilities, the Group recorded
a one-off net gain of approximately HK$117.0 million.
Profit attributable to shareholders increased by 109.1%
to HK$170.4 million (FY2013/14: HK$81.5 million). Net
profit margin reached 12.7% (FY2013/14: 6.5%) and
basic earnings per share were HK62.55 cents (FY2013/14:
HK29.93 cents).

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have proposed the payment of a final
dividend of HK8.0 cents per ordinary share for the financial
year ended 31 March 2015 (FY2013/14: HK8.0 cents)
to shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Shareholders of the Company as at 13 August 2015.
Together with an interim dividend of HK7.0 cents per share
and a special dividend of HK5.0 cents per share already paid,
total dividend for the year would amount to HK20.0 cents
per share (FY2013/14: HK14.0 cents per share). Subject
to approval by shareholders at the 2015 Annual General
Meeting, the proposed final dividend is to be paid on or
before 20 August 2015.

Chairman’s Staterinent
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Electronic products represent the Group’s core business
segment, generating HK$1,317.4 million in revenue
(FY2013/14: HK$1,216.4 million) and accounting for
98.2% of SUGA’s total sales in the latest financial year.
The electronic products segment consists of specialized
electronic products such as interactive educational products,
pet training devices, professional audio equipment, general
consumer electronic products, auto-fare collection systems
and other electronic products and solutions.

The Group has established a diverse clientele comprising
major players from different industries purchasing a range of
products, which can mitigate our reliance on any particular
industry. This effective strategy has generated stable
revenue for the Group in the past financial years. Interactive
education products are a contributor to our revenue. The
overall performance of these products was better than in the
previous financial year, though it had been slowed down in
the second half of the financial year under review. A new
product, which has been developed during the year, will be
ready for our business partner to review in this July, and is
expected to generate contributions to the Group in the next
financial year.

As for pet training devices, our business partner elected
to shift its orders to the second half of the financial year
owing to the relocation of our factory in the first half. As the
new factory has started full operation, related orders have
resumed to normal levels, generating similar sales as the
previous year in FY2014/15. The Group is actively enhancing
the cooperation with our business partner in order to grow
together with them.

B OE

EFEMARNEENZLEBRS IS HERHE
1,317,400,0008 7T (—E—=/— S W4
£ :1,216,400,00087C) " (hAEE -Z—p
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FEAN T FFRE BERRIDREFER -
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BINREEBEEHENEE PBEEERRKE -
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Other electronic products have also generated stable revenue
for the Group, helped to consolidate our foundation and
created larger room for the management to develop other
areas. During the year under review, the Group has strived
to achieve more comprehensive development, particularly
looking for opportunities in the smartphone-related business.
In late 2014, the Group launched an app “PetNfans” and
has recruited more than 8,000 local pet lovers as members.
“PetNfans” is a social media platform dedicated to pet
lovers. SUGA has enriched the content, enabling members
to interact with each other and offering access to useful
information such as the information of different service
providers and rating from other members. The Group is going
to optimize the functions of the app with the aim to create
online and offline business opportunities.

AWARDS

In FY2014/15, the Group was once again recognized for its
commitment to excellence, in terms of management and
products. In respect of the former, its subsidiary SGI Venture
Limited (“SGI”) was honored with “Management Excellence
Award 2014” from The International Institute of Management
(“IIM”) and also won two awards at Asia Smartphone Apps
Contest 2015. Another subsidiary of the Group, Suga Macao
Commercial Offshore Limited, received the “Best Supplier
Award” from a key customer and long-standing business
partner, Radio Systems Corporation. The award was in
recognition of its superior products and services, as well as
exceptional support.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

At SUGA, we consider corporate citizenship as an integral
part of our corporate culture. Thus, we have championed
a number of worthy causes, including environmental
protection. Also, to increase our involvement in the
community, we have participated in a variety of activities,
including the Green Council’s Hong Kong Green Day,
International Coastal Cleanup 2014 Hong Kong and Green
Power's 22nd Green Power Hike. While the money raised
from such activities supports a number of worthwhile causes,
just as importantly, the events attract staff participation,
resulting in greater camaraderie as well as boosting employee
morale.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWE

PROSPECTS

The market generally expects to see moderate growth in
the global economy during the second half of 2015. Among
developed economies, the US should be able to maintain
greater growth momentum, while other regions may have to
overcome various challenges before they can regain growth
driver. Despite the uncertainties in the global economy, the
management continues to identify opportunities that can
inject new vigour into the Group’s business.

The electronic products business has continued to bring
satisfactory returns to the Group, and we have been
evaluating solutions on enhancing the competitiveness of
the Group's products with business partners. Looking ahead,
we will act as the technology solution provider to business
partners to upgrade their products to models which more
closely relate to the living habits of modern lifestyle. One
such strategy for example, is integrating the application of
smartphone or WiFi technology into the Group’s products.

Apart from optimizing our products, the Group will also invest
resources in strengthening its R&D. The WiFi division formed
a few years ago has already generated revenue for the Group,
and the WiFi modules as basic requirement for Internet of
Things (loT) applications, can be applied in increasingly
more areas in the future, enabling the Group to capture more
opportunities. Besides, the Group's smartphone application
team has developed the “PetNfans” app, and the Group also
plans to launch an online pet product shop in Hong Kong in
the fourth quarter this year, hoping to reap synergies from
the above two new operations. The successful development
of the “PetNfans” app has demonstrated the capability of
Group’s R&D team. Other customers may also add related
functions to their products based on their needs.

The Group has been observing and analyzing the pet market
in China in recent years and has set up physical stores
and online retail platform to test the response of domestic
consumers. To actively pursue in this potential market, we
will develop an online pet lover community in China and also
set up two companies within the free trade zones in Tianjin
and Nansha to handle the offline business for Northern and
Southern China markets respectively. We believe that this
strategic move of setting up an 020 platform will present
enormous opportunities for the Group in exploring China’s pet
product market.
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The Group’s high-tech industrial park in Dongguan has
started full operation. The overall capacity of this new factory
has been boosted by around 30% with the installation of
more automated equipment. The Group held an opening
ceremony for the new factory in October 2014. Many guests
including some of our business partners congratulated the
Group at the ceremony and expressed satisfaction with the
new factory. We hope to build a solid relationship with all
business partners and seize more opportunities.

Phase Il of the high-tech industrial park in Dongguan has
begun construction and the third production building will be
completed in early 2016. At that time, the move from the
Huizhou factory to the Park in Dongguan will be completed,
which will further improve our production efficiency. Besides,
the Group will carefully evaluate the redevelopment of the
land parcel at the Huizhou factory. The management has the
utmost confidence in SUGA’s long term development and will
continue seeking to create long-term value for shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to extend our
appreciation to the entire management team for their
dedication and contributions, as well as to every member of
SUGA's staff for their commitment and hard work. | wish to
also express my gratitude to our many business partners,
customers and stakeholders for their trust and support.

Ng Chi Ho
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 June 2015
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Management Discussion and Anal SIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

During the year, the Group recorded revenue of HK$1,341.9
million, representing an increase of 7.8% as compared with
HK$1,244.8 million in last year. The increase was mainly due
to the continued improvement of the consumption needs of
the markets that the Group operated during the year.

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports that are used to make strategic decisions by the
Group senior management. The Group senior management
considers the Group business mainly from product
perspective, and the products of the Group are mainly
divided into electronic products and moulds and plastic
products.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, sales of electronic
products increased by 8.3% to HK$1,317.4 million (2014:
HK$1,216.4 million). The electronic products segment covers
specialized electronic products, general consumer electronic
products and other electronic products.

As for moulds and plastic products, revenue decreased
by 13.9% to HK$24.5 million (2014: HK$28.4 million)
and accounted for 1.8% of the Group’s total revenue. This
segment continues to represent an important component
of our vertically integrated production line, as many of the
products produced are directly used by the Group.

Geographically, for the year ended 31 March 2015, revenue
generated from the top 3 countries, the United States of
America, United Kingdom and Japan accounted for 78.5% of
the Group’s total sales (2014: 78.5%).

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

Gross profit margin was decreased to 13.4% from 14.0%
in last fiscal year mainly due to the relocation of the factory
during the year, which affected the production. Gross profit
for the year increased 3.1% to HK$180.1 million (2014:
HK$174.7 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB RO

Operating profit was HK$178.1 million, compared with
HK$90.7 million last year, an increase of 96.5%. The
increase included a one-off gain on disposal of subsidiaries
which held an industrial land parcel in Buji, Shenzhen, the
PRC. After deducting the relocation expenses of HK$32.4
million, which mainly consisted of severance payments to
employees at its Shenzhen production facilities, the Group
recorded a net gain of approximately HK$117.0 million.
Distribution and selling expenses increased HK$8.6 million
primarily due to increase in staff costs, consultancy fee and
commission paid. General and administration expenses
increased HK$29.0 million mainly attributable to the increase
in depreciation expenses of the new factory, professional fees,
staff costs and bonus payment to senior management.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has
achieved a net finance costs of HK$1.8 million (2014: net
gain of HK$1.7 million). It was resulted from increase in
bank borrowings for the construction of the new factory in
Dongguan.

As a result of the aforementioned factors, profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company increased to HK$170.4 million
from HK$81.5 million last year, representing an increase of
109.1%.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has current assets of
HK$586.7 million and current liabilities of HK$289.7 million.
The current ratio was 2.03 (31 March 2014: 2.00).

Bank borrowings were HK$100.8 million as at 31 March
2015 (31 March 2014: HK$85.5 million). The increase in
total bank borrowings was mainly due to the drawdown of a
new bank loan during the year. Gearing ratio (calculated by
dividing total bank borrowings by total equity) was 15.6%
(31 March 2014: 16.5%) The Group maintained a net cash
balance of HK$76.2 million as at the balance sheet date (31
March 2014: HK$83.9 million).

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities of approximately HK$610.2 million (31 March 2014:
HK$587.5 million) from its principal bankers for overdrafts,
loans and trade financing, with unused facilities of HK$509.4
million (31 March 2014: HK$502.0 million).
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The Group generally finances its operations by internally
generated resources and banking facilities provided by its
principal bankers in Hong Kong. Banking facilities used
by the Group include revolving loans, trust receipt loans,
overdrafts, leasing and term loans, which are primarily on
floating interest rates basis.

DISPOSAL OF UNIVERSAL GAIN

On 19 December 2012, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the purchaser
conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Group conditionally
agreed to sell, 100% equity interests in Universal Gain Assets
Limited (“UGL") at cash consideration of RMB138,000,000
(approximately HK$174,050,000). UGL is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group which has interests in a piece of
land in the PRC. In addition, the purchaser conditionally
agreed to grant the Group the right to repurchase certain of
the re-developed properties in future upon the completion
of the re-development. The Group received a deposit
of HK$17,595,000 in prior year, which was included in
trade and other payables as at 31 March 2014. On 23
September 2014, the Group completed the disposal of
UGL and recognised a disposal gain of approximately
HK$149,427,000.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group's total capital expenditures for the year under
review were HK$111.5 million. The capital expenditures
were mainly for the construction of new factory buildings
amounted to HK$79.9 million. The remaining balance of
the capital expenditures was mainly for the additions of
machineries and equipment for PRC production plants.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s transaction and monetary assets are principally
dominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong dollars and United
States dollars. The Group has not experienced any difficulties
or effects on its operations or liquidity as a result of the
fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year
ended 31 March 2015.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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During the year, the Group had entered into several foreign
exchange contracts to manage the currency translation risk
of Renminbi against United States dollars. All these foreign
exchange contracts were for managing purpose and it is the
policy of the Group not to enter into any derivative contracts
purely for speculative activities. The net realized and
unrealized loss related to these derivative instruments as of
the balance sheet date was HK$0.9 million.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group pledged its office premise
located at 22nd floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, Kowloon
Bay together with 4 car parking spaces to secure a bank
mortgage loan of HK$15.2 million (31 March 2014: HK$18.0
million) for financing the acquisition of the office premise and
car parking spaces. Other than the said mortgage loan, the
Group did not pledge any of its assets as securities for the
banking facilities granted to the Group.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had a capital commitment
of HK$27.2 million for the construction contract and property,
plant and equipment (31 March 2014: 75.0 million).

As at 31 March 2015, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities of its subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$610.2 million (2014: HK$587.5 million).
The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries as at 31 March 2015
amounted to HK$100.8 million (2014: HK$85.5 million). The
Group did not have any significant contingent liability.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2015 the Group has approximately 2,149
employees, of which 51 were based in Hong Kong and
Macao while the rest were mainly in Mainland China.
Remuneration policy was reviewed regularly, making
reference to current legislation, market condition and both
the individual and company performance. In addition to
salaries and other usual benefits like annual leave, medical
insurance and various mandatory pension schemes, the
Group also provides educational sponsorship subsidies,
discretionary performance bonus and share options. A new
share option scheme was adopted on 6 August 2012 which is
valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the adoption
date, detailed of which are specified in the Section “Share
Option Scheme” on page 163 of this annual report.
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Directors and Senior Managsement Profiles

SEENEAEEAERRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. NG Chi Ho, aged 65 is the founder, chairman and
managing director and chairman of the corporate governance
committee of the Group. He is responsible for the formulation
of corporate strategy, strategic planning and development,
and overall management of the Group. Dr. NG has over
38 years of management experience in the electronics
industry and had been a lecturer in electronic engineering
at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University for 4 years. Dr. NG
holds a bachelor degree in science from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong, a master of philosophy degree in
computer engineering from the University of Hong Kong,
and an honorary doctor of engineering degree from Lincoln
University, USA. Dr. NG is a chartered engineer, a fellow of
the Institution of Engineering and Technology, UK, a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and an honorary fellow of
the Canadian Chartered Institute of Business Administration.
In addition, Dr NG is an advisor of Technology Development
Committee of Federation of Hong Kong Industries, chairman
of Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association and Sir Cecil
Clementi Scholarship Foundation, honorary chairman of
Hong Kong Electronics Industries Council and vice chairman
of Dongguang Electronic Industries Association. Dr. NG is an
advisory professor in the School of Electronic and Information
Engineering of Beijing JiaoTong University. He is also a
member of the advisory committee on Electronic Engineering
of the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is the father
of Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred, the Executive Director of the
Group and Mr. NG Man Chun, Anthony, the Project Manager
of the Group and the brother-in-law of Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung,
Alex, the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.

Mr. MA Fung On, aged 57, is the deputy chairman and
a member of the corporate governance committee of the
Group. Mr. MA is responsible for the formulation of the
Group’s overall strategic planning and policies, as well as
overseeing the personnel, administration and logistics of the
Group. Mr. MA has worked with the Group for more than 22
years and has over 33 years of experience in the electronics
industry. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a higher diploma in electronic engineering.
Mr. MA is the Electronics and Telecommunications Training
Board Member, the Advisory Committee Member on Working
Party on Vocational Education and Training Programmes,
Electronics & Telecommunication Training Board and
member of Working Party on Manpower Survey, Electronics &
Telecommunication Training Board.
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Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred, aged 34, is an executive
director and the Chief Technology Officer of the Group.
He is responsible for exploring new business opportunities
and overseeing Research and Development (R&D) of the
Group. Dr. NG holds Bachelor of Engineering (BEng (Ist
Hon.)) degree in Computing from Imperial College London,
Master of Science (S.M.) and Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D)
degrees in Electrical Engineering and Computer Science from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT). His research
focuses on modular hardware design methodologies that can
greatly reduce hardware development time. During his time
at MIT, he had collaborated with IBM, Nokia and Qualcomm
in various research projects. Prior to joining the Group, Dr.
NG worked at Qualcomm’s New Jersey Research Center
for 3 years. He is the son of Dr. NG Chi Ho, the Chairman
and Managing Director of the Group, the nephew of Mr. LEE
Yiu Cheung, Alex, the Chief Financial Officer of the Group
and the brother of Mr. NG Man Chun, Anthony, the Project
Manager of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LEE Kam Hung, aged 56, is a non-executive director
of the Group. He holds a master degree in engineering
business management from the University of Warwick in
the UK. Mr. LEE is now the founder, CEO of Kolinker Group
of companies since its inception in 1983. In addition,
Mr. LEE is the fellow member of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers, the Hong Kong Affairs Committee Advisor of
Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council, Vice president of
Youth Council, member of Design Smart Initiative Assessment
Panel, member of Project Assessment Panel of the SERAP,
executive committee member of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and Evaluation Panel member for the selection
of Technology Transfer Offices (TTOs)/Projects for the Soft-
landing Programme (organizing by the Hong Kong Science
& Technology Parks Corporation). He is also an honorary life
vice president of Poly U Development Foundation of the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Professor WONG Sook Leung, Joshua, aged 76, is an
independent non-executive director of the Group. He is
also the chairman of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Group. Prof.
WONG is presently the Professor Emeritus of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He has over 34 years of working
experience with tertiary educational institutions including
28 years with the Hong Kong Polytechnic University of
which 6 years as the vice president, 2 years as the senior
consultant, 10 years as chair professor in electronic and
information engineering department and 16 years as the
head of electronic engineering department. Prior to joining
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, he was an associate
professor of California State University at Los Angeles, US
from 1968 to 1974. In addition, he was the president of the
Hong Kong Association for the Advancement of Science and
Technology in 1988/89. Prof. WONG is currently president
of the Hong Kong Semiconductor Industries Council. Prof.
WONG obtained his bachelor of engineering degree from
the University of Hong Kong and his doctor of philosophy
degree from Leeds University, UK. He is also a chartered
engineer, a fellow member of the Institution of Engineering
and Technology, UK and a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers.
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Mr. LEUNG Yu Ming, Steven, aged 56, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Group and a member of
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Group. Mr. LEUNG holds a master degree
in accounting from Charles Sturt University in Australia
and a bachelor degree in social science from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG is an associate member
of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, a practising certified accountant of CPA Australia and
a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong
respectively. Mr. LEUNG is also a practising certified public
accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG previously worked in
Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited as an assistant
vice president in the International Finance and Corporate
Finance Department. He commenced public practice in
auditing and taxation since 1990. He is now the senior
partner of a certified public accountants firm. Mr. LEUNG
has over 30 years of experience in assurance, accounting,
taxation, financial management and corporate finance.
Mr. LEUNG is also an independent non-executive director of
C C Land Holdings Limited, The Cross Harbour (Holdings)
Limited, Y.T. Realty Group Limited and Yugang International
Limited, all of which are companies listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHAN Kit Wang, aged 62, is an independent non-
executive director of the Group and a member of audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Group. Mr. CHAN graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1977 with a higher
diploma in accountancy. Mr. CHAN is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. He is now a senior partner of a certified
public accountants firm. Mr. CHAN has over 38 years of
working experience in accounting, auditing and taxation.
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Dr. CHEUNG Nim Kwan, aged 67, is an independent non-
executive director of the Group and a member of audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Group. He was Chief Executive Officer of
the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research
Institute (ASTRI), a 500-member R&D organization in the
information and communications area established by the
Hong Kong SAR Government. He has founded and served as
the inaugural director of the National Engineering Research
Centre for Application Specific Integrated Circuit Systems,
the first National Engineering Centre established in Hong
Kong. Prior to joining ASTRI, Dr. CHEUNG has held different
research and senior management positions at AT&T Bell
Labs, Bellcore, and Telcordia Technologies. He is a Telcordia
Fellow and a Fellow of IEEE. Dr. CHEUNG served as the
18th President of the IEEE Communications Society, a global
professional organization with 45,000 members in 180
chapters around the world. He was Editor-in-Chief of the IEEE
Communications Magazine, and was appointed Chairman of
the IEEE Fellow Committee in 2012-13, where he presided
over the selection of all new IEEE Fellows worldwide. Dr.
CHEUNG is an Honorary Professor of the Chinese University
of Hong Kong, a member of the Hong Kong Research Grants
Council, and has served as Consulting Professor at Stanford
University. Dr. CHEUNG received his B.Sc. degree from the
University of Hong Kong, and M.S. and Ph.D. degrees from
the California Institute of Technology.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, aged 57, is the chief financial
officer of the Group. Mr. LEE is responsible for overseeing
the corporate and financial matters of the Group. Mr. Lee is
a practising certified public accountant in Hong Kong. He
is also an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. LEE
joined the Group in early 2005 and has over 35 years of
experience in corporate finance, accounting and auditing.
Before joining the Group, he worked for a blue chip listed
company in Hong Kong for over 18 years in a senior
executive position. Mr. LEE graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a higher diploma in accountancy.
He is the brother-in-law of Dr. Ng Chi Ho, the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Group and the uncle of Dr. Ng Man
Cheuk, Alfred, the Executive Director of the Group and Mr.
NG Man Chun, Anthony, the Project Manager of the Group.
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Ms. WONG Sin, Kathy, aged 45, is the general manager
of electronic manufacturing service (“EMS”) division of
the Group and is responsible for overseeing the operations
of Block A, Suga High-Tech Industrial Park. Ms. WONG
holds an EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong University, China.
She joined the Group in 2002 and has over 22 years of
experience in the electronics manufacturing industry.

Mr. TENG Boon Han, Eric, aged 37, is the general manager
of EMS and pet training products divisions and is responsible
for the overall operations including programme management,
order management, supply chain management, product
development and manufacturing in Block B, Suga High-
Tech Industrial Park. Mr. TENG holds a bachelor degree of
Business Administration in Finance and Economics from
University of New Brunswick, Canada. He joined the Group
in 2007. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. TENG worked
for global IT and telecommunication companies. He has
had international working exposure in the USA, Malaysia,
Indonesia and Thailand within those companies.

Mr. FUNG Chi Leung, Mark, aged 51, is the general
manager of the marketing division. He holds a Bachelor of
Science degree from the University of Toronto in Canada.
Mr. FUNG has over 29 years of working experience in
electronics sales and marketing.

Mr. Ng Man Chun, Anthony, aged 32, is the Project Manager
of the Group’s pet business. Since joining the Group in 2010,
Mr. NG has been responsible for developing the pet business
and managing the wholesale and the retail pet business
in Hong Kong and mainland China. Mr. NG has also been
involving in the development of the smart pet products for the
Group. Mr. NG holds Bachelor of Science degree in Robotics
from The Staffordshire University, Postgraduate Diploma in
Computer Science from The University of Birmingham and
Master of Business Administration from The University of
Wales, Newport. Mr. NG has accumulated experience on pet
business in last 5 years. He is the son of Dr. NG Chi Ho, the
Chairman and Managing Director of the Group, the brother
of Dr. NG Man Cheuk, Alfred, the executive director of the
Group and the nephew of Mr. LEE Yiu Cheung, Alex, the
Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
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Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the management
of Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are
committed to attain and uphold a high standard of corporate
governance that properly protect and promote the interests of
its shareholders and other stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, employees and the general public.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2015, the
Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for CG Code
A2.1.

CG Code A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this
report, the Group does not have a separate Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and Dr. Ng Chi Ho currently holds
both positions. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person
provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership
in the development and execution of long-term business
strategies. Going forward, the Group will periodically
review the effectiveness of this arrangement and considers
appointing an individual as Chief Executive Officer when it
thinks appropriate.

Save the abovementioned deviation, none of the directors of
the Company is aware of information that would reasonably
indicate the Company is not or was not in compliance with
the CG Code for the year under review.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Group’s overall management is vested in its board of
directors, which now comprises eight members, coming
from diverse businesses and professional backgrounds. The
Board consisted of three executive directors, Dr. Ng Chi
Ho (Chairman), Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman) and
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk (appointed on 1 May 2015, one non-
executive director, Mr. Lee Kam Hung and four independent
non-executive directors (‘INED’), Professor Wong Sook Leung,
Joshua, Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven, Mr. Chan Kit Wang
and Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan (appointed on 15 October 2014)
(collectively the ‘Directors’).

The principal functions of the Board are to supervise the
Group’s business and affairs; to review the Group’s financial
performance; to review the Group’s systems of internal
control; to approve the strategic plans, investment and
funding decision. For the financial reporting accountability,
the Board has the ultimate responsibility for preparing
the financial statements. The day-to-day management is
conducted by senior management and employees of the
Group, under the direction and supervision of the Directors.
When the Directors are aware of any events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, such events or conditions will
be clearly set out and discussed in this Corporate Governance
Report.

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10 (1) and (2) of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
INEDs among whom one has to have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related finance management
expertise. The role of INED is to bring an independent and
objective view to the Board's deliberations and decisions.

The Company has received from each of the INED an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs
are independent. All non-executive directors (including
INEDs) have been appointed for a term of one year and
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company and Listing
Rules at each annual general meeting.
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Save as disclosed in the biographical details of each director,
there is no other relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the board.

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board meets at least four times annually to review
business development and overall strategic policies. The
Board is supplied with relevant information by the senior
management pertaining to matters to be brought before the
Board for decision as well as reports relating to operational
and financial performance of the Group before each regular
board meeting. At least 14 days notice of a regular board
meeting is given to all directors to give them the opportunity
to attend. Board papers are dispatched to the directors
at least three days before the meeting to ensure that they
have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meeting.

The Board is responsible for the system of internal controls
of the Company and its subsidiaries, setting appropriate
policies and reviewing the effectiveness of such controls.
Internal control is defined as a process effected by the Board,
management and other personnel, designed to manage
rather then eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable, not absolute
assurance of the following:

- effectiveness and efficiency operations

- reliability of financial reporting

- compliance with applicable laws and regulations
- effectiveness of risk management functions

The Board conducted a review of the system of internal
controls of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2015 including the consideration of the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function
and their training programmes and budget. The Board
assessed the effectiveness of internal control by considering
reviews performed by the Audit Committee, executive
management and is satisfied that the system of internal
control of the Group is functioning properly.
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Four regular meetings of the Board and one Annual General
Meeting were held during the financial year of 2014/15.
The attendance of each director at the meeting is set out as

WM/ —RERBEER  KBTIR
RREFRERR
HE R R T

—RBRBFRE-RES

follows:—
Name of directors Board meeting AGM
EENA Exggs REBEEX®
Executive directors HITES
Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman) REXEL(EE) 4/4 11
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman) BERERE (FFE) 4/4 11
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk REEBLE (RZE—HF

(appointed on 1 May 2015) HA—BEET) - -
Non-executive directors EHMITES
Mr. Lee Kam Hung LR E 4/4 1/1
INEDs BNEBITES
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua HEROHE 3/4 1/1
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven REFGRIE 4/4 1/1
Mr. Chan Kit Wang PR R E 4/4 11
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan woHEL (R-ZT—N4F

(appointed on 15 October 2014) +A+HRBEZT) 3/4 -

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Based on the training records provided to the Company by
the directors, the directors have participated in the following

training during 2014/15:

Directors

=

B

—hEEN EF

IREEER AL TR R R=T
% 2 8B\ T

Attended training courses,
seminars, workshops,
in-house briefs
HEEARE  Hetg
HRE NENEE

Executive directors

Dr. Ng Chi Ho

Mr. Ma Fung On

Dr. Ng Man Cheuk
(appointed on 1 May 2015)

Non-executive directors
Mr. Lee Kam Hung

INEDs
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven
Mr. Chan Kit Wang
Dr Cheung Nim Kwan
(appointed on 15 October 2014)

HITE=R

RExBL (FE)

BERELE (BIFE)

RREBL (R-_ZT—1F
ER—BHEZE)

EHITES
TR R L

BIAFBITES

EEEEE 6

RFHHITE

RN SEE

wemEt (R —1mF
TATRREZRE)
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DIRECTORS” AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against
all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by
them in the execution of and discharge of their duties or in
relation thereto, the Company has arranged insurance cover
for this purpose.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The board has established four committees and has
delegated various responsibilities to the committees
including the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and the corporate governance committee (the “Corporate
Governance Committee”). All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective
terms of reference. The Board Committees are provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four INEDs who are
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua, Mr. Leung Yu Ming
Steven, Mr. Chan Kit Wang and Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan
(appointed on 15 October 2014). The composition and
members of the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee is Professor Wong Sook
Leung Joshua.

The Audit Committee meetings are held not less than twice
a year to review and discuss the internal control systems of
the Group, to review the Group’s interim and annual financial
statements, and also monitor the appointment and function of
the Group's independent auditors. Additional meetings may
also be held by the Committee from time to time to discuss
special projects or other issues of which the Audit Committee
considers necessary. The Committee's authorities and duties
are set out in written terms of reference and are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

Corporate Governance Report
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AUBFEARBITRABERZESER &
B Z BRI E R EESIanT

During the financial year, two Audit Committee meetings were
held and the individual attendance of each member is set out
below:—

Member of Audit Committee Meeting attended

ENZBEEgHE HEEHXE
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua (Chairman) & &ase28& (£/E) 212
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFERTE 2/2
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRSNS 2/2
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan RoHBEL(RZE—W4F

(appointed on 15 October 2014) +A+EH 5% 1) 1/2

During the financial year, the Audit Committee reviewed
the fiscal year 2013/2014 annual report and fiscal year
2014/2015 interim report, including the accounting principles
and practice adopted by the Group, reviewed and discussed
the financial results and internal control systems of the
Group, conducted discussions with the independent auditors
on financial reporting, compliance, and reported all relevant
matters to the Board.

The Audit Committee has also reviewed the fiscal year
2014/2015 annual report in a meeting held on 22 June
2015.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises four INEDs who
are Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua, Mr. Leung Yu Ming
Steven, Mr. Chan Kit Wang and Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan
(appointed on 15 October 2014) and is currently chaired by
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua. No director or senior
executive will be involved in any discussion in connection
with his own remuneration. The meeting of the Remuneration
Committee shall normally be held not less than once a year.

The Company has adopted a model where the Remuneration
Committee performs an advisory role to the Board, with
the Board retaining the final authority to approve the
remuneration of executive directors and senior management.
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The Committee’s principal responsibilities are to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors and senior management,
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors and make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration structure. It also reviews
and guides the formulation of the Group’s performance
related pay schemes. Term of reference which described the
authorities and duties of the Remuneration Committee are
publicly available on the websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the contents of which are in
compliance with the CG Code.

During the financial year, three Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the individual attendance of each

member is set out below:—

Member of the Remuneration Committee
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Meeting attended

HMESEME HEEE X
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua (Chairman) & &ase 2% (£/E) 2/3
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFRTE 3/3
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRI E 3/3
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan RaHBL(RZE—WF

(appointed on 15 October 2014) +ATEHEZET) 2/3

During the financial year, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors, non-
executive directors, the INEDs, and senior management;
reviewed the bonus to senior management; considered the
granting of share options to an executive director and senior
management under share option scheme.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 March, 2015, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band is set out
below:—

Remuneration bands (HK$)

=R EEE Z #H

BE-2-RF=A=t-ALFE BRE
A BRBES 2 FHEIT

Number of persons

M@ (BT A"
$0 to $1,000,000 078 7t £1,000,000/% 7T

$1,000,001 to $2,000,000 1,000,001 7T £2,000,0007 7T 1
$2,000,001 to $3,000,000 2,000,001 7t 23,000,000/ 7T 1

Further particulars regarding director’ remuneration and
the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in
notes 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises four INEDs who are
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua, Mr. Leung Yu Ming
Steven, Mr. Chan Kit Wang and Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan
(appointed on 15 October 2014) and is currently chaired by
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua.

The meeting of the Nomination Committee shall normally be
held not less than once a year. The Committee will identify
qualified candidates to fill the Board membership whenever
such vacancy arises. It will nominate such candidates for
the Board to consider, and regularly review the composition
of the Board as well as make suggestions as to any change
that may be required. The Committee’s authorities and duties
are set out in written terms of reference and are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings during
the financial year. Details of individual's attendance of its
members are set out in the table below:—

Member of the Nomination Committee

Corporate Governance Report
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RAMRFER RELZEGHBITMREH -
ERBZ BB HFEFBEHIIN TR

Meeting attended

REZEEME HEEHEXH
Professor Wong Sook Leung Joshua (Chairman) & gase 2% (£/E) 2/2
Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven RFETE 2/2
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BRSNS 2/2
Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan RoEHEL (RZZT—NF

(appointed on 15 October 2014) +ATEHEZT) 1/2

During the financial year, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;
make recommendations to the Board on re-election of the
directors subject to retirement by rotation under the bye-
laws at the 2015 annual general meeting and assess the
independence of the independent non-executive directors.

Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan was appointed as INED of the
Company on 15 October, 2014 and Dr. Ng Man Cheuk
was appointed as executive director on 1 May, 2015.
In considering the above new appointment of directors,
the nomination committee assessed the candidate and
incumbent on criteria such as integrity, independent
mindedness, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out their duties and responsibilities effectively,
etc. and made recommendation to the Board for approval.

Pursuant to code provision A.4.3 of the CG Code, (a) having
served the Company for more than nine years could be
relevant to the determination of an INED'’s independence;
and (b) if an INED has served more than nine years,
his further appointment should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders.
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Notwithstanding that Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven has served
as an INED for more than nine years since 27 September
2004, the Board is of the view that his independence is not
affected by his long service with the Company. Mr. Leung
Yu Ming Steven meets the independence guideline set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. He is independent of the
management and free from any business or other relationship
or circumstances which would materially interfere with the
exercise of his independent judgment. Hence, the Board
considered Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven as independent and
recommended the re-election of Mr. Leung Yu Ming Steven
as an independent non-executive Director at the AGM.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the board diversity policy in June 2013.
The policy sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board.

The Company considered diversity of board members
can be achieved through consideration of a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Board developed measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy, where selection of candidates
will be based on the range of diversity perspectives as set
out above, and the ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidate will bring to the
Board.

As at the date of this Annual Report, members of the Board
came from different background, with a diverse range
of academic, business and professional expertise. Brief
biographical information of each of our Director is set out
in the section “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”
in this Annual Report. Besides, an updated list of Directors
and their role and function of the Company are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Corporation Governance Committee comprises two
executive directors, who are Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr. Ma Fung
On and is currently chaired by Dr Ng Chi Ho.

The role and main function of the Corporate Governance
Committee is to assist the Board in developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance which are
applicable to the Group and making recommendations to the
Board.

The terms of reference of the Corporate Governance
Committee include the duties set out in Code Provision D.3.1.
(a) to (e) for the time being in force. The terms of reference
of the Corporate Governance Committee are available on the
website of the Company.

During the financial year, the Corporate Governance
Committee held one meeting. The attendance at this meeting

is as follows:—

Member of the Corporate Governance Committee
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Meeting attended

TEXERZEENE HEEHRH
Dr. Ng Chi Ho RExEL 1/1
Mr. Ma Fung On BEREE 11

During the financial year, the Corporate Governance
Committee reviewed and monitored the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, reviewed and monitored the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. The
Company made specific enquiry of all directors as to whether
they complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code regarding their securities transactions. It was confirmed
that there was full compliance. The relevant employee
who, because of their office in the Group, are likely to be in
possession of inside information, have been requested to
comply with the provisions of the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
PREPARING THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. The
finance department of the Company is taken charge by the
Chief Financial Officer of the Company. With the assistance
of the finance department, the Directors ensure that the
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
properly prepared in accordance with relevant regulations
and applicable accounting principles.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Group’s independent auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers
(“PwC”). The financial reporting responsibilities of the
independent auditor are set out on page 63 to 64 of this
annual report.

During the financial year, remuneration of approximately
HK$2,370,000 was payable to PwC for the provision of audit
services. In addition, approximately HK$773,000 was payable
to PwC for other non-audit services. The non-audit services
mainly consist of tax compliance and other services.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged and appointed Mr. Huen Po Wah,
a representative from an external secretarial services provider
as the company secretary of the Company. The primary
contact person with the company secretary of the Company
is the chief financial officer, Mr. Lee Yiu Cheung, Alex. During
the financial year, Mr. Huen has duly complied with the
relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the financial year under review, there is no change in
the Company’s constitutional documents.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a
sound and effective internal control system of the Group.
The system includes a defined management structure with
limits of authority, safeguard its assets against unauthorized
use or disposition, ensures the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensures
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and to manage the
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the
achievement of the Group’s objectives.

The Board believed that the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls and key areas of the Group’s system of
internal controls are reasonably implemented, which provide
prevention of material misstatement or loss, safeguard the
Group’s assets, maintain appropriate account records and
financial reporting, efficiency of operations and ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulation. The Board
will endeavour its best effort to enhance and improve the
internal controls in all aspects of the Group, and will regularly
monitor the issues raised by the Audit Committee to ensure
appropriate remedial measures have been implemented.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining effective
communications with shareholders. In order to develop and
maintain continuing relationship with the shareholders of
the Company, the Company established various channels to
facilitate and enhance communication:

(i)  the annual general meeting provides a useful forum for
the shareholders of the Company to raise comments
and exchange views with the Board;

(ii)  publication of announcements and circulars on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(i) publication of financial statements containing a
summary of the financial information and affairs of the
Group for the interim and full financial year via the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company;

(iv) interim reports, annual reports and circulars are sent to
all shareholders;

(v) notices of and explanatory notes for general meetings;
and

(vi) the management of the Group continually conducts
meetings with investors, analysts and the media, and
provides them with up-to-date and comprehensive
information regarding the Company’s development and
answers to their queries.

The Company also maintains a website at www.suga.com.hk,
where updates on the Company’s business developments
and operations, financial information and news can always be
found. Shareholders and investors may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing through the
contact details as follows:—

Address: 22nd Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre,
1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: 2953 1523

Email: investorrelations@suga.com.hk
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders are entitled to requisition a special general
meeting and put forward proposals at general meeting. The
procedures are as follows:

(A)

PROCEDURES FOR REQUISITIONING A
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
the shareholders of the Company holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
such of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, shall
have the right to convene a special general meeting
of the Company. If the directors do not within twenty-
one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a meeting, the requisitionists
representing more than one half of the total voting rights
may themselves convene a meeting.

The written requisition for the special general meeting
can be lodged at the Company’s principal office in Hong
Kong at 22nd Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang
Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

(B) PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD

PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of
the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company or not less
than 100 shareholders may, at their expense, provide
a written request to the attention of the Company
Secretary signed and deposited in accordance with the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

The procedures for the shareholders to propose a
person for election of a director at an annual general
meeting is available for viewing at the Company’s
website at www.suga.com.hk.

The above procedures are subject to the bye-laws of the
Company and applicable legislation and regulation.

Besides, the updated memorandum of association
and bye-laws of the Company has been posted on
the website of the Company at www.suga.com.hk
and the designated website of the Stock Exchange at
www.hkexnews.hk.
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Report of the Directors
EEEWE

The Directors are pleased to present to the shareholders their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Its principal subsidiaries are engaged in the research and
development, manufacture and sale of electronic products,
moulds and plastic products. Details of the principal activities
of the Group’s subsidiaries are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by
reporting and geographical segment is set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2015
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 67
of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK$7.0 cents and a special dividend
of HK$5.0 cents per ordinary share were paid during the
financial year. The Directors have proposed the payment of a
final dividend of HK$8.0 cents per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 March 2015. Total dividend for the year ended 31
March 2015 amounted to HK20.0 cents per ordinary share.

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 6
August 2015 is expected to be paid on or before 20 August
2015 to shareholders of the Company whose names appear
on the Register of Shareholders of the Company on 13
August 2015.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS (continuea)

The register of Shareholders of the Company will be closed
for the following periods:

(1)

(i)

The Register of shareholders of the Company will be
closed from 4 August 2015 to 6 August 2015 (both
days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares in the Company will be registered, for the
purpose of determining the identity of the shareholders
entitled to attend and vote at 2015 Annual General
Meeting. In order to qualify to attend and vote at the
meeting, all transfers of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates and transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 3
August 2015.

The Register of Shareholders of the Company will
be closed from 12 August 2015 to 13 August 2015
(both days inclusive) during which period no transfer
of shares in the Company will be registered, for
the purpose of determining the entitlement of the
shareholders to receive the proposed final dividend.
Subject to approval of the shareholders at the 2015
Annual General Meeting, the proposed final dividend
will be payable to the shareholders whose names
appear on the Register of Shareholders of the Company
on 13 August 2015. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
11 August 2015.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options
of the Company during the year are set out in notes 25 and
26 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2015
calculated under Company Act of Bermuda amounted to
HK$109,156,000 (2014: HK$88,934,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its shares during
the year. Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares
during the year.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to HK$245,000

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Particular of bank borrowings as at 31 March 2015 are set
out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of retirement schemes are set out in note 41 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate,
is set out on page 188 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Ng Chi Ho (Chairman)
Mr. Ma Fung On (Deputy Chairman)
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk (appointed on 1 May 2015)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lee Kam Hung

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua

Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven

Mr. Chan Kit Wang

Dr. Cheung Nim Kwan (appointed on 15 October 2014)

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Dr. Ng Chi Ho,
Mr. Lee Kam Hung and Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven will
retire by rotation in accordance with Bye-law 111 of the
Company’s Bye-laws and Dr. Ng Man Cheuk and Dr. Cheung
Nim Kwan whose were appointed as director on 1 May, 2015
and 15 October, 2014 respectively will hold office until the
annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-law 115 of
the Company’s Bye-law. All the retiring Directors are being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Each of Non-executive Director and Independent Non-
executive Directors is appointed for a term of one year.
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

Dr. Ng Chi Ho, being Executive Directors of the Company has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
fixed term of three years commencing from 1 September
2002 and will continue thereafter until terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party
on the other. Mr. Ma Fung On, being Executive Director, has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial
fixed term of three years commencing from 1 April 2004 and
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk, being Executive Director, has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed
term of three years commencing from 1 May 2015 and will
continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election has a service contract with the Company,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Directors consider the share option scheme, with its
broadened basis of participation, will enable the Group
to reward the employees, Directors and other selected
participants for their contributions to the Group and will also
assist the Group in its recruitment and retention of high
caliber professional's executives and employees who are
instrumental to the growth of the Group.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 6 August
2012, the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 17
September 2002 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) was
terminated and cease to have any further effect except that
the Old Share Option Scheme will remain in force to the
extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of the options
granted thereunder prior to termination thereof. A new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted which will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from adoption of the New Share Option Scheme and will
expire on 5 August 2022.

For details of the principal terms of the New Share Option
Scheme, please refer to the circular of the Company dated 5
July 2012.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:—

PURPOSE OF THE NEW SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is
to enable the Group to grant Options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

The Directors consider the New Share Option Scheme
will enable the Group to reward its employees, Directors
and other selected participants for their contributions
to the Group and will also assist the Group in its
recruitment and retention of high calibre professionals,
executives and employees who are instrumental to the
growth of the Group.

WHO MAY JOIN

The Directors (which expression shall, for the purpose
of this Appendix, include a duly authorized committee
thereof) may, at their absolute discretion subject to the
Listing Rules, invite any person belonging to any of the
following classes of participants, to take up options to
subscribe for Shares:

(a) any employee (whether full time or part time
including any executive director but excluding any
non-executive director) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of any member the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2.

WHO MAY JOIN (Continued)

() any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to any area of business or business
development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and

(h) any other group or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangements to the development and growth of
the Group.

For the purposes of the New Share Option Scheme,
the Options may be granted to any company wholly
owned by one or more persons belonging to any of
the above classes of participants. For the avoidance of
doubt, the grant of any Options by the Company for the
subscription of Shares or other securities of the Group
to any person who fall within any of the above classes
of participants shall not, by itself, unless the Directors
otherwise determined, be construed as a grant of
Option under the New Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any of the above class of
participants to the grant of any Options shall be
determined by the Directors from time to time on the
basis of the Directors’ opinion as to his contribution to
the development and growth of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea)

3.

MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE
FOR SUBSCRIPTION

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme must not exceed 10% of the issue Shares of
the Company (“Shares”).

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the New Share Option
Scheme was 25,367,400 shares (including 6,826,000
shares subject to options that have been granted but
not yet lapsed or exercised), which represented 9.21%
of the issued Shares.

MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH
PARTICIPANT

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Group (including both exercised,
cancelled or outstanding options) to each participant
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued Shares for the time being (“Individual Limit").
Any further grant of Options in excess of the Individual
Limit in any 12-month period up to and including the
date of such further grant shall be subject to the issue
of a circular to the Shareholders and the Shareholders’
approval in general meeting of the Company with such
participant and his associates abstaining from voting.
The number and terms (including the exercise price)
of the Options to be granted to such participant must
be fixed before Shareholders’ approval and the date
of Board meeting for proposing such further grant
should be taken as the date of grant for the purpose
of calculating the exercise price under note (1) to Rule
17.03(9) of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
FEGHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continuea)

5.

BASIS OF DETERMINING THE SUBSCRIPTION
PRICE

The subscription price for Shares under the New
Share Option Scheme shall be a price determined by
the Directors, but shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the date of the
offer of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’'s daily quotations for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of
the grant of an Option.

EXERCISE PERIOD OF AN OPTION

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the New Share Option Scheme at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by the
Directors to each grantee, which period may commence
on a day upon which the offer for the grant of Options
is made but shall end in any event not later than 10
years from the date of grant of the Option subject to the
provisions for early termination thereof.

TIME AND PAYMENT ON ACCEPTANCE

An offer of the grant of the Option may be accepted by
a participant within 21 days from the date of the offer
of grant of the Option and the Option in respect of the
number of Shares in respect of which the offer was so
accepted will be deemed to have been granted on the
date of grant of the Options.

MINIMUM PERIOD AND PERFORMANCE
TARGETS

Unless the Directors otherwise determined and stated in
the offer of the grant of Options to a grantee, a grantee
is not required to hold an Option for any minimum
period nor achieve any performance targets before any
Options granted under the New Share Option Scheme
can be exercised.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

9.

REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION

SCHEME

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in
general meeting, the Share Option Scheme shall be
valid and effective till 5 August 2022. After the expiry
of such valid period, no further options will be offered
or granted but in all other respects the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and

effect.

Details of the share option movements during the period
from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015 under the Scheme
Option Scheme are as follows:—

Number of share options

Report of the Directors
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BEBRESE (2)
9. BERXREITE| FIshF

BREAENEE—_Z_—_F /\ARH
AIA RN AR R A AR RBRAE
RATAR L BIMERIGR - XA B A IR E T
% BTEREIRHBINERE KR
PR8I 2 REEMEREM T O EES
T RS R e

H-_ZT-—MFHNA-—RBE-_T-—HF=H
=+ —BHRIN B BIE T 2 B
EEBHEDT: —

EREZE

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding

at 1 April during during the during  at 31 March
2014 the period period the period 2015  Exercise price Date of grant Exercisable period

RZF-ME RZF-1f

B-B =ZA=+-H
R ATIE BREH BnffE i lP i K AT ﬁﬁf BHAH TEH

(HK$)
(A7)

Dr. Ng Chi Ho - 2,200,000 - - 2,200,000 2.158 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 -
(Note 1) 18 January 2020
REFEL (Hitl) i “E-hF
—AThB —RTNBE
—“ZF-Z%-At/H
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 2.158 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 -
(Note 1) 18 January 2020
REERL (Hitl) i “E-hF
—AThB —RTNBE
—“ZF-Z%-At/H
Mr. Lee Kam Hung 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
20 March 2019
EX Sk —Z-ME “T-lE
=A-t+-H =y By et =)
“Z-NE=AZtH
Prof Wong Sook Leung, 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
Joshua 20 March 2019
BERIR —I-ME “T-lE
=f=f+-H =y By et =)
“I-NE=A=tH
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
Steven 20 March 2019
RFEHEE —Z-ME “T-lE
=A-f+-H “Az+—-RH%
“E-NE=A=tH
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Report of the Directors
TEGRE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) B ERE (w)
9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION 9. BEREFEIFGBTFH (&)

SCHEME (Continued)

Number of share options

BREZA

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding

at 1 April during during the during  at 31 March
2014 the period period the period 2015  Exercise price Date of grant Exercisable period

RIF-ME R-F-1%

mA—-A ZA=+-H
iR ATIE BREL HnfE BR%H iR ATHE ﬁﬁf BHAH TER

(HK$)
(B)
Mr. Chan Kit Wang 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
20 March 2019
RAERE —Z-mE —Z3-mE
ZA-f-AH =R=t—-H%
“E-N%=A=+H
Continuous Contract 110,000 - - - 110,000 1.331 29 April 2010 29 April 2010 -
Employees 28 April 2015
HEANES “5-%% Z2-%

mA=thA MA-THhRE
“E-RENAZtNA
Continuous Contract 858,000 - 858,000 - - 1.145 3June 2010 31 December 2013 -
Employees (Note 2) 3 June 2015
BEANES (Hiit2) “5-%% “F-=k
~A=H +ZA=+-HE
i K
Continuous Contract 326,000 - 20,000 66,000 240,000 1.750 21 October 2011 22 October 201421
Employees (Note 3) October 2016
BEANES (H13) —3——F —Z3-mE
TAZT-H TAZt=BZ
Z2-RETAZT-H
Continuous Contract 2,670,000 - 540,000 182,000 1,948,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2015 -
Employees (Note 4) 20 March 2019
BEANES (Hiit4) —Z-mE ZZ-R%
“A-f-AH =R=t—-H%
“E-h%=A=+H
Continuous Contract - 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 2.158 19 January 2015 19 January 2015 -
Employees (Note 1) 18 January 2020
BEANES (#irzt1) “Z-1f —Z-R%
—AThE —RAthBZ
Z“Z-5%-AT/NR
Others 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
20 March 2019
Efh —E-mF “T-ImF
ZA=t+-H ZAZt—-HE
~$-NFZA-18

4,964,000 5,200,000 1,418,000 248,000 8,498,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

9.

REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION
SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:

1.

The closing price of the Company’s share immediately
before the date (19 January 2015) on which the share
options were granted, was HK$2.14.

During the financial year, the weighted average closing price
of the Company’s share immediately before the date, on
which 858,000 share options were exercised was HK$1.77.

During the financial year, the weighted average closing price
of the Company’s share immediately before the date, on
which 20,000 share options were exercised was HK$2.14.

During the financial year, the weighted average closing price
of the Company's share immediately before the date, on
which 540,000 share options were exercised was HK$2.14.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BIRESE ()
9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION 9. WEMREEEICFIRFE (&)
SCHEME (Continued)
Details of the share option movements during the period H-E—AFNHNA—HE-F—HFA
from 1 April 2015 to 25 June 2015 under the Scheme “THBHEA - BREEIET ZERK
Option Scheme are as follows:— REHFBWT: —
Number of share options
ERESE
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
at 1 April during the during the during the at 25 June
2015 period period period 2015  Exercise price Date of grant Exercisable period
RIF-1% RZF-1%
mA—-A ~AZ+EA
E AT HnEd HmiTE HmER & A7 TR BHAS T
(HKS$)
(A7)
Dr. Ng Chi Ho 2,200,000 - - - 2,200,000 2.158 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
20 March 2019
REFEL ;% —F-mE
=ZA-t-8 =y By et =)
“Z-N\E=A=+H
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 2.158 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
20 March 2019
REEETL ;% —F-mE
=f-t+-H =y By et =)
“F-NF=A=+H
Mr. Lee Kam Hung 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
20 March 2019
EX St ZF-mE —3-mE
=A-f+-H =y By et =
“F-NF=A=tH
Prof Wong Sook Leung, 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
Joshua 20 March 2019
G IRz b ZF-mE —3-mE
=f-f+-H “Az+-RH%
“F-NE=A=tH
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
Steven 20 March 2019
RFEHEE ZF-mE ZF-mE
=A=f+-H “Az+—-RH%
“F-NE=A=1H
Mr. Chan Kit Wang 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
20 March 2019
RAREE —F-mE “F-mE
=A-f+-H “Az+—-H%
“F-NE=A=tH
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Report of the Directors

ExgRs
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BEiRESE ()
9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION 9. MIREFTEIZFIKFH (&)
SCHEME (Continued)
Number of share options
BREYA

Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding

at 1 April during the during the during the at 25 June
2015 period period period 2015  Exercise price Date of grant Exercisable period

R-%-1% R-F-1%

mA—-A ~AZTIH
R ATIE BRE BRfE LIP3 R AT TR BHAH [ixid

(HK$)
()

Continuous Contract 110,000 - 110,000 - - 1.331 29 April 2010 29 April 2010 -
Employees (Note 1) 28 April 2015
BEANESR (Hitl) %% —E-%%
MAZthA MAZ+hAE
ZZ-REMAZTAR
Continuous Contract 240,000 - 204,000 - 36,000 1.750 21 October 2011 22 QOctober 2014 -
Employees (Note 2) 21 October 2016
BEANESR (Hit2) —F——% —F-mE
+H:+—B TAZtZHE
“Z-"E+A=1+-H
Continuous Contract 1,948 000 - 1,158,000 - 790,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2015 -
Employees (Note 3) 20 March 2019
BEANESR (Hit3) —F-mE —ZF-RE
=R=+-H ZR=t+-B%
“E-N¥=A=t+H
Continuous Contract 2,000,000 - 200,000 - 1,800,000 2.158 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
Employees (Note 4) 20 March 2019
BEANESR (Hiit4) —F-mE —F-mE
=R=+-H ZR=t+-B%
“E-N¥=A=t+H
Others 200,000 - - - 200,000 1.780 21 March 2014 21 March 2014 -
20 March 2019
Hib —E-mE —F-mE
=R=+-H = Iy el =)
“E-N%¥=A=t+H

8498,000 - 1,672,000 - 6,826,000
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Report of the Directors
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

9. REMAINING LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION
SCHEME (Continued)

Notes:

1. During the financial year, the weighted average closing price
of the Company’s share immediately before the date, on
which 110,000 share options were exercised was HK$2.15.

2. During the financial year, the weighted average closing price
of the Company’s share immediately before the date, on
which 204,000 share options were exercised was HK$2.17.

3. During the financial year, the weighted average closing
price of the Company’s share immediately before the date,
on which 1,158,000 share options were exercised was
HK$2.19.

4. During the financial year, the weighted average closing price
of the Company’s share immediately before the date, on
which 200,000 share options were exercised was HK$2.17.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and the short positions of
the directors of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which are required to
be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of the Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they have taken or deemed to have under
such positions of the SFO) or which are required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein, or which are required, pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
(the “Model Code”), to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange were as follows:—

BiERE (2
9. MERERTEIZFBRFH (&)

Hat

L. RAMBEE RNRAFBRMDRKEE110,000
D BEEETTRE B A2 ik E
21587

2. AR EE - AR B H H 204,000
DBEEETTRE B Al ik E
R217THTT

3. RABBEFEE A2ARORER
1,158,00017 fE A 2 1T {2 % B Al 2 I ¥
BHWTHER2.198 T

4. RAMBEE ARFRDREE200,000
BRARETEES Bl 2 N F el mE
R21TETT-

EENEMhcER
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REIRETAEREE (E& R ESRPEK
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

(Continued)

LONG POSITION

Report of the Directors
FEGRE

EERNBMZER &)

o)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the RAQB ZBR M REBARKRD ZERE

Company

(a) Interests in shares of the Company

@ RERARZ #zm

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

SREE0IE T2 EERYE
Number of
underlying
Percentage of shares held
Number of Total issued ordinary  under equity
Name of Director Capacity shares interests shares derivatives
E#T BRATEIR
LER ETHHEAR
EEHA g4 RHEE EREHR B 403 4=
(Note 1)
(P&t 1)
Dr. Ng Chi Ho Beneficial owner 6,930,000 160,978,000 58.81% 2,200,000
REREL ExEA
Interests of controlled 44,048,000 - - -
corporation (Note 2)
XEEEER (KiF2)
Founder of a 110,000,000 - - -
discretionary trust (Note 3)
PRETENRE (F33E3)
Mr. Ma Fung On Beneficial owner 4,323,000 14,223,000 5.20% -
BEREE ExBEBEA
Interests of controlled 9,900,000 - - -
corporation (Note 4)
XEEBER (Fisxa)
Dr. Ng Man Cheuk Beneficiary of a 110,000,000 110,000,000 40.19% 1,000,000
discretionary trust (Note 5)
RRE[T PREEXEA (P5E5)
Mr. Lee Kam Hung Beneficial owner 1,949,200 3,883,000 1.42% 200,000
THRELE ExEEA
Interests of controlled 1,933,800 - - -
corporation (Note 6)
RmEBER (PBt5E6)
Professor Wong Sook Leung, Joshua Beneficial owner 220,000 220,000 0.08% 200,000
RS EGBAA
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven Beneficial owner 330,000 330,000 0.12% 200,000
RFEHEE ExBAA
Mr. Chan Kit Wang Beneficial owner - - - 200,000
BALLE ExEEA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
(Continued)

LONG POSITION (Continued)

Interests

in shares and underlying shares of the

Company (Continued)

(a)

Notes:

1.

Interests in shares of the Company (Continued)

These represent the interests in underlying shares in
respect of the share opinions granted by the Company, the
details of which are set out in the sub-section “Share Option
Scheme”.

44,048,000 shares are held by Billion Linkage Limited, the
entire issued shares of which is held by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and
his spouse in equal share.

110,000,000 Shares are held by Superior View Inc.,
the entire issued shares of which is ultimately held by
Fidelitycorp Limited as the trustee of the C.H. Family Trust,
the beneficiaries of which are the family members of Dr. Ng
Chi Ho.

9,900,000 Shares are held by Global Class Enterprises
Limited, the entire issued shares of which is held by Mr. Ma
Fung On.

110,000,000 shares are held by Superior View Inc.,
the entire issued shares of which is ultimately held by
Fidelitycorp Limited as the trustee of the C.H. Family Trust,
the beneficiaries of which are the family members of Dr. Ng
Chi Ho.

1,933,800 shares are held by Quick Fit Enterprises Ltd, the
ultimate shareholder is Mr. Lee Kam Hung.

EERNBWZER &)

e (%)

TRzl RBRRN ZEE (&)

@ RAERFRZ#z ()

Wi

1.

BN IEAR R R AR LB & 28
R0 #Ea BARIFHBERN [BRES 8]

77 RD e

#%44,048,0000% iz 17 A Billion Linkage
Limited#5 4 + %A R 2 EFE 21T Rl
REETHE REBSF—F-

#%110,000,000/% f% {7 €3 Superior View Inc.
BE mMzraa2de TR BaER
C.H.RE{E+E =+ A ZFidelitycorp Limited
BERE ZEACEaARRERELT 2
RE -

9,900,000 % 7 B Global Class
Enterprises Limited#5 5 - Mz A fl 2 &2 %
TRMAIABEREERFE-

#%110,000,0008% % 13 /5 Superior View Inc.
FE mMZAREHFRBTROEIESR
C.H. R &5+t 7L A ZFidelitycorp Limited
BRER ZEAZEXRARREBRELTY
RE o

£%1,933,800/% & 7 B3 Quick Fit Enterprises
Ltd#5E @ FHMELEERZ R R RERR o
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BEEems
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES EENBRNWZER &)
(Continued)
LONG POSITION (Continued) HE (%)

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the ARBZBROREBARM ZERE (&)
Company (Continued)

(b) Interests in shares of the Company’s associated (b) RALGEE %ER G #Em
corporation

Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in Suga RARBZ2ENBARMEESETARAA

Electronics Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the SREELOOE T ERERERLERD

Company:

Number of
Non-voting
deferred Percentage of
Name of Director Capacity shares issued shares
BIEEEE LE T
EENA 5% EREHEE B Est
(Note 1)
(MF3ED)
Dr. Ng Chi Ho Interests of controlled corporation 3,680,000 92%
(Note 2)
RExEL VA E (MF3E2)
Mr. Ma Fung On Interests of controlled corporation 240,000 6%
(Note 2)

BERILE VA E (MF3E2)

Notes: 5T

1. These non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, 1. ZESEREREECEROEESZRKEE
are not entitled to dividends, and are not entitled to B AR RETERBEACES RS
any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of [i% & 38 A% 10,000,000,00078 712 @ Z FEK
HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary shares has been SRRELERMNIEA AT AIEDIK-
distributed to the holders of ordinary shares.

2. The 4,000,000 non-voting deferred shares in Suga 2. 4,000,000 {EEEFERAAIEIEERE
Electronics Limited are held as to 80% by Essential Mix iE JE B% 19 9 Bl E Essential Mix Enterprises
Enterprises Limited and 20% by Broadway Business Limited X Broadway Business Limited# A&
Limited. Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr. Ma Fung On hold 92% and 80%K20% - REZBELREELEER
6% interests in each of Essential Mix Enterprises Limited B % RIF Essential Mix Enterprises Limited &
and Broadway Business Limited respectively. Broadway Business Limited#® H592% 6%

ke

Save as disclosed above and under the “Share Option Br B3R [RERRMERT I BT HEEIN B

Scheme”, none of the Directors of the Company —E-RF=ZA=1+—H ARRIEEH

have any interests and short positions in the shares, EBAARRNTINEERZEZE (TEREHR

underlying shares and debentures of the Company and HRERE) 2% B m RESTE
its associated corporations as defined in the SFO as at BEAERERER -

31 March 2015.
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Report of the Directors
FEGHE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no such competing
business as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2015, the following persons (not being a
Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and which have been recorded in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to the section 336 of the SFO.

EERAHZHER

RELRFREMNRELEFEEMHEARF
FEMBARZET UM AN EEXEKBEEAX
ARRABEENETERKEEEREAN LD
ZEREH-

EERNBFRRTCER

EERR UEIMAEEMARIMAERAT
B EmRA ([ EWRR]) REZBFES -

FERR

R-Z—RE=A=+—H BARARES
% RS 50 B33 E 2 BRMMES T
FIAT (EHARTEEREBITHAR) KA
NF 2B RABMR G EEBREEER
BT () 2 XV B2 35 B AR (A AL
ZHERHAA -

Percentage of

Name Capacity Number of shares issued shares
HEET

Ha a5 S R E B#HmESL

Superior View Inc. (Note 1) (Fi&E1) Beneficial owner 110,000,000 40.19%
EnEA A

Billion Linkage Limited (Note 2) (Ff5¥2) Beneficial owner 44,048,000 16.09%
EnEA A

Notes: B 5T

1. The entire issued share capital of Superior View Inc. is ultimately 1. Superior View Inc. 238 E 21T AR B 1EAC.H. Rk

held by Fidelitycorp Limited as trustee of the C.H. Family Trust, the
beneficiaries of which are the family members of Dr. Ng Chi Ho.

2. The entire issued share capital of Billion Linkage Limited is held
by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and his spouse in equal shares and, as such,
Dr. Ng Chi Ho is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by
Billion Linkage Limited under the SFO.

Z5E S 5EA Z Fidelitycorp Limited &35 » %12
AZXBARBRBEELZRE-

2. Billion Linkage Limited &= #E. BT AMR B X H
TE 2 BRMBSAE —F - BURIRE S KA EG -
R E=E LR A ABillion Linkage Limited Fr%
BRI 2R
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continuea)

Save as disclosed above, as far as is known to the Directors,
there is no person, other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, who has an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provision 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31 March 2015.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s largest customer for the year accounted for
approximately 16.3% of the Group’s total revenue and the
five largest customers accounted for approximately 64.4% of
the Group’s total revenue. In addition, the largest supplier of
the Group accounted for approximately 18.4% of the Group’s
purchases while the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 36.7% of the Group’s total
purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As at 31 March 2015, the Company was not involved in any
material litigation or arbitration and no material litigation or
arbitration were pending or threatened or made against the
Company so far the Company is aware.

Report of the Directors

FEeRS
FERE (&)

B IXEBEEN R-—E-—RE=A=+—8"
EEYTMEREERAATATETKRAL

oh A ALRAR ARG RATBERGS -
AT MRRIE B S R G0 E XV E2835
BREAADAHE 2 EATAR -

EESH

FRARARBEF LRI EEBRARB A
HEMBOEREHZEERITERAL

FTEERRBER

FR AEERAKAEFPIEL 2 HEREAE
Bl ED163% MADAAEPIELZHE
FRANEAEEBWERL64.4% © 5N REE R
RAHEEELZBERGASERBERY
18.4%  MAKHEEFEL ZBEEBAGAEE
HEERN36.7%

EE REZHEBATIRESAAEAHES
ARRBIAL% A £ 2 B3R SR £t = B4
ERREPHHEA TR

EXEESHR

R-ZE-—RAF=A=+—B ARELEI R
ERIERRRSEME - MBARR A TMEE
AR T BRI BEE RSB AR BIEL ZEXR
SRR IR EL
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Report of the Directors
FEGHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 27 to 41.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under
the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offered themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Suga International Holdings Limited
NG Chi Ho

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015

EEER
ARRBNEHEAEZ CEERER AR
ARMZ CEEARRARMNETEAEL
(e aEE] M-

YRR E

BIEA DT ARG Z AR BB EEHH 7
AEE RS AAATORBBERTRHE
2 ETRBATEERARALES

¥ 3L 1% 25 B

REFZ P HHRRE HELBOKBEETENER
Ptz 2R BENA I EmER - QBRI
BEER-

RREFS
FEEBREERERLA
TE

RER

FE _T-hAFAXA-THA
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

=
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUGA INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 65 to
187, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 March 2015, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
32), and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

e AVR Y 2GR ES

BEEREBRERARARRRE
(REFRZEZMELZ HERLF])

RAZEED (A TERE®RM) EFANERE
65EIS7TEEERBREEER A A (A TEHE
[ERR)RETFRR (KB EEE]) KA
PEHRER WG EAMBERERBER-_E—RF
—A=Zt—BMEGEARRAREERER  HE
EZALFEMNGEREER KEE2AKARK
ARG ARERER UREE
BB E R MM EREE R -

EENGAMBRRAKENTE

BERREFAARRBEE LG ASRM
RV BHRELEMNRAEE (RBMERA) (532
B)NEBERERBGAMBEERE  USHEE
BHRRELEEMATHRR REEERA
ShAm B & I S R T 5 P 6 2 89 R R IE I -
NERE M BRR T FEHRNRGFRERME
BEE KRR -

BB EE

BPNEERRERMNBAHZEHEEHHE
BRELEBER TRBAFRE(CAN-FR
BDE) F0MREREEBBIR RS  FRitb 2 MK
HBEREEME ) BRI TERANRENAR
FEREMALTE ESAEEREE-

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor's Report
B 2B E

=
pwc

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2015, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32).

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015

XAk
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Balance Sheets

BERER

As at 31 March 2015 R=Z—HF=A=+—H

Group Company
AEE b /N
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-hfE C—EZ-NE C"—F-1f —Z-NE
=A=+—-8 =Z=A=t—H =ZA=+—-H =A=+—8H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i FT#xT FAET T FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment )% - i & 5% 5 6 257,317 200,943 - =
Investment property BEME 8 10,100 = - =
Land use rights T Hb{F A 7 55,528 58,973 - =
Intangible assets B AE 9 12,372 15,892 - =
Goodwill (SRS 10 3,949 3,949 - -
Investments in subsidiaries ~ RIB R R Z&KE 11 - - 67,212 66,303
Investment in a joint venture R—FIABLEZ
HE 13 - = - =
Interest in an associate NN s 12 - 1,702 - =
Amount due from JE U — B = A A
an associate FIE 12 - 267 - =
Available-for-sale financial AHEERKEE
assets 15 13,358 7,547 - -
Bond investment BEERE 17 7,711 7,711 - =
Deferred income tax assets ~ IEEFTSH B E 24 762 23811 - =
Other non-current deposit HiIEngize 19 1,658 852 - -
362,755 300,647 67,212 66,303
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 192,818 147,378 - -
Trade and other receivables  EUE 5 BR 3K &
H b fE W R IE 19 198,857 206,103 221 264
Financial assets at fair value AP EZLABRZ
through profit or loss MBEE 16 - 1,279 - -
Loan receivable B KIE 19 13,500 16,250 - =
Tax recoverable EIEEE R 4,105 257 253 230
Amounts due from subsidiaries &Yz B A 7518 11 - = 139,766 116,685
Amount due from a joint Rl —HeELE
venture A 13 404 - - -
Derivative financial instruments $74 % @ T & 20 - 145 - =
Cash and cash equivalents R & NIEESEY 21 176,989 169,404 778 475
586,673 540,816 141,018 117,654
Total assets EERE 949,428 841,463 208,230 183,957
LIABILITIES afR
Non-current liabilities FrRBEaE
Bank borrowings RITEE 23 12,405 47,731 - =
Deferred income tax liabilities #EEFT{E5 & & 24 2,105 4,649 - -
14,510 52,380 - -
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Balance Sheets

BEEAMER
As at 31 March 2015 R=Z—hHF=A=+—H

Group Company
A& b /N
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2015 2014 2015 2014

—E-1f -—T-NE ZE-15F —T-NE
==+-H =A=t+-H =A=+—-H =A=t+-H

Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 F#xT FAT FT#xT FET
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables ERNE SRR REM
FETFRIE 22 187,768 217,488 2,424 3,082
Income tax payable e AT 8 9,370 12,870 - =
Bank borrowings RITEE 23 88,383 37,798 - =
Derivative financial instruments $T4£ & & T & 20 4,181 2,398 - =
289,702 270,554 2,424 3,082
Total liabilities =i ft 304,212 322,934 2,424 3,082
EQUITY # =
Capital and reserves attributable 57 B AN A Al B A
to the owners of the Company 7 BRZS & (4 &
Share capital N 25 27,371 27,229 27,371 27,229
Other reserves Hiv ks 27 131,091 120,148 134,151 129,584
Retained earnings REBAF 27
— Proposed dividend — BRI R 22,031 21,852 22,031 21,852
— Others —Hfb 466,247 350,432 22,253 2,210
646,740 519,661 205,806 180,875
Non-controlling interests FEPEHI MRS (1,524) (1,132) - -
Total equity ERER 645,216 518,529 205,806 180,875
Total equity and liabilities EakaEEm 949,428 841,463 208,230 183,957
Net current assets REBEERE 296,971 270,262 138,594 114,572
Total assets less current EEHERRDHERE
liabilities 659,726 570,909 205,806 180,875

The notes on pages 72 to 187 are an integral part of these FEIPRISIBE 2T BEEMIEHRR —20
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 187 FESEISTEMGEVERREN_ZE—1F
were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2015 NAZthHBEESSHE WE TIIEER

and are signed on its behalf by: REZE:
RER BER
Ng Chi Ho Ma Fung On
Director Director
BEFE EF
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Consolidated Income Statement

IR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE=—Z—HAF=A=+—HIEFE

2015 2014
ZE-EHF —ET—WF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T F&xT FET
Revenue g 28 1,341,924 1,244,828
Cost of sales $H & AR 31 (1,161,859) (1,070,160)
Gross profit EF 180,065 174,668
Other income ﬁtﬂzﬂ&)\ 29 647 411
Other gains, net ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂl 30 123,316 3,848
Distribution and selling expenses ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ’% Eﬁﬁ 31 (25,986) (17,351)
General and administrative expenses —#& M ITH &2 & 31 (99,898) (70,915)
Operating profit e Al 178,144 90,661
Finance income B & WA 32 1,572 4,049
Finance costs B & A A 32 (3,364) (2,371)
Finance (costs)/income — net BE (RA) A —FE 32 (1,792) 1,678
Share of loss of an associate FE(E — R & AR BB 12 (640) (742)
Profit before income tax Br BT 15 56 A1 g A1) 175,712 91,597
Income tax expense Frisfim sz 33 (5,698) (10,688)
Profit for the year F Wit F 170,014 80,909
Attributable to: EBR:

Owners of the Company PIN/NEIE7Z SN 34 170,406 81,487
Non-controlling interests FE 12 ) M 2 (392) (578)
170,014 80,909

Earnings per share for profit FARNTHEE A

attributable to the owners of the i e S iRZaF
Company during the year

— Basic (HK cents) — &R () 35 62.55 29.93
— Diluted (HK cents) —#58 (B 35 62.41 29.88
Dividends % 8 36 54,812 38,189

The notes on pages 72 to 187 are an integral part of these FI2ERISTE M RGETBRR —BH -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ARA R EWAR

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE—Z—HAF=A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E—RHF —ET-MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Profit for the year FE Wi F 170,014 80,909
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hftt 2 EUN ~ (E#E) :
ltem that will not be reclassified HEgBTesoizEncEE
subsequently to profit or loss:
Fair value gain on land and buildings EBREXEYER L NET
upon transfer to investment property 2 A F{EW 6,790 =
ltems that may be reclassified to s EEEm B :
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on MEFINB AR TELIE 258
translation of foreign subsidiaries (2,350) (4,348)
Release of fair value gain upon REEE A HEMEEER
redemption of an available-for-sale ~ #I8 AF({E U5
financial asset - (2,958)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale ~ AIft B EMBHEEMN R FE R
financial assets 1,936 7,099
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  FREMZ2EURA (EE) -
for the year, net of tax MR 6,376 (207)
Total comprehensive income FENEZEUNERE
for the year 176,390 80,702
Attributable to: BB
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEZ PN 176,782 81,280
Non-controlling interests FE 12 ) M 2 (392) (578)
176,390 80,702

The notes on pages 72 to 187 are an integral part of these  Z722187H 2 Wit B4R A M IEHRER — 35 °
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes i Eqwty

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HZ_—Z—

N}

Attributable to the owners of the Company

B

hFE=A=1t—HILFE

NGk DN 3
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling
capital reserves earnings interests Total
B & H it s BilF FEnES kel
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHT AT THIT THT
Balance at 1 April 2013 RZE—=4NA—H
bd - 27,229 119,834 326,195 (554) 472,704
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREF/ (BE) - - 81,487 (578) 80,909
Exchange difference arising on BMEFIINHBAR
translation of foreign subsidiaries ~ FTE4IE R =5 - (4,348) - - (4,348)
Release of fair value gain upon Wﬁ@—ﬂ HENBEE
redemption of an available-forsale  EFEIE A FE U
financial asset = (2,958) - - (2,958)
Fair value gain on an available-for-sale ] ff£ ! &€ 81 76 4 &
financial asset Z RN EE = 7,099 = = 7,099
Total comprehensive income SHBNEE - (207) 81,487 (578) 80,702
Transactions with owners: HEFAZENRS:
Employee share option scheme: EEEREE:
Value of employee services EERKZEE = 521 = = 521
Dividends paid R E) - - (35,398) - (35,398)
Balance at 31 March 2014 R-F—-ME=R
=t+—-Hz#&#H% 27,229 120,148 372,284 (1,132) 518,529
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF/ (BE) - - 170,406 (392) 170,014
Exchange difference arising on BEFIIHBATR
translation of foreign subsidiaries ~ PTEEIE X =% - (2,350) - - (2,350)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale A ftiH & B E &
financial assets AT EWE = 1,936 = = 1,936
Fair value gain on land and buildings EBEH &%
upon transfer to investment T REF
property ZAFEWE - 6,790 = - 6,790
Total comprehensive income SHBNEE - 6,376 170,406 (392) 176,390
Transactions with owners: HEFAZENRS:
Employee share option scheme: EEEREE:
Proceeds from shares issued upon  f7{8 BB % 42 1 2 17 AR 7
exercise of options 2SR 142 1,837 - = 1,979
Options lapsed %AZZE\%H@E - (221) 221 = =
Value of employee services EERBEE = 2,951 = = 2,951
Dividends paid BEIRRE - - (54,633) - (54,633)
Balance at 31 March 2015 WRZFE-1%F=A
=t+—Hz&#H 27,371 131,091 488278 (1,524) 645,216
The notes on pages 72 to 187 are an integral part of these FI2EISTBE A RGETBRER —2BH -

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

,\\/T\/\E/Eui /II==N ?E

For the year ended 31 March 2015 #HEZ=Z—

hFE=A=1T—HILFE

2015 2014
ZE-AF —ET-MmF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T F#E&T FHT
Cash flows from operating activities BEEHZzHRERE
Cash generated from operations KB EL 7RG 38 9,968 73,791
Interest paid ERFE (3,335) (2,371)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERNEEFER (11,295) (5,994)
Mainland China corporate income B EREMEH
tax paid (714) (882)
Net cash (used in)/generated from  &&%E% (FTH) E4L
operating activities ZIREFEE (5,376) 64,544
Cash flows from investing activities REFHBZHERE
Additions of property, plant and REWME WEREE
equipment (100,852) (98,543)
Deposits paid for property, plant and  ¥1% - = K & &
equipment ZEfMiZE (1,658) (852)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE MENRE
plant and equipment ZF1S I8 38 1,089 558
Retirement of financial assets at fair ~ #REEIZ A FEE AR
value through profit or loss 2 G EE 1,279 6,375
(Purchase)/redemption of available- (BEE ) ~/#& @ 7] H &
for-sale financial asset MBEE (3,875) 3,875
Retirement of bond investment WERSFIRE - 1,428
Increase in interest in an associate  H— EIEE & A B Z #E S N (423) (576)
Interest received B U A B 1,572 4,049
Payment for product development 3% 5t & B B Ak R
cost (763) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEH B AR ZFEKE
subsidiaries 30(a) 156,455 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) & EBES (FTH)
investing activities 2R FRE 52,824 (83,686)

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2014/15



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BARSRER

For the year ended 31 March 2015 HE=—Z—HAF=A=+—HIEFE

2015 2014
—E—-Af —T—MmF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T F&xT FHT
Cash flows from financing activities BIZEFEIZRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITE RS HIE 150,000 90,000
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER (134,741) (106,930)
Proceeds from shares issued TTHXT%ZFM%?K 1,979 =
Dividends paid 2R E B (54,633) (35,398)
Net cash used in financing activities Bl E FEEFAZ R &F 5 (37,395) (52,328)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and B¢ MIR&FEWIE M~
cash equivalents ORD) 58 10,053 (71,470)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange [ & % &) 57 22
rates (2,468) (2,751)
Cash and cash equivalents, ReNASEEY  £1)
beginning of year 169,404 243,625
Cash and cash equivalents, ReMASEEY T8
end of year 176,989 169,404

The notes on pages 72 to 187 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

FI2EISTEZM T AGEMIERER —2BH -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 15 R R P wE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Suga International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in Bermuda on 28 September 2001.
The Company’'s shares have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 18 September 2002.

The Company is an investment holding company.
The Company and its subsidiaries (together, “the
Group”) are principally engaged in the research and
development, manufacturing and sales of electronic
products, moulds and plastic products. The Group has
operations mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macao.

The address of the Company’s registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.
These financial statements were approved for issue by
the Board of Directors on 25 June 2015.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basis and principal accounting policies applied
in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied for all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the inclusion at fair
value of available-for-sale financial assets, and
financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss, and investment property
which are carried at fair value.

—RER

EEEREEERAR ([ARAF])R =
EE—FAA-TN\BEBREEMKL
RERRBERAR -ARRERNHBE-FT
“ENATN\BRREBFBHARIMER
R ([BERFT]) Eme

RRABREERRE - AR AR HH
BAR (SE[AEE])TEREEFE
m RANBRBERMANFE BER
HEXB - AKEXGEEMUNERE - F
B Ko B

AATR 2 EM# =R RClarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda °

B BAEFHEIN REMBRERABTAEE
NEHNN - R-_ZE—RHFA-_+HH =
Ee b ETIBZETIFRE -

EEERBRBE

BN EHEEMBRRARAEERTE
SABREINANT R B AEREIN
ERRNIBEERFEHERER -

2.1 IRBEE

AEE MG S MERR IR BB
B EER ([BBBMBREER])
BB I Z R A B RRIRBE £ K
RERERE WiEBRATEA
AHHENBEERRAFEZA
EaR B EELRMBGEE (B
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Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2 EEGHHREE @)

2.1 RBIEE (&)

The consolidated financial statements are
prepared in accordance with the applicable
requirements of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial year and the
comparative period.

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a high degree
of judgement or complexity, and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.

(@) The following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretations are
mandatory for the Group’s financial year
beginning on 1 April 2014 and have
been adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets
(Amendment) and financial liabilities
HKAS 36 Recoverable amount
(Amendment) disclosures for non-
financial assets
HKFRS 10, Investment entities

HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

(Amendments)
HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and
(Amendment) continuation of hedge
accounting
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21  Levies

The adoption of above new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation has
had no material effect on the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b) The following new standards, amendments
to standards and interpretation have been
issued but are not effective for the financial

year beginning on 1 April 2014 and have not

2 EEEFRBRBIE#

2.1

i

(b)

REE(F)

TH R ER 2 EE] R #
BEBEM AR —NEM
A—B3zERRZMREE
MARAER B REREER

been early adopted by the Group:

B

Effective for the
accounting period
beginning on or after
BRARUTHHASR
ZEFRBHEEHE

HKAS 1 (Amendment)

ERGETERNELR
CEHENY),

HKAS 16 and 38
(Amendments)

BB HERELN KX
BB ERIFE385R
(BFTA)

HKAS 16 and 41
(Amendment)

BEEGFENFEIHR K
BAGFERFEL15R
CCHEN),

HKAS 19 (Amendment)

BB ERIZE195%
(BETAR)
HKAS 27 (Amendment)

FE e ERE275%

CEHEN)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

B8 B 7S 5 ZE BI B 1057
RBERE TR F285%
(BRI A)

HKFRS 9

BB WS R FER

Disclosure initiative

WSl

1 January 2016
—ET—RF—H—H

Clarification of acceptance methods of
depreciation and amortisation
ERBH RS HIAZRE

1 January 2016

—E—RF—H—H

Agriculture: bearer plants 1 January 2016

BXE:-EEMED —ET-RF—H—H

Defined benefit plans: Employee 1 July 2014
contributions

RERMNGE :EBERA —ZT—MmFE+LHA—H

Equity method in separate financial
statements

RBIMBHRERA 2 A

1 January 2016
—E—RF—H—H

Sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture

KREEHHBERRHEEDRE - =
ZEMEBEEHEEHRA

1 January 2016

—R"FE—H—H

Financial instruments
BT A

1 January 2018
—E-NF—HA—H
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B TS R T 5
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EEEFBRBE®
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 mBEE (£)
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
Effective for the
accounting period
beginning on or after
HARNT BE=
ZERBMESHAE
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment entities: applying 1 January 2016
HKAS 28 (Amendments) the consolidation exception
BEMBHRELERFI0% - REER  BRAGE ARNOIIMER —E-RF—HA—H

BBMBHRELEREL2
St R B G ERIF 285

(BETA)

HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for acquisitions of interests 1 January 2016
in joint operations

BEEMBHRELERSELIT WESEEBERZSTERE —E-RF—H—H

(BRI )

HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferred accounts 1 January 2016

BEMBMEENFE145: EBTRLTKRE —E-RF—-HA—H

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2017

ERMBHRELAEIST: RKEETEFPSHZHA —T—+F—H—H

Annual improvements project Annual improvements 2010 — 2012 cycle 1 July 2014

FEER 2 —E-TFEE_T-_FRAHZ —E-MF+LHA—H
FEHE

Annual improvements project Annual improvements 2011 — 2013 cycle 1 July 2014

FEBERE TR _T-=FRHr —ZE-NFE+LH—H
FESE

Annual improvements project Annual improvements 2012— 2014 cycle 1 January 2016

FE R 2 —E-_FE_T-NFAHZ —ET-RF—-H—H
FEGE

Management is in the process of making ERERIEFMZEZEHMNA

an assessment of the likely impact of these B EHREREREDE

changes but is not yet in a position to state BYAEENEZSTHER

whether any substantial changes to the S REFBRERAH R LR

Group’s significant accounting policies and/ AIEREDH) o

or the presentation of its financial statements

will result.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(c)

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9
“Accounts and Audit” of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation as from the Group’s first financial
year commencing on or after 3 March 2014
in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of expected impact
of the changes in the Companies Ordinance
on the consolidated financial statements in
the period of initial application of Part 9 of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that
the impact is unlikely to be significant and
only the presentation and the disclosure
of information in the consolidated financial
statements will be affected.

2.2 CONSOLIDATION

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

2 EZEFRBRBE

2.1 RMEELE (8)

(c)
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2 =

BB RAHED ($622F )
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E_Z—MF=A=RA=z#%
B 46 69 & B B B E B e o R
5 B I At 2 R R BI85
BRERF DR G (%622
B)FEIORNPHE 256 M BRK
MWIEHRE - BTG &
ZTEEEEAVE Y KE
HIEAMBRRAEHNZ7
MEBRERTE -

A< B

Bt 8 2 =)

P /8 2 )45 N 55 [ 1 A 4 o
ZCER(BEREABILER)
— R EEBEEREEZR
B-EAEEAZSZTHLH
BERMABZAZEHm BARE
NEBEHEB I ENTEX
FEHE - A AEBEEZEHZE
B-BRAREEGEEBEE
AEBZBAHAKR-MBA
AIEEGIER I BRIFELES
N

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2014/15



Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

2 EEGHHREE @)

22 #7AKRAE (&)
(@) MBRF (&)

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree's identifiable net
assets.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as
a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

AEBEBKBEREBE G
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The difference
between the fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The
fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Inter-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group's
accounting policies.

2 EZEFBRBE 2

22 #ABKRE (&)

(@)

Bt 8 2 =) (42)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

(b) Separate financial statements

(c)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which
the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor's share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investment
in an associate includes goodwill identified
on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate
is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B T5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued)
(c) Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit
or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as
the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying
value and recognises the amount adjacent to
‘share of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in
the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
The amounts reported by associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies
adopted by the Group.

Gains and losses on dilution of equity
interests in associates are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 CONSOLIDATION (Continued) 22 tRalREB (&)
(d) Joint arrangements (d) B&ERH

2 EEGHHREE @)

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all
joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11
investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group's share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. The
Group's investments in joint ventures include
goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in a
joint venture, any difference between the
cost of the joint venture and the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the joint
venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint ventures
(which includes any long term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the joint ventures), the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its joint venture is eliminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in
a joint venture. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of
joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3 SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
Executive Directors collectively who make strategic
decisions.

2.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

(@) Functional and presentation
currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group's entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$),
which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION
(Continued)

(c) Group companies (c) EEETALAA
SEETHMENEEREE®

2 EEGHHREE @)

2.4 HNEHME (48)

The results and financial position of all

the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on the acquisition of a foreign entity are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2 EZEFBRBE 2

25 W% BENMKE

Leasehold land interests classified as finance
leases and all other property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are charged
to the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance leases
commence amortisation from the time when the
land interest becomes available for its intended
use. Amortisation on leasehold land classified as
finance lease and depreciation of other assets
are calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate costs less residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as

finance leases 38 to 48 years
Buildings 35-48 years
Leasehold improvements 5-10 years
Plant and machinery 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EECTHHEREBE &)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 25 MxE WE K& (&)

(Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes all
attributable costs of bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use. This includes direct
costs of construction as well as interest expense
capitalised during the period of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs will cease
and the construction in progress is transferred
to appropriate categories within property, plant
and equipment when the construction activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended
use are completed. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction in progress.

Up to the date when an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property carried at fair
value, the Group depreciates the property and
recognizes any impairment losses that have
occurred. Any difference at that date between
the carrying amount of the property and its fair
value in the revaluation is included in revaluation
surplus.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that is not occupied by the Group. It also
includes properties that are being constructed or
developed for future use as investment properties.
Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance leases.
Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried
at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are
recorded in the income statement as part of a
valuation gain or loss in ‘other gains — net’.

LAND USE RIGHTS

Land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Land use rights are amortised using the straight-
line method over the period of the land use rights.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(@)

(b)

Customer relationship

Contractual customer relationship acquired
in a business combination is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The
contractual customer relationship has a
finite useful life and is subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method over the expected life of the
customer relationship of five years.

Product development

Costs associated with maintaining software
programmes are recognised as an expense
as incurred. Development costs that are
directly attributable to the design and
testing of identifiable and unique products
controlled by the Group are recognised as
intangible assets when the following criteria
are met:

o It is technically feasible to complete
the software product so that it will be
available for use;

° Management intends to complete the
product and use or sell it;

o There is an ability to use or sell the
product;

o It can be demonstrated how the
product will generate probable future
economic benefits;

o Adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the
product are available; and

o The expenditure attributable to the
product during its development can be
reliably measured.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

2 EEEFBRBE #

2.8 BIVEE (#)

(b) Product development (Continued)

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised
as part of the software product include the
software development employee costs and
an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do
not meet these criteria are recognised as an
expense as incurred.

Development costs previously recognised as
an expense are not recognised as an asset in
a subsequent period.

Development costs recognised as assets are
amortised over their estimated useful lives,
which does not exceed three years.

2.9 GOODWILL

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identified net
assets acquired. Goodwill is recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently at cost less provisions
for impairment. If a deficit arises, it is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”),
or groups of CGUs, that are expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit
or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at
the operating segment level.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 GOODWILL (Continued)

2 EEGHHREE @)

29 ®E (&)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

2.10IMPAIRMENT OF INVESTMENTS IN

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND
JOINT VENTURES, AND OTHER NON-
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, or
intangible assets not ready to use, are not subject
to amortisation and are tested at least annually for
impairment. Otherwise, assets that are subject to
amotisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.11FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets
in the following categories: at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purposes for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

0

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are
classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges. Assets
in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date which are
classified as non-current assets. Loans
and receivables comprise trade and
other receivables, bond investment
and cash and cash equivalents in the
balance sheets (Note 2.13 and 2.14).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
(@) Classification (Continued) (a)

2 EEGHHREE @)

2IIMBEE (#)
S (E)

(iii)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
are non-derivatives that are either
designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the
end of the reporting period.

(b) Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade-date
— the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss” category
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary
and non-monetary securities classified as
available for sale are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-
sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated
fair value adjustments recognised in equity
are included in the consolidated income
statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or
the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are recognised only
if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EECTHHEREBE &)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
(d) Impairment of financial assets

2IIMBEE (#)
(d) MBEERE (&)

(Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the
amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The asset's carrying
amount is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised (such as an improvement in
the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For equity
investments classified as available for sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial
asset previously recognised in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognised in
the separate consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the
separate consolidated income statement on
equity instruments are not reversed through
the separate consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.12INVENTORIES

2 EZERBRBE 2

212778

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

2.13TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment.

2.14CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

2.15SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EECTHHEREBE &)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2.16FENE ZER K E A EN A

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Trade and
other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.17BORROWINGS

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

2.18BORROWING COSTS

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.19CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

2 EZEFBRBE 2

2. 19BN 8 RIEREFT 15 T

The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, its subsidiaries and its
associates operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX

2 EEGHHREE @)

219NH RIEREFT 1S TR (&)

(Continued)

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.20EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined
contribution pension schemes for its
employees. The pension plans are funded
by payments from employees and by
the Group. The Group's contributions to
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance are
expensed as incurred. The assets are
held separately from those of the Group
and managed by related independent
professional fund managers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.20EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

For employees in Mainland China, the Group
contributes on a monthly basis to various
defined contribution retirement benefit
plans organised by relevant municipal
and provincial governments based on
specified percentages of the relevant
employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal
and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retired employees
under these plans and the Group has
no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits beyond the contributions made.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which
the entity receives services from employees
as consideration for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an
expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted:

i) including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

i)  excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

iii) including the impact of any non-
vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)
(b) Share-based compensation

2 EEGHHREE @)

220E®A (&)
(b) R p 5B (47)

(Continued)

Non-market performance and service
conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are
expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. In
addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant
date and therefore the grant date fair value
is estimated for the purposes of recognising
the expense during the period between
service commencement period and grant
date.

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on
the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the
income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investments in subsidiaries
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.20EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employees’ entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employees’ entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

(d) Other benefits

Other directors’ and employees’ obligations
are recorded as a liability and charged to
the consolidated income statement when
the Group is contractually obliged or when
there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

2.21 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations is small.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 EECTHHEREBE &)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 PROVISIONS (Continued) 22184 (&)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

2.22CONTINGENT LIABILITY

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change
in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

2.23REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and when specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group’s activities as described
below. The Group bases its estimates on historical
results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.23REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells a range
of electronic, moulds and plastic products
in the wholesale market. Sales of goods
are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products, the
amount of sales can be reliably measured
and it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entities.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans
is recognised using the original effective
interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.

2 EZERBRBE 2
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(b)

(c)
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 LEASES

(@)

(b)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor), including upfront payment made
for leasehold land and land use rights,
are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’'s commencement at the lower of
the fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the
finance lease balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in current
and non-current borrowings. The interest
element of the finance cost is recognised
in the consolidated income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

2 EEGHHREE @)

2241HE
(@

(b)

g ik

FLER A D R K E R
BHHEARBZHLGY 55E
REHEN -ZELEHHH
EEMER B B EAWER 2 7]
EER(BEAEELE R LT
Ui AETEN 2 FIR) - IREE
NE RS S Wa KRR -

Rl & FH A

BE A AR [E 2 B2 O oy
BEEAKEZEERNIG
MEHAO BEHORELDH
MAH REEMEZATE
FREEENRBEZBREE
BRAERN - BHSNAREDR
BEMBEEMR UBHAX
NREHOBRBERRENX
HE-MEMEBRR HE
MeAEF AR RIERBIE
E-BMEERZMNEEY &M
N WS KRR AR E
HiM 2 B B AR B E BB E S 81

%«Zo

EERREEFRAGF | 2014/15F

103



104

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

2.25FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance
contract) is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. The Group does not recognise
liabilities for financial guarantee at inception, but
performs a liability adequacy test at each reporting
date by comparing its net liability regarding the
financial guarantee with the amount that would
be required if the financial guarantee would result
in a present legal or constructive obligation. If the
liability is less than its present legal or constructive
obligation amount, the entire difference is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
immediately.

2.26 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments are initially
measured at fair value on the date the derivative
contracts are entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair values. The method of
recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedged
instrument, and if so, the nature of item being
hedged.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had not
designated any derivatives as hedging
instruments. Changes in fair values of derivatives
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are being
included in the consolidated income statement as
“other gains, net”.

2.27DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group's financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders in case of final dividend
and the Company’s directors in case of interim
dividend.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risks: foreign exchange risk, cash
flow and fair value interest rate risk, credit
risk, and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
performance.

(i)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong
and Mainland China and its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, United States dollars (“US$”) and
Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign currency risk
arises when future commercial transactions
or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not an
entity’s functional currency. As Hong Kong
dollars are pegged against United States
dollars, management considers that the
Group is mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk with respect to RMB. Management
monitors foreign currency exchange
exposure and will take measures to minimise
the currency translation risk. As at 31 March
2015, apart from certain non-deliverable
forward foreign exchange contracts
entered into with commercial banks which
were stated at fair value, the Group has
not used any financial instruments to
hedge against foreign currency risk. The
exchange rate of RMB to foreign currencies
and the remittance of RMB funds out of
Mainland China are subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the Mainland Chinese
Government.

As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, if both
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars
had strengthened/weakened by 5% against
RMB with all other variables held constant,
the post-tax profit for each year would
have changed mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies of the relevant group
companies, as follows.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(i)

3 MBEKRER &)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued) 3.1 BBEREZE (&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) ShPERBE (&)
2015 2014
—T-1f —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FT#ET FHET
Post-tax profit increase/ BrFi g m g, Crl )
(decrease)
— Strengthen 5% —H1E5% (7,419) (159)
— Weakened 5% —B7{E5% 7,419 159

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates as the
Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets except for the loan receivable and
cash and cash equivalents, details of
which are disclosed in Notes 19 and 21
respectively.

The Group's interest rate risk primarily
relates to its bank borrowings. Borrowings
obtained at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group
currently does not hedge its interest rate
risk. However, management monitors the
related interest rate risk exposure closely
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk exposure should the need arise.
The interest rates and terms of repayment of
borrowings are disclosed in Note 23.

The Group has no fixed interest rate
borrowings. Therefore it does not have any
fair value interest rate risk.

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, if the interest
rates on bank borrowings had been 50
basis points higher/lower than the prevailing
interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$421,000 (2014:
HK$357,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate bank borrowings.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMBEREIRE &)

(Continued)
3.1 W¥RREE (&)
(i) E &R

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
The Group’s financial assets are trade
and other receivables, available-for-sale
financial assets, bond investment, amount
due from a joint venture and cash at banks.
The amounts of those assets stated in the
consolidated balance sheet represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets.

The Group’s credit risk is concentrated on
a number of major and long established
customers. Trade receivables from the top
five customers amounted to approximately
48% (2014: 55%) of the Group’s total
trade receivables. The Group has policies
in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with appropriate credit histories
and to limit the amount of credit exposure to
any individual customer. The Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable at each balance sheet date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
Group’s past experience in collection of
trade receivables falls within the recorded
allowances. In order to minimise credit risk
to the Group, the Group has certain non-
recourse factoring arrangements with banks
to cover the credit risk.
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B 5 R Y A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

The credit risk on bond investment and
cash at banks are limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. Transactions in relation
to available-for-sale financial assets and
derivative financial instruments, if any, are
only carried out with financial institutions of
high reputation. The Group has policies that
limit the amount of credit exposure to any
one financial institution.

For loans and receivables, amounts due
from a joint venture and subsidiaries, the
Group regularly monitors the financial
positions of these companies/counterparties
to assess their recoverability.

No credit limits were exceeded during the
reporting period, and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
these counterparties.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by controlling the level of
inventories, closely monitoring the turnover
days of receivables, monitoring its working
capital requirements and keeping credit
lines available.

3 MBEKRER &)

31 MBEREER(#)
(i) E & B ()

(iv)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Management monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s bank facilities and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected
cash flows.

The table below analyses the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities and net-
settled derivative financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date
to the contractual maturity date. Derivative
financial liabilities are included in the
analysis if their contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing

Notes to the Financial Statements

3 MBEREIE(
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31 MBAREE(#)

(iv) i EJ] ﬁ' ﬁﬂ

Af@ﬁ(%ﬁiﬁﬂiﬁibmi%%
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Al e

EE&
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NRETRAEEZIFTEMH

BEREFEE

AELEE 2 HTHE

ﬁﬁﬁkﬁfﬁﬂjﬁ ERBEERRE
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ﬁF%J

of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed in TME
the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows.
Group A&
Less than Between Between Over
lyear 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years Total
PR—F -EmE WELE BRLE &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FTET FTi#Ex FTET FTET
31 March 2015 —E-1f
=B=+—-H
Trade payables BB SHRR 148,930 - - - 148,930
Other payables and Hib B HE
accruals LIEBH 38,838 - - - 38,838
Borrowings Fi‘é 90,412 2,997 9,727 - 103,136
Net seftled derivative — FEETASRTA
financial instruments 4,181 - - - 4,181
282,361 2,997 9,727 - 295,085
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B 5 R Y A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS (Continued)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)

B ERER (&)

31 MBEREER(#)
(iv) RENE R (&)

Group (Continued) AEE (&)
Less than Between Between Over
lyear land?2years 2and b years 5 years Total
PR—F —EME WEAF R F Bat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
31 March 2014 —E-MmE
=BA=+-H
Trade payables BT E SRR 171,749 - - - 171,749
Other payables and Hib I HE
accruals RIEGTER 28,144 = = = 28,144
Borrowings f&E 38,740 36,188 9,000 3,717 87,645
Net seftled derivative — FEETASRTA
financial instruments 2,398 - - - 2,398
241,031 36,188 9,000 3,717 289,936
Company A A
Less than Between Between Over
lyear 1and2years 2and 5 years 5 years Total
PR—% —-EWME MELE BEALE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FEL Ti#x TEL T#Rx
31 March 2015 —E5-1f
=ZA=+-H
Other payables and H e 50R
accruals LIEFTER 2,424 - - - 2,424
31 March 2014 —E-mE
ZA=+-H
Other payables and Hth BN FUE
accruals REER 3,082 - - - 3,082
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debts.

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

3 R E R

=8 (2)

32 EARREREE
AEBEREAZ BRAREREE
BESIHFABAR 2 - (T AR AR R 7 2R [ 3
REMFSR TG AR - AR
FRIFERGERE  WRIEEARKA -

B ABRENGERE  AEES e
FEME IR 2R E S5 - BT
ek EEE - ARIRER -

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the K%EEEEE mE B it
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total LEEABEERE ﬁ?%f =
borrowings divided by total equity as shown in the FrniatEmat®
consolidated balance sheet.
2015 2014
ZE-A1F —E-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#Ex FHET
Total bank borrowings RITEEESE 100,788 85,529
Total equity G 645,216 518,529
Gearing ratio BEABEKLE 15.6% 16.5%
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B 5 R Y A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The table below analyses the Group's financial
assets and liabilities carried at fair value as at 31
March 2015 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. Such
inputs are categorised into three levels within a
fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

See Note 8 for disclosures of the investment
property that is measured at fair value.

3 MBEKRER &)

33 RFEME
TRAXEER -_T—HF=A
S+ —BEATEARZUBEE
REERABEDTEMBZEES
EZBABBRBRIEL 2T %%
BABBRATFEEREETS A
AT =EER:

s REBEEHRENEEMSZ
HECREHRAE) (F—R) -

o WENINZBAE BFEE—
Fz Al EE (AR EER) HE
E(MBHEEBRSL)AEZE
EXBE(E-R) -

3 3F LA DRI E 35 8o (BDA
REZ2BAR) REEZBE
FEBEBWAE(E=R) -

ot

BRRAVEFEZRENEZR

BHE2HMES -

The following table presents the Group’s financial TREJINAKEBER-_ZT—RFR=
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair T—NE=A=1+—HERAFET
value at 31 March 2015 and 2014: EZHBEERGE:
2015 —E—HEF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— -t F=R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#&xT T#ExT T#ExT T#ExT
Assets: BE:

Available-for-sale financial ~ AJ £ i & B IS & E

asset - - 13,358 13,358
Liabilities =L
Derivative financial MEEMIA

instruments - 4,181 - 4,181
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(Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 7SRRI 5
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEKRERE &)
3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued) 3.3 R EM™E (&)
2014 —E= 45
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B E_8 E=1K =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATT FATT FATT FATT
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale financial ~ B it H E BT IS & &
asset - - 7,547 7,547
Financial assets at fair value & AF B AR
through profit or loss LHBEE 1,279 = = 1,279
Derivative financial TEemITE
instruments - 145 - 145
Total Assets EERE 1,279 145 7,547 8,971
Liabilities =1
Derivative financial MEEMITE
instruments - 2,398 - 2,398
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 RERN F— =Mz EWET
during the year. o] B R o
The following table presents the changes in level TRERE=HIEREHEEZE—_ZT—F
3 instruments for the year ended 31 March 2015 FR-ZZ-MF=ZRA=+—RHLF
and 2014: Ez&Fo
2015 2014
—E—-RfF —E—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET TATT
At 1 April A A—H 7,547 4,323
Addition NE 3,875 =
Fair value gain NFE R = 1,936 7,099
Redemption fEM - (3,875)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 13,358 7,547
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B 5 R Y A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION (Continued)

The fair values of financial instruments traded
in active markets are based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market
price is the current bid price. These instruments
are included in level 1 which comprise primarily
equity investments classified as trading securities
or available for sale. The Group’s listed bond
under financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss as at 31 March 2014 is level 1 financial asset
and its fair value is determined by its quoted price
in an active market.

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market are determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation
technigues maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little
as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to assess the fair value
an instrument are observable, the instrument
is included in level 2. The Group’s derivative
financial instruments are level 2 financial
instruments and their fair values are determined
with reference to quotations provided by various
banks. The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward exchange
rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting
value discounted back to present value.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. The Group's available-for-
sale financial assets as at 31 March 2015 above
are level 3 financial assets and their fair values are
determined based on the net asset values of the
funds calculated by the fund administrators with
reference to the quoted prices in active markets of
the underlying investments of the funds.

3 MBEKRER &)

3.3 RY¥{EME (&)
RERMZEB 2 2MT AR ER
REE R Z2TIGMERTE o 8 0] AR
SHWTEHERI - R5E &1
*¥7EE REREHEERBEINE
RE - A ERERRERREHETT
ZNFEMBER G QMBS HERAE
Bmis e -mERERFRTHE %F
THBRE-— R -F—RITETER
ENEREERSFHAAIHEREL
AR E - KEBR —Z—NF=A
=+—HEATFERABEZYE
BEEHTN 2 LTEHBE —RUB
BE EAVERERNERMS 2R
BmEE -

WHNERMEEBEZEMITAR
FEAEERMTEE - 2 S HERM
BERABRAGRATSEE I
EERCEMENERZMAE - M
EITANRFEMAZMBEEHA
BEYRBRASG MRTABRFE
M- AREEZITESRMTABNE
RFBEITE MERAFEZ2RTRR
TRt MEREE - EHINEEKZ
RFEDERAREER 22 HER
WS EEREREDRE.

i —IBHZIET B AELFFIAE
RAGMSEHEEBEAERE AIZTAR
RE=ZF-R_ZE-—HF=A=+—
B b AEEZ A EEENEEE
REZRFBEE  ERFEDRIE
HEEBAZZEGZHABRER
ARSI BREFECESEER

BEE -

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2014/15




CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

(A) INCOME TAXES

The Group is subject to various taxes in a number
of jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. When the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and income tax charges in the
period in which such estimate is changed.

4

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

EZGRFMERAIE

AT Ah R A B E 1 R S M B b R RAY
RWAM SEE BERERBEEES
BEMNARIEES-

AEERAKIEL T RBR SIS
HAEELBEES RANERERY
% A EARBR TR REEEHEE
REBEEELEEAREY FERER
KT X it -

(A) TS
REBAZMRZ ERDEER 2 HIA
RTE TSR B R A E L E AT -
BHEZHER S M EZ&RBER
BEM B E R P HETE © iSRS
RENPCHFAREAERN ZBBTE
RIE HIR B HA P 15 B SR E P 15 Bt
B

REEERSRAEAR BERERN
i M CABH R B B = RA Sk B TR S 1R R
BREMETEREZHEIELENA
BE -HMAMBRERLAABR
BRZRSTEMATEZHHRER
ZIEERBEEREHAX

EERREEFRAGF | 2014/15F

115



116

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 R Y A

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(B)

ESTIMATED WRITE-DOWNS OF
INVENTORIES TO NET REALISABLE
VALUE

The Group writes down inventories to net
realisable value based on an assessment of
the realisability of inventories. Write-downs of
inventories are recorded where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be realised. The identification of write-downs
requires the use of judgement and estimates.
These estimates are based on the correct market
condition and the historical experience of selling
prices of similar nature. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and write-downs of inventories in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

ESTIMATED PROVISION FOR
IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE RECEIVABLES
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group makes provision for impairment of
trade receivables and other receivables based
on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables and other receivables. Provisions are
applied to trade receivables and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
For trade receivables, the assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and the
current market condition, and requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and impairment is recognised in the
year in which such estimate has been changed.
For other receivables, the provision was made by
reference to the difference between the carrying
amount of the other receivables and the present
value of estimated future cash flows.

4 EEGFHEAEH &)

(B)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(D)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — SHARE-BASED
PAYMENTS

The determination of the fair value of the share
options granted requires estimates in determining,
among others, the expected volatility of the
share price, the expected dividend yield, the
risk-free interest rate for the life of the option,
and the number of options that are expected
to become exercisable as stated in Note 26.
Where the outcome of the number of options
that are exercisable is different, such difference
will impact the consolidated income statement in
the subsequent remaining vested period of the
relevant share options.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS,
INVESTMENT PROPERTY AND
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of financial assets and derivative
financial instruments that are traded in an active
market are determined by the quoted market
prices.

The fair value of investment property is
determined by using valuation technique. Details
of the judgement and assumptions have been
disclosed in Note 8.

For the fair values of financial assets and
derivative financial instruments not traded in an
active market, the Group would use the quoted
price provided by counterparty to estimate the
fair values. The methodologies, models and
assumptions used in valuing these financial
assets and derivative financial instruments require
judgement by management which are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each
balance sheet date. For further details refer to
section 3.3 above.
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B 5 R Y A

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(F)

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group tests annually whether goodwill
has suffered any impairment, in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.9.
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations prepared on the basis of
management’s assumptions and estimates (Note
2.10). These calculations require the use of
estimates.

ESTIMATED USEFUL LIVES AND
ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Group amortises its intangible assets with
finite useful lives on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful
lives reflect the management’s estimates of the
periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these intangible
assets. Intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis over a period of three to five
years. The Group tests whether the intangible
assets have suffered any impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable in
accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.10. The recoverable amounts of the
intangible assets have been determined as the
higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, i.e. the amount for which the asset
could be sold between knowledgeable and willing
parties, net of estimated costs of disposal. These
require the use of estimates.

4 EEET

(F)
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(H)

ESTIMATED USEFUL LIVES OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's property, plant and equipment,
and land use rights have been depreciated or
amortised based on their estimated useful lives
and estimated residual values. Management has
reviewed the estimated useful lives and considers
they are appropriate. These estimates are based
on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment and land
use rights of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response
to market conditions. Management will increase
the depreciation and amortization charge where
useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives or it will write off or write down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and
therefore depreciation and amortisation expense
in the future periods.
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B 5 R Y A

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the Executive Directors of the Group (collectively
referred to as the “CODM”) that make strategic
decisions. The CODM reviews the internal reporting of
the Group in order to assess performance and allocate
resources.

The CODM considers the business from a product
perspective and assesses separately the performance of
electronic products, and moulds and plastics products.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of the results of
reportable segments. Finance income and costs,
corporate income and expenses, disposal gain of
subsidiaries, relocation costs, fair value gains of
financial assets and share of loss of an associate are not
included in the results for each operating segment that
are reviewed by the CODM. Other information provided
to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the financial statements.

Revenue from external customers is shown after
elimination of inter-segment revenue. Sales between
segments are carried out at mutually agreed terms.
The revenue from external parties reported to CODM
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement.

Assets of reportable segments exclude deferred income
tax assets, tax recoverable, available-for-sale financial
assets, bond investment, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loan receivable, interest in
an associate and corporate assets, all of which are
managed on a central basis. Liabilities of reportable
segments exclude current and deferred income tax
liabilities and corporate liabilities. These are part of
the reconciliation to total balance sheet assets and
liabilities.
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W SRR M 5
SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER @)
The segment information provided to the CODM for BEHE_ET—RHEER_Z—NWE=A
the reportable segments for the years ended 31 March =t HIEFER KO HEREELEER
2015 and 2014 is as follows: RARMBZDEERNOT
2015
ZE-LfE
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Elimination Total
BER
EFER BBER ok &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET TF#ET FHET TF#ET
Revenue Wz
Revenue from external customers — JMNREF W 1,317,435 24,489 - 1,341,924
Inter-segment revenue R W - 15,880 (15,880) -
1,317,435 40,369 (15,880) 1,341,924
Results of reportable segments AE/NBEFE 66,487 (2,528) - 63,959
A reconciliation of results of ERNEEE
reportable segments to profit for B NRF 2
the year is as follows: HERMT
Results of reportable segments MEHRDEHEE 63,959
Unallocated income, net KOBRBA  F8 126
Other income HblA 647
Other gains, net Hiplss 55 117,914
Operating profit gl 182,646
Finance income BEKA 1,572
Finance costs BE R (3,364)
Provision for impairment of loan EREWFERE
receivable BiE (2,750)
Provision for impairment of interest  FABf & A A7) 2 %
in an associate and amount due &N
from an associate FIE R B (1,752)
Share of loss of an associate JE (b B & N B &5 18 (640)
Profit before income tax B P15 T R & A 175,712
Income tax expense Fris i s (5,698)
Profit for the year F A4 7 170,014
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B 5 R Y A

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

5 HEER#)

2015
ZE-RfE
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Unallocated Total
HER
ETER BRBER RNE &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Other segment information HitvpEER
Depreciation on property, plant and ¥ % - K= K 3%
equipment e 21,854 1,131 2,310 25,295
Amortisation of intangible asset BB 5,154 - - 5,154
Amortisation of land use rights - b 50 A 4 2 4 1,080 58 80 1,218
Additions to non-current assets FERBEEIARE
(other than interest in an (REtERRZ
associate, financial assets and Em MBEE
deferred tax assets) NMIEERIAE =
BR4M) 109,659 14 1,808 111,481
Income tax expense TS X 5,620 164 (86) 5,698
2014
—T-mE
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Elimination Total
BARK
EFEm BREM #1355 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHAT FATT THAT
Revenue Yezm
Revenue from external customers — SNRE B fizs 1,216,396 28,432 - 1,244,828
Inter-segment revenue DB R — 12,300 (12,300) -
1,216,396 40,732 (12,300) 1,244 828
Results of reportable segments AEHRDEEE 94,806 (2,583) - 92,223
A reconciliation of results of AEHRDEEE
reportable segments to profit EL4F A ) 2
for the year is as follows: HERIT
Results of reportable segments AEHRDEEE 92,223
Unallocated expenses, net ApRAY FE (2,595)
Other income H At Y A 411
Other gains, net Hlss 55 622
Operating profit S Al 90,661
Finance income A& WA 4,049
Finance costs BE AR (2,371)
Share of loss of an associate JE (b Hs & A B & 18 (742)
Profit before income tax B P15 B R s Al 91,597
Income tax expense FeHMAx (10,688)
Profit for the year F R A 80,909
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B 7SRRI 5
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 SEER @)
2014
—E-mF
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products  Unallocated Total
BAER
BFEm BRBEMm Kolc BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT FHT
Other segment information HitvpEER
Depreciation on property, plant and ¥ % - B K 3%
equipment e 9,130 1,769 3,169 14,068
Amortisation of intangible asset BB E 5,154 = = 5,154
Amortisation of land use rights - b {58 A 4 2 5 1,121 57 80 1,258
Additions to non-current assets FRBEELRE
(other than interest in an (REE AR Z
associate, financial assets and Hm MHREE
deferred tax assets) RBEERIEEE
BRoh) 98,353 66 124 98,543
Income tax expense FrisfimA > 10,739 (14) (37) 10,688
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B 5 R Y A

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment assets and segment liabilities as at 31
March and the reconciliation to the total assets and total

liabilities are as follows:

EER (&)

R=R=1t—RHZoBEER

DHREEN

BERERABEEYERNOT:

2015
—E—-AfF
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Total
HAR
EFES BBESR a%
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TET THET
Segment assets DEEE 832,245 21,874 854,119
Deferred income tax assets BIEFSEHEE 762
Tax recoverable A Y (8] 7 18 4,105
Unallocated: RAOME:
Property, plant and equipment #1% - &= M &G 40,765
Investment property "EY 10,100
Loan receivable B EWRIA 13,500
Other investments B & 21,069
Other unallocated assets HEARDBELEE 5,008
Total assets per consolidated A BERBERXR
balance sheet FIREERE 949,428
Segment liabilities DiEaE 186,221 3,235 189,456
Income tax payable FERFT SRR 9,370
Deferred income tax liabilites  IEIEFTEF B E 2,105
Unallocated: RAOM:
Bank borrowings RITEE 100,788
Other unallocated liabilities =i N =R | 2,493
Total liabilities per consolidated #4FABEBER
balance sheet FinBEEeE 304,212
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The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue from external customers by

IS RR MR
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 o¥EER#)
2014
—E—NF
Moulds and
Electronic plastic
products products Total
RAR
B Em BRBEMR A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FE T FET
Segment assets DIEEE 724,237 30,394 754,631
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTSIEE 2,811
Tax recoverable A Y (8] 77 18 257
Unallocated: ROE:
Property, plant and equipment #1% - = N & & 46,126
Interests in an associate i EANCI P Fe 1,702
Loan receivable Bk IE 16,250
Other investments HE g E 16,537
Other unallocated assets HEMADAELEE 3,149
Total assets per consolidated A EEBER
balance sheet FIREERE 841,463
Segment liabilities DEEE 194,674 4. 524 199,198
Income tax payable FERTET1S L 12,870
Deferred income tax liabilites — #EIEFTST B & 4,649
Unallocated: RO :
Bank borrowings RITEE 85,529
Other unallocated liabilities HEw ko afE 20,688
Total liabilities per consolidated #4F&EBEEER
balance sheet B EEsE 322,934

ARRRBREZM - AEEHE_F
—hER-_T-MEF=RA=+—HILFE

country for the year ended 31 March 2015 and 2014 is ERARE D ZINREFPWEDITAT :
as follows:

2015 2014

—E-1f —TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TAET

The United States of America = 560,669 523,527

Japan SN 311,398 276,167

United Kingdom [ 180,847 177,372

PRC (including Hong Kong) FE(BIERE) 164,547 126,135

Australia BN 53,718 61,140

Others i} 70,745 80,487

1,341,924 1,244,828
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B 5 R Y A

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets,
excluding deferred income tax assets, by geographical
locations is as follows:

5 HEER#)

AEBRES D ZIERBDEE (T B
EXEFTSIREE) DT

2015 2014

—E—1f —E—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#&T TAET

Hong Kong BB 89,262 88,962
Mainland China R B K B 272,691 208,808
Macao B 40 66
361,993 297,836

For the year ended 31 March 2015, there were
four customers each accounted for 10% or more
of the Group's external revenue with the sales of
HK$218,336,000, HK$178,167,000, HK$169,667,000
and HK$165,149,000 respectively. The revenue from
these four customers is attributable to the segment of
electronic products.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, there were
five customers each accounted for 10% or more
of the Group’s external revenue, with the sales of
HK$231,431,000, HK$178,446,000, HK$126,814,000,
HK$125,976,000 and HK$124,933,000 respectively.
The revenue from these five customers is attributable to
the segment of electronic products.

BE_ZE—hF=A=+—HIEE &
NEARFEZHEERAEB N 210%
s A k- 1 85 5 B8 9 Bl £218,336,000/%8
7T + 178,167,000/ 7T ~ 169,667,000/ 7T &
165,149,000/ T - REZEZEWLEZ X F 2 W
HhREETERDE-.

HE_ZT—NW&E=ZA=+—HIEE " A&
hERFEEERAERIINUEZ10%
g PA E T 8E E R 9 Bl £231,431,000%8
JT 178,446,000 7T ~ 126,814,000/ 7T *
125,976,0005% 7T & 124,933,000/ 7T ° &
BZSEREEFPZRE I REETERD

e
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B 7SRRI 5
6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 ME -BEBEERZE
Group
KEE
Leasehold Furniture
Land and improve-  Plant and and Construction
buildings ments  machinery equipment in progress Total
TR e KR ﬁﬁl\& .
BF  WERE e Fie EEIR Bt
HKSOOD  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000
THT THT THT THT THET THET
At 1 April 2013 TJ’;‘Z%‘E@EH—E
Cost BN . 97,854 23,750 140,946 39,030 7,207 308,787
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (17,139) (21,495 (1198520  (32,935) - (191,421)
Net book amount Em¥E 80,715 2,255 21,094 6,095 7,207 117,366
Year ended 31 March 2014 B2_Z2-M&
ZAZt-HLEE
Opening net book amount FNERFE 80,715 2,255 21,094 6,095 7,207 117,366
Additions NE 475 - 8,332 1,606 88,130 98,543
Disposals e - (67) (32) (20) = (119)
Depreciation neE (2,548) (711) (8,024) (2,785) - (14,068)
Exchange differences bE L E5 (194) (28) (354) (61) (142) (779)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 78,448 1,449 21,016 4,835 95,195 200,943
At 31 March 2014 R_Z— &
ZA=t-H
Cost %N N 98,086 14,245 122,782 29,273 95,195 359,581
Accumulated depreciation 2RNE (19638)  (12,796)  (101,766)  (24,438) - (158,638)
Net book amount REHE 78,448 1,449 21,016 4,835 95,195 200,943
Year ended 31 March 2015 & Z_F—-1%
ZA=+—-HLEEE
Opening net book amount ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬁxﬂ 78,448 1,449 21,016 4,835 95,195 200,943
Additions NE - 3,620 21,102 8,873 76,252 109,847
Disposals iheE - (562) - (496) - (1,058)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT
(Note 30) ( f¥3E30) (23,909) - - - - (23,909
Revaluation on land and EREEHLHRETF
buildings upon transfer 6,790 - - - - 6,790
Transfer to investment property E#Z R &M%
(Note 8) (M5E8) (10,100) - - - - (10,100)
Transfer from construction in B BAERR T2
progress . 110,932 51,136 8,375 - (170,443) -
Depreciation ik (3,894) (4,024) (13,683) (3,694) - (25,295)
Exchange differences fE R Z8 - - 11 5 83 99
Closing net book amount FREmFE 158,267 51,619 36,821 9,523 1,087 257,317
At 31 March 2015 ﬁ’é;%jil_ff- -
Cost A 169,944 59080 118785 28,530 1,087 377426
Accumulated depreciation 2REME (11,677) (7,461)  (81,964)  (19,007) - (120,109)
Net book amount REFE 158,267 51,619 36,821 9,523 1,087 257,317
Depreciation of HK$13,683,000 (2014: HK$8,024,000) # #13,683,0008 7T ( =T — pu 4F

8,024,000/ 7) E RN HE R AN 85 0 1M
11,612,000 7T ( =& — U £E : 6,044,000
BTN —MBRITHREEEHARNX -

has been expensed in cost of sales, and
HK$11,612,000 (2014: HK$6,044,000) has been
expensed in general and administrative expenses.
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B RS R R A
6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 WME BB ERZE®)
(Continued)
The Group’s interests in land and buildings held in REBRBERE L LMW REFIEED
Hong Kong are analysed as follows: T :
Group
AEHE
2015 2014
—E-1F —E—lE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Leases between 10-50 years FHLFHN T10E505 39,635 44,259
The remaining amounts represent properties held in the BRTIRIBEERPEFE M-
PRC.
As at 31 March 2015, certain bank borrowings are R-TE—FAF=A=+—8 5ETHRTHE
secured by land and buildings with a carrying amount B LABR M 1E 439,635,000/ 7T (=& —MY
of HK$39,635,000 (2014: HK$44,259,000) (Note 23). F : 44,259,000 7T ) 2 i RIEFIEH T
(K¥7E23) ©
7 LAND USE RIGHTS 7 LTi{ERE

The Group’s interests in land use rights represented
prepaid operating lease payments and their movements
and net book value are analysed as follows:

REBRIMERARZERAKENRE
BNHRIE FEESHREEFEZ DTN
T~

Group

AEHE
2015 2014
—FT-1f —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Beginning of the year REY] 58,973 60,798
Amortisation 5 (1,218) (1,258)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 30(a)) HEME AR (FzE30(@)) (2,227) =
Exchange differences E N ZE R - (567)
End of the year REL 55,528 58,973

Outside Hong Kong, held on: REBEINGE :

Leases of between 10 to 50 years HAFEN F102=504F 55,528 58,973
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W SRR M 5
INVESTMENT PROPERTY 8 WEME
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-1F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Beginning of the year RE A - -
Transfer from land and buildings (Note 6) %5 + i K2 F (HI556) 10,100 —
End of the year GRS 10,100 =
Note: B = -
Amounts recognised in profit and loss for investment property: MREMERBRERZ SR
2015 2014
—E—-1% —ZE—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Rental income a2 A 120 =

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance.

The Group'’s interest in investment property held in Hong Kong is
analysed as follows:

R-ZE-—RF=A=+—H AKELEFHER
REERREZRBEAENEE-

AEERBBREZIREMEZEEDITANT :

Group
AEH
2015 2014
_E-HF —E—OF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#ET T
Leases between 10-50 years AL FHN T10E505F 10,100 =

An independent valuation of the Group'’s investment property was
performed by the valuer, Ascent Partners Transaction Service
Limited, to determine the fair value of the investment property at
the date of transfer and as at 31 March 2015.

The valuation was determined by using direct comparison method
(Level 3 approach). Sales prices of comparable properties in close
proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size.

HEMLAAER SREERARNC RARE Y
BEMEETBIGE BT RADENERED
BR-F-AF=A=t-B2AFHE-

METDERERLEE (BE=R07R) EE - E#
MATLLBYE 2 EBERET2RE (Pl EE
Bz EZREHRE-
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B 755 s R B o
9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 9 EFEEE
Intangible assets represent customer relationship and B EEEEFPBRAREMAEKRAN K
product development costs. Movement during the year FAZEEHIOT -
is as follows:
Group
r&EH
Customer Product
relationship  development Total Total
ERHE EmpR @t FH
2015 2015 2015 2014
—E-4f —F-4fE —E-1F —E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FTET FTET T
Beginning of the year REA 15,892 - 15,892 21,046
Additions NE - 1,634 1,634 =
Amortisation (Note 31) 235 (PaE3l) (5,154) - (5,154) (5,154)
End of the year NGRS 10,738 1,634 12,372 15,892
Amortisation of HK$5,154,000 (2014: HK$5,154,000) # $H5,154,0008 70 ( — & — P4 4 :
is included in general and administrative expenses in 5,154,000/ 7T ) That AGR & Wk N —RR
the consolidated income statement. NITHREERERET
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BRI
10 GOODWILL 10 &
Group
rEHE
2015 2014
—F-IF —T-lF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TET
Beginning and end of the year REF R FK 3,949 3,949
IMPAIRMENT TEST FOR GOODWILL EESNERER:

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units (“CGU") within the electronic product segment.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period
which incorporate the following key assumptions.

BEDOEEAEENREFERDERNLZ
ReELEMN ([ReEELEBM]) -

BeELBU s lBeRYREREER
AEREE ARAEDRELEEEL
PREDFHRZMBREEEL ZRER
EFAET EBETINERERR-

2015 2014
—E-If —T-MmF

CGU 1 CGU 2 CGU 1 CGU 2

RE RE Re Be

EEEM] EEEMN2 EEEM] EEE?

Gross margin EFI=E 11.8% 22.0% 13.6% 21.8%

Revenue growth rate U2 18 £ K 5.0% 50% 30t0120%  3.0109.0%

Discount rate BRI X 12.0% 12.0% 12.0% 12.0%
These assumptions have been used for the analysis of ZEBRERAESINTKREDEETSE S

each CGU within the operating segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin
and revenue growth rate based on past performance
and their expectations for market development. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant segments. Cash flows
beyond the period covered in approved budgets are
extrapolated using a growth rate that do not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the businesses in
which the CGUs operate.

Based on the discounted cash flow forecast prepared
by management, the directors are of the view that there
is no impairment of goodwill as at 31 March 2015.

EA AL

EEERBAERREUMSER ZAH
BEENREERKRGSERR -FIRMAZ
EEEEYF&TRHI A& A RRIARE DI 2 18

o HBEHAERERH Z2HER
;Efﬁﬁﬁl?tﬁfﬁiﬁiﬁuw A
B2 REPBFIGERER 2 BREAR -

REEEERECCURAASRERA
EEZRARER_T—RF=A=1+—H
I #E R (E ©
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B 5 R Y A

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES

(A) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

11 RMB AR 2R E R B B

N
AR

Company
b /N
2015 2014
—E-1f —TWF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
Investments, at costs ®E RKANE
Beginning of the year REF]) 66,303 66,139
Capital contribution relating to EERODARZEE
share-based payment 909 164
67,212 66,303

The Directors are of the opinion that the
underlying value of investments in subsidiaries is
not less than their carrying values as at 31 March
2015.

(B) AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

The balances due from subsidiaries are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand. The carrying values of the amounts due
from subsidiaries approximate their fair values.

EERR RHBARZIRE IR
BEYTPRER-_T—AF=A
=t—BZKRHE-

(B) FEUHYE A RIFR
JRE MK PfT B8 X B SR IE 2 RS BR TS AR -
RENARBRER - ERUHE AR
FEZ REERE A FERE -
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(C)

Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR

11 RMB AT ZHE REWH B
YNCIE ORGP

DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL (C) RRRINZ=_ZE—RHF=H
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS AT =t+—BZFEWBRARIFE
31 MARCH 2015 ARE AS FOLLOWS: W
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and Issued share and place of
Name kind of legal entity capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest operation
AL BB R TEXBR
AT ERERER B&T/BARE AEEEERAER EE B
2015 2014
“e-5% —F-WE
Suga International Limited  British Virgin Islands, Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding in
(ix) limited liability company ~ US$700 Hong Kong
Suga International LimitedEBRELHE BB AR EBE700ET REBNREHREZR
(ix)
Suga Electronics (Hong Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
Kong) Limited company products in Hong
Kong
FERRRAA B BRAR TRR2E T RERBEETEM
Suga Electronics Limited (i) Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
company products in Hong
Kong
EEEFERRA) & BRAA TimR2E T REBEEETEM
Non-voting 100% 100%
deferred shares
HK$4,000,000 (i)
BRERELTRG
4,000,000/ 7(1)
Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Mainland China, limited  HK$33,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd. (ii), (xi) liability company electronic products
in Mainland China
FEEFORINEBRAR FEAE BRAA 33,500,000/ 7 NGNS
(i)~ (xi) Em
Suga Networks Hong Kong  Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of electronic

Limited

FEREEBAERAT

company

BE BARAF

HK$100,000 products in Hong
Kong
L8 #%100,0007 7T REBEEETEM
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B 5 R Y A

11 RKB AR 2R E R EYLH B

NEIFRIE (&)

11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

(C) DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL (C)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS

ARBR=_ZFT—RF=H
=t BHZEEHBRRFE

134
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AT 31 MARCH 2015 ARE AS FOLLOWS: R ()
(Continued)
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and Issued share and place of
Name kind of legal entity capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest operation
REM AL R S B R TEXHBR
1 ERERER BB/ BARE AEEERBEAER X
2015 2014
—E-1f —T-NF
Suga Technology Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of electronic
company products in Hong
Kong
EERMAR AR B BRAA LRmkoB T REBEBEETEM
Suga Networks Equipment  Mainland China, limited ~ HK$17,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. liability company electronic products
(“SNESL") (iii), (xi) in Mainland China
EEREEM ORI REIARE BRAA 17,500,000/ ¢ R B RRESGEE
ARAR ([fFEAR Em
g1 (i)~ (xi)
On Million Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding in
company Hong Kong
SRBRAA] B ARAR Lak2ET REBREME
Suga Macao Commercial ~ Macao, limited liability Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of pet
Offshore Limited company MOP100,000 products in Macao
EERMEFEERSE  RF BRAA T 100,00012 9 NRMEEEYEM
BRAR
Pets & Supplies (Shenzhen) Mainland China, limited ~ HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Co., Ltd. (“PSSL") (iv), (xi) liability company pet products in
Mainland China
BEEXORINERAR FEAE BRAR 10,000,000/ 70 P B R B EEY)
(THRERI) (v)~ (x) Em




11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(C)

Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR

11 RMB AT ZHE REWH B
YNCIE ORGP

DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL (C) RRRINZ=_ZE—RHF=H
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS =t+—BZFEWBRARIFE
AT 31 MARCH 2015 ARE AS FOLLOWS: R ()
(Continued)
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and Issued share and place of
Name kind of legal entity capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest operation
REM AL R S b B R TEXBER
A EERARER BRIT/BMARE AEREERBEAER EXE R
2015 2014
—E-1f —T-NF
Suga Digital Technology Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%  Design and trading of
Limited company electronic products
in Hong Kong
EEEBREERAR B ARAH Lmk2ET REBRIKREE
ETEmM
Precise Computer Tooling  Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Trading of moulds
Co., Limited company HK$500,000 and plastic
products in Hong
Kong
BLEKKEERAR B ARAH L 38 1%500,0007 7T REBEERAR
BREm
Nodic-Matsumoto Tooling ~ Mainland China, limited ~ US$6,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
and Plastic Injection liability company moulds and
(Huizhou) Co., Limited plastic products in
(“Nodic") (v), (xi) Mainland China
BMA-IRAEL TS REIAREE  BRAH 6,000,000% 7T R AREEERS
(BM) BB AT REBEm
(TR 1) ()~ (xi)
Happypaws International ~ Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$10 70% 70%  Pet food distribution

Limited
ALEBERER A

company

B8 ARATF

LEBIRL0B T

in Asia countries
REMNERDHED

A0
Ron
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)

(C) DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS
AT 31 MARCH 2015 ARE AS FOLLOWS:

11

B R Z 1R & BB B

NEIFRIE (&)

(C) KRR -_ZE—RHFE=AH
=+t—BZ2FENBRARFE
W (&)

(Continued)
Principal
Place of incorporation/ activities
establishment and Issued share and place of
Name kind of legal entity capital/paid-up capital Group equity interest operation
REM AL R S B R TEXHR
1 ERERER BB/ BARE AEEERBEAER X
2015 2014
—E-1f —T-NF
SGI Venture Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares 52% 52%  Design and trading of
company HK$100 electronic products
in Hong Kong
FEURBNBRAR B BRAA LER1004 T REBRIAREE
ETER
Long Join (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, limited liability Ordinary shares HK$2 100% 100%  Design and trading of
Electronics Co., Limited company electronic products
in Hong Kong
ER(AB)ETEBRAR &% BRAA LRRoETT REBRGIREE
EFEm
Chummily Trading Mainland China, limited ~ HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of pet
(Shenzhen) Limited liability company products in
(“CTL") (vi), (xi) Mainland China
EXES (RINBRAE REAE BRAF 1,000,000/ 72 R B REEEEY)
([7F32]) (vi) * (xi) Em
Suga Technology Mainland China, limited ~ US$12,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
(Dongguan) Co., Ltd. liability company electronic products
(“STDG") (vii), (xi) in Mainland China
REAREEERLA  PEAE FRAR 12,000,000 7T RPBAELEEET
(TEREEATSR 1) (vil) » (xi) 2 m
Suga Electronics (Dongguan) Mainland China, limited ~ US$5,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing of
Co. Limited (“SEDG") liability company electronic products
(viii), (xi) in Mainland China
FEEF(RR)BRAR HEAE BRAA 5,000,000 7 NP B AEEEET
(MEEEFRE]) Em

(viii) ~ (xi)
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11 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(C)

DETAILS OF THE PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY AS

AT 31 MARCH 2015 ARE AS FOLLOWS:

(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

The non-voting deferred shares of Suga Electronics
Limited are held by Essential Mix Enterprises Limited
and Broadway Business Limited, which are owned
by Dr. Ng Chi Ho and Mr. Ma Fung On, directors
and beneficial shareholders of the Company. These
non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights,
are not entitled to dividends, and are not entitled to
any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of
HK$10,000,000,000 per ordinary share has been
distributed to the holders of the ordinary shares.

Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. is a wholly
foreign owned enterprise established in Mainland
China with an approved period of operation of 20
years until June 2024.

SNESL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved
period of operation of 20 years until October 2022.

PSSL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved
period of operation of 20 years until April 2024.

Nodic is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved
period of operation of 30 years until September
2020.

CTL is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established
in Mainland China with an approved period of
operation of 30 years until April 2041.

STDG is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved
period of operation of 20 years until April 2027.

SEDG is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in Mainland China with an approved
period of operation of 20 years until December 2033.

The shares of Suga International Limited are held
directly by the Company. The shares of the other
subsidiaries are held indirectly.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue
at any time during the year ended 31 March 2015.

All subsidiaries established in Mainland China have a
financial accounting year end date on 31 December
in accordance with the local statutory requirements,
which is not coterminous with the Group. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group were
prepared based on the management accounts of
these subsidiaries for the twelve months ended 31
March 2015.

11 "B
’Aﬂfmlﬁ(ﬂﬁ

=

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

A Z R E R B B

) AATR-E—RE=f
=t+—BZTESHBLATRE
T ()

B & :

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

FEEFERARZERZERLER
5 F Essential Mix Enterprises Limited
&Broadway Business Limited# 45 -

MmZE AR BEARAEERERR
RREFELTREELTEERSE %
%ﬁ&%%ﬁﬁ% )RR 22 S UER
e FRE REEERREEAR
o IREFRE %Hxlo 000,000,000/
Tk REBBEEELERGEEA
7 2 ) -

FEEEF (RINBERARBETEH
ﬁﬁﬁiZi%ﬁt% %*ﬁZA
%ﬁ@é MERA L B
205 -

EERBSEM BERBRREK L2
INELE EZEZEESREE -
T__F+ A1k BHI20F -

mm*%ﬁ&¢ﬁﬁ@WIZ%%
BhX BRAZEXHREE"F
Z P4 A I B E204F -

MOREFRBEABERT 2 2 E R
X EREZEXNREE_T_F
FNA L BEI30% -

EXRERBEAERT 2 208 5
X EREZEXNREE T —
FMA L BEI30F -

RESH] 58 A1 A B K BERK 37 2 2 51
B BRAZEZXHREE_T
—EFWA Ik BI04 -

EEEFRERETEAERIZ2
SVEDE Bz EEZHREE
T==F+_HIt BH20%F-

Suga International LmﬁedZH%’ﬁEﬁﬁ
@75&%%’ﬁ@%% CIpd <)
Rl ARRIHEERE -

REBEE—T-—RE=A=+—HILF
BB fERBA NG I
BITEEER-

@kéﬁ%ﬁn%ﬁ%@ﬁk@ﬁﬁ
ZHBRR MRS FEF&E
Mﬁ+ A=+—8" ﬁ$EIZ¢
AR o AEE R WF%%E&
%%W% AHE_T-—RF=H
E+*E¢+_MHZEQ$Eﬁ

&l o
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12 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

(A) INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (A) REtE AR ZER
Group
FEH
2015 2014
—E-IF —E—QEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET TATT
Beginning of the year E’\E?ﬂ 1,702 1,868
Increase in interest in an associate AR N B 2 RE R 12 N 423 576
Share of loss of an associate Jﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ%’& A& B (640) (742)
Provision for impairment of interest Bt E R Al 2R 2
in an associate (Note 31) BB (FIFE31) (1,485) =
Share of net assets fEihEEFE - 1,702

The assets and liabilities of the Group’s associate,

which is unlisted, is as follows:

Particulars of
Name issued shares held
&8 HECRTRBHE

Country of
incorporation Interest held Assets
ERAIER RER RE

2015 2014 2015

AEBZELTHERBZEER
BEWMT:

Liabilities Revenue Loss

L LN L
014 2015 014 2015 04 2015 04

§-1F “%0F Z¥-1f “TMF DR-1f FMF %-1fF CF-[F I¥-1F “ROF
HK$'000 ~ HKFOOO  HK$'000 ~ HKSO000 HK$'000 ~ HKS000 HK$'000  HK$000

Fén

TEr fén  TEn  FER #r  TEx  TEn

CKICOM Technology Limited
(“CKICOM") (Note)
CKICOM Technology Limited
([CKICOM ] (i3E)

LA (=

Ordinary shares HKS1 (2014: HKS1)

2-ME:1#7)

Hong Kong, limited iabily ~ 19.21%  19.21% 1,073
company

58 4R0T

Although the Group has less than a 20% equity
interests in CKICOM, the Group has significant
influence over CKICOM and is able to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of

CKICOM.

(B) AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE (B)

Amount due from an associate is unsecured and
non-interest bearing as at 31 March 2014. The
amount of HK$267,000 is fully impaired as at 31

March 2015.

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2014/15

2169 17600 15366 872 301 3,330 3,865

B ARANEBNRCKICOMP AR
R20%R At B AEEH
CKICOMEERFE ) LA REELRH
CKICOMEY B 75 Bz 48 & R 3R VR TE ©

JE W HsE = 1 R 5K IR

W= —MmF=A=+—BEKE
EARREARERRLE R T
—HE=A=+—A " £267,000
BT EEEONME
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B 7S TR R M 5
13 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 13 REBELEZHESR
(A) INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (A) REBLEZKE
Group
AEHE
2015 2014
ek - 3 —T-WF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET TFATT
Investment in a joint venture REBEREZRE - =
The assets and liabilities of the joint venture, ETEECECEERBENT
which is unlisted, is as follows:
Particulars of issued Country of % Interest
Name shares held incorporation held Assets Liabilities Revenue Profit
HEES
i BECRTROAHE HRBIER ELA i & KA 13
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
t§-5§ -2 mF C3-5§ -2 MF §-5§ -2 NE E-1§ -2
HKSOD  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HASOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSO0
FiEx FiEn F#n T T T Fi#n TEL
TARC Holdings Limited Ordinary shares HK$L Hong Kong, limited liability company 50% 748 NIA 791 NIA - NIA (43) NA
TARC Holdings Limited EBRIET Bk ERAR
There are no contingent liabilities and capital RZZE—RF=A=+—H WEH
commitments relating to the Group’s interest in AEBERZEELENEREBEN
the joint venture, and no contingent liabilities and IRNBBEREREE  ZEBELEN
capital commitments exist in the joint venture as PEEEAKAB B RERNAE-
at 31 March 2015.
(B) AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (B) & ETCERKIEA
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E-If —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Amount due from a joint venture EM G & FERIE 404 —

The amount due from a joint venture is RZE—RF=A=+—H ERK&
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on BRERIBELAEER T B REAR
demand as at 31 March 2015. EREE-
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B T5 R Y A

14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 14 ERMEI S ZHMEESEREE
BY CATEGORY

Group
K&
Assets at fair
Loans and value through Available-
receivables  profit or loss for-sale Total
BATE
BEXE RAER
e 5k 18 ZEE A& &5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FERT FET FET
Assets ;3
At 31 March 2015 RIE—LHF
=ZA=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets At H & B 5 & B
(Note 15) (Hf&E15) - - 13,358 13,358
Bond investment (Note 17) BEHFRE (KMEE17) 7,711 - - 7,711
Trade and other receivables, EUWE SRR K
excluding prepayments (Note 19)  H b fE U I »
NEEENHIE
(BFE19) 201,600 - - 201,600
Amount due from a joint venture  FEUR— 1Bk & 2 7]
(Note 13) OB (MEE13) 404 - - 404
Cash and cash equivalents RekEEEFEY
(Note 21) (KFsE21) 176,989 - - 176,989
386,704 - 13,358 400,062
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B 7SRRI 5
14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 14 #ZEHE S ZMBEEREE
BY CATEGORY (continuea) (%)
Group
AEE
Assets at fair
Loans and value through Available-
receivables  profit or loss for-sale Total
/NS
Bk AR
JiE U 3 CEE e =E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATT FATT FAT FATT
Assets BE
At 31 March 2014 RZF—MEF
=A=+—8
Available-for-sale financial asset At HE B K& &
(Note 15) (BzE15) - - 7,547 7,547
Financial assets at fair value BATERABRE
through profit or loss (Note 16) 2B IS & E
(HizEL6) - 1,279 — 1,279
Bond investment (Note 17) EAEE (KMiEE17) 7,711 = = 7,711
Trade and other receivables, FEWE ZERFI K
excluding prepayments H o fE Y5k I8 -
(Note 19) NEETER Z0E
(HiEE19) 216,010 = = 216,010
Amount due from an associate  FEUR — [ HE & A A
(Note 12) FRIB (KIEE12) 267 - - 267
Derivative financial instruments T4 ¢RI TE
(Note 20) (FFzE20) - 145 - 145
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBeEED
(Note 21) (MizE21) 169,404 = = 169,404
393,392 1,424 7,547 402,363
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B 5 R Y A

14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 14 R EI S ZHMEESEREE

BY CATEGORY (continued) (%)
Group
&
Other
Liabilities at financial
fair value liabilities
through at amortised
profit or loss cost Total
RS

BERATE HASIERZ
AR #H H i B %5

Z&f& =R &%
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET T#ET T#ET
Liabilities =i
At 31 March 2015 R-F—RF
ZA=+—8
Trade and other payables FE B 5 AR R % H fth FE -

(Note 22) I8 (KFsE22) - 187,768 187,768
Bank borrowings (Note 23) RITEE (M5E23) - 100,788 100,788
Derivative financial instruments $74 4 & T B (Fi:£20)

(Note 20) 4,181 - 4,181

4,181 288,556 292,737
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14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

14 ZENE D ZMBEERAR

Notes to the Financial Statements

FIRE AR

BY CATEGORY (continued) (%)
Group
REE
Other
Liabilities at financial
fair value liabilities
through  at amortised
profit or loss cost Total
R
BRAYE AR
RAER H h B 15
Zaf& =N &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT AT
Liabilities =i
At 31 March 2014 R-FE—MEF
=A=+—H
Trade and other payables FEE ZERAR R EHAM
(Note 22) FET5RIR (F1EE22) - 217,488 217,488
Bank borrowings (Note 23) RITEE (K15E23) — 85,529 85,529
Derivative financial instruments $74 % g T & (i 5£20)
(Note 20) 2,398 - 2,398
2,398 303,017 305,415
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14 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 14 ®ZEHE D ZHMBFEEREE

BY CATEGORY (continued) (%)
Loans and
Company Receivables
A F BEXREWRE
HK$'000
FET
Assets BE
At 31 March 2015 R-_E—RE=A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 11) JE U B B A Bl kI8 (M aE1L) 139,766
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) ReMIReEEY (HiF21) 778
140,544
At 31 March 2014 R-FE—ME=A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 11) AT EPNGIE NG IEE RN ) 116,685
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) ReRRESFEY (MHiF21) 475
117,160
Other financial
liabilities at
Company amortised cost
1% 85 B A 51 BR
b /N ZHMHMBEE
HK$'000
FET
Liabilities =0
At 31 March 2015 R-ZFE—R&E=A=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 22) FERTE 5 IR R H A FE 1 5RI8
(FzE22) 2,424
At 31 March 2014 R-FE—ME=A=+—H
Trade and other payables (Note 22) FERTE 5 RN R H A FE S 5RI8
(FMt5E22) 3,082
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B RS R MY v
15 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 15 AIHEMFEE
ASSETS
Group
AER
2015 2014
ZE—RF —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 1 April R A—H 7,547 4323
Addition //J\\E 3,875 -
Fair value gain N ERES 1,936 7,099
Redemption fE o - (3,875)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 13,358 7,547
As at 31 March 2015, the available-for-sale financial RZZE—RFE=H=+—8 7 tlj'iﬁﬁ
assets represented 3,288 (2014: 3,288) and 500 BEEIIE EMBRAREESH3 288/ (=
(2014: nil) non-voting, redeemable, and participating —PY4F : 3,288[% ) R500/% (=& — @¢
shares in unlisted equity funds. |)ERRETERZERER D
They are denominated in United States dollars and ERAEENETINE  ERATFEDBREE
their fair values are determined based on the net CEBALEZEHS ZHBRENERMS
asset values of the funds calculated by the fund CHREFEZECEEFEMET -

administrators with reference to the quoted prices in
active markets of the underlying investments of the
funds.

16 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 16 BATFEHRANETZIHMBEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group
rEH
2015 2014
—F-If —Z—pF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Investment in listed bond REMEFZEKRE - 1,279
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16 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

16 ZATERNBERZZMBEE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (%)
2015 2014
—E—TH —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 April REA—H 1,279 7,832
Disposals HE (1,279) (6,375)
Exchange difference E X ERE - (178)
At 31 March R=A=+—H - 1,279

As at 31 March 2014, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss represented listed corporate bond.

The coupon rate of the listed corporate bond is 7.04%
per annum and is denominated in Renminbi as at 31

RZZBE—MF=A=+—H RAFER
ABS A HBEER LM ARIES-

W-—Z2-ME=A=+—0 LHAF
%2 8K BEFT.04%L ARSI

March 2014. Be
17 BOND INVESTMENT BEKRE
Group
AEHE
2015 2014
—E—1f —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 April R A—H 7,711 9,139
Disposals H& - (1,428)
At 31 March MN=A=+—8H 7,711 7,711
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17 BOND INVESTMENT (continued)

The terms of maturity of the bond investment is

summarised as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

17 BHKE &)
EHEE Y B PIERR T

FIRE AR

2015 2014
—E-1f —T—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FT#ET FHET
Less than 1 year DR—F - =
Between 1 and 2 years F—FEF_F - -
Between 2 and 5 years FE_FEFRF 7,711 =
Over 5 years AFEUE - 7,711
7,711 7,711
The coupon rate of the bond investment is 5.55% BFEREZEERREFLL% (=ZF
(2014: 5.55%) per annum. —PU&E: 555%) e
The bond investment is denominated in United States BEHRENETYIE
dollars.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting REE R SR EERRBRABHFKREZ
date is the carrying amount of the bond investment.
18 INVENTORIES
Group
AEHE
2015 2014
—E—AEF —Z 4
HK$’000 HK$' 000
F#&xT FHET
Raw materials JR ¥ 137,934 108,149
Work-in-progress F X i 34,267 22,399
Finished goods X i 26,070 24,763
198,271 155,311
Less: Provision for impairment R E R (5,453) (7,933)
192,818 147,378

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$992,393,000

(2014: HK$930,573,000).

BRAEAI MG ABEEXRAZFERK
7K /992,393,000 7T ( =& — PO £ :
930,573,000/ 7T ) ©
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19 B E 5 BR X & H fth FE YR 7 IR

148

Group Company
rEE b /N
2015 2014 2015 2014
“F-1f ~—T—NFE ZFE-IE —ZTNF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T FHEIT F#T FHETT
Trade receivables FEW B 5 B8R X 180,524 191,345 - =
Less: Provision for impairment B ORBEREE (3,878) (3,898) - =
Trade receivables, net e E 5 BR 50 176,646 187,447 - =
Prepayment to vendors BNEARE 9,768 3,879 - =
Other prepayments H b 38 5008 2,647 3,316 221 264
Rental and other deposits HekEftze 1,803 2,668 - =
Value added tax receivables e (E 7 5,983 4,960 - =
Others Hib 3,668 4,685 - =
200,515 206,955 221 264
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 BR 5 &
H & W 5008
— current portion —RENE D 198,857 206,103 221 264
— non-current portion —FEREBED 1,658 852 - -
200,515 206,955 221 264
Loan receivable ERERFIA 16,250 16,250 - =
Less: Provision for impairment 3 : S {E & (2,750) - - -
Loan receivable, net (Note a) B EWRIE
H 58 (ffsEa) 13,500 16,250 - -
Total trade and other receivables &4 E 5 85 7 &2
H & W 5008
Fk:E] 214,015 223,205 221 264

The carrying values of the Group's trade and other

receivables approximate their fair values.

AR ER B EUE 5 Rk S Bt FRMURRIR 2 R

H{EEE QN PERE-

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2014/15




19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The ageing of trade receivables is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

19 B E 5 RR =0 K H tth B IR
(%)

e E ZERR 2 BREINT -

Group

AERE
2015 2014
ZE-EHF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 30 days TE=+H 161,906 177,663
31 to 60 days =t—ZFx1H 4,935 8,431
61 to 90 days ~NT—ZEhTH 7,788 279
91 to 180 days At—ZE—B/\+H 1,256 120
Over 180 days —BN+HENUE 4,639 4,852
180,524 191,345
Less: Provision for impairment B E R (3,878) (3,898)
Trade receivables, net U E 5 BRFUF 58 176,646 187,447

All trade receivables are either repayable within one
year or on demand.

The Group generally grants credit terms of 30 days to
its customers.

FTE B E ZIRFAR —F A RIREK

g&-

AREE-RETEFEPIOAZEER-
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B 5 R Y A

19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

As of 31 March 2015, trade receivables of
HK$14,740,000 (2014: HK$9,784,000) were past due
but not considered impaired. These relate to a number
of independent customers who have no recent history of
default. The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

19 B E 5 ik = & H ft BYL K IR

(%)

RZE—RF=A=+—H" 14,740,000
B (ZZE— 4 :9,784,000% 7T ) 2 &
WE ZEREBHRERRI BRE %F
& W & 5 BR R B % 4 3 BRI M 4 R RC 8%
ZIBNEF AR - I FH YRR Z BRE 1A
T

Group

AEHE
2015 2014
ZE—RE —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi&ET FHT
31 to 60 days =+—Zx+H 4,935 8,431
61 to 90 days Nt+—ZEA+H 7,788 279
91 to 180 days nNt+—=—8"/\+H 1,256 120
Over 180 days —BN\THHUE 761 954
14,740 9,784

As of 31 March 2015, trade receivables of
HK$3,878,000 (2014: HK$3,898,000) were considered
impaired. The individual impaired receivables are
mainly related to customers which no longer have
business relationship with the Group. The amount of
provision was HK$3,878,000 as of 31 March 2015
(2014: HK$3,898,000). The impairment was firstly
assessed individually for significant or long ageing
balances, and the remaining balances were grouped
for collective assessment according to their ageing
and historical default rates as these customers were
of similar credit risk. The ageing of these impaired
receivables is as follows:

RZZE—HF=H=+—H" 3,878,000
7T (ZF — 04 : 3,898,000% 7T ) 2 fE
WE SRR BEERE- B2 RER
WRET2EBFEEREEGXERE
ZEFPHB-—ET—RAF=A=1t—H
Z ¥ 733,878,000 T (— T — M4
3,898,000 7T) - ERHAH D AR
BESLEBLNE AREEEFZE
SRRAL SRR E KRR MBEER
R BIER TG - L F B RERKR
KRBT

Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E—-1fF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FHET
Over 180 days —BNA+HENUE 3,878 3,898
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Movements of the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

19 FBYLE 5 BR 7 R H fth B U X IR

(%)
EUEZRFREREZSHNT

Group

rEH
2015 2014
ek - 3 —T-WF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 April RMEA—H 3,898 3,823
Provision for impairment VERIEREL:E] - 75
Exchange differences ME H ZRE (20) =
At 31 March R=A=+—H 3,878 3,898

The credit quality of the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor considered impaired in the amount
of HK$161,906,000 (2014: HK$177,663,000) could
be assessed by reference to their payment history and
current financial position. These receivables relate to
a whole range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default. Management believes that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balance is expected to
be fully recoverable.

As at 31 March 2015, the trade receivables from five
customers accounted for approximately 48% (2014:
55%) of the total trade receivables. The Group’s credit
risk management is disclosed in Note 3 to the financial
statements.

During the year, no additional provision (2014: a
provision of HK$75,000) was recognised for impairment
of its trade receivables. This provision has been
included in the general and administrative expenses in
the consolidated income statement.

AEHIRSEEREKE S KK
161,906,000 & (=& — M :
177,663,000 7T) < EEE X2 EHB
EEK LIRS BANE TR - ZFIE
WRIREZ 2T Y B R LR EFP A
M-EEEME AREEERLEEX
R NS EHREY A 280 - MHBA
ThEx B A R E R E B

R-E-—hAF=A=+—H KELAE
F 2 FEW B SR E Y E SRR AR
48% (T —PF:55% ) - AEBMZEE
2 B TR A B G R M ARSI R

F A ANER B3 4 AR R 5 AR ORI (B
REIMNER (—F —WF : Bi575,000/8
T WRED AR RERA—KR K
THREEEMRET-
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

19 B E 5 ik = & H ft BYL K IR

(%)

A E Z RN REERATERSIE

Group

AEHE
2015 2014
—_E—1f —EF—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Hong Kong dollars BT 4,751 4,238
United States dollars X7 164,332 179,103
Renminbi AR #& 11,441 8,004
180,524 191,345

The Group is not aware of any credit risk on deposits,
value added tax receivables and other receivables as
their counterparties are either banks, government,
corporation or individual with good credit ratings. The
majorities of these financial assets are neither past
due nor impaired and there is no history of default.
The carrying amount of deposits, value added tax
receivables and other receivables are denominated in
the following currencies:

AEBY FNTBEHZ S  BUCEER M
Y HRIBEEAEERR REARS
BHHRRT BAXEFRIFEETFR
ZRBIHMEAN - ZFEMBEEKRBLA AR
BHIsRE - B EE R - 1RE - B
BERFEEMERFE FEERATE

®olE

Group

AEEH
2015 2014
—E-I1f —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T TATT
Hong Kong dollars BT 825 512
Renminbi AR #E 21,425 23,367
United States dollars Vv 2,699 4,485
Others B} 5 199
24,954 28,563
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19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(a)

The loan receivable represents a loan to
a third party of RMB13,000,000 (2014:
RMB13,000,000) (equivalent to HK$16,250,000
(2014: HK$16,250,000)). Such loan bears
interest at 6% per annum and is originally
repayable on 15 November 2014. The loan is
secured by the pledge of a property located in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and a
98.81% equity interest in a PRC incorporated
company, which is engaged in educational
consultancy services.

In addition to this loan receivable, the Group
has also entered into an option agreement with
the borrower which gives the Group the right to
acquire 25% equity interests in certain British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) incorporated companies
which are engaged in trading of self-developed
social network systems and the provision
of related services. These BVI incorporated
companies are 100% beneficially owned by the
borrower. Such option agreement is valid for a
period of three years up to December 2014.

The loan receivable was past due as at 31 March
2015 and the option agreement was lapsed during
the year. As of 31 March 2015, an impairment
provision against such loan receivable of
HK$2,750,000 (2014: nil) was made.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at each
reporting date is the fair value of each class of
receivables as mentioned above. The Group does
not hold any collateral as security, except for the loan
receivable of approximately HK$13,500,000 (2014:
HK$16,250,000).

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

19 FBYLE 5 BR 7 R H fth B U X IR

(%)

(a)

R &

ERRUERELARRTE=ZTNE
K AR ¥13,000,0007T (= — M
F: AR %13,000,0007T) (#H%
716,250,000/ 7T ( ZF — M F :
16,250,000 7T) ) - BB ERRE
FOEMFRFENE  ARER =
E-OF+—ATHRAEE BRI
BRI NP EARKME ([HE])
BV N — RIEF BT ML E A ]
(EEBRHEBERRY)#98.81%
PR R E DI o

BRI TR B SRR SN - NS B B i
RATCERT L i g TA
SEER - JBEE TRREE A
5([RBREZES])EMKILZA
AlZ25%HE MxEFARIREREER
B 177 3 ML R A4S Bt R IR AR
BARRTS - s% SIS B 2 A S s A
MZAAHAERAZEESEE B
BB R ARER=F EE=
F—mFE+ =Rk

EREURBEBR-_ZT—HFE=A
=t+—HEaH BHEHRENATE
Ehh - R—E—HE=R=+—
B Bt EREWFIBE L R ERE
2,750,000 7 (= ZF — P04 : #) o

BEAHZEREERRAS L

BHEBWZBEZ AFE AEBYE
BECMNEBRERE EEREK
FXIE#913,500,000/8 7T ( — T — PO :
16,250,000/ 7T ) BR 4 »
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20 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 20 iITEEmMIT A
INSTRUMENTS
Group
rEH
2015 2014
“E-1fF —E—F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE =L BE =k
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET TET TET
Forward foreign exchange contracts & Hi9MNE S 49 - 4,181 145 2,398

The outstanding notional principal amounts of the
forward foreign exchange contracts at 31 March 2015
were US$44,000,000 (2014: US$22,000,000). These
foreign exchange forward contracts are held for trading
and will expire in November 2015 and October 2016.

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RHINESHN —_ET—RFE=A=1+—H
2B &3 N4 B A44,000,000% 7T (=
T —PO4 : 22,000,000 7T ) ° ZFRHAHN
BB EEETER T —HF+—
AR—ZE—XRE+AEm-

21 RERBREEEY

Group Company
K& b /N

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RFE —T—mg Z—F-1f —T-@OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FAETT F#xT FET
Cash at bank and on hand BT RFHERE 148,239 140,875 778 475
Short-term bank deposits RESRITER 28,750 28,529 - =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 176,989 169,404 778 475
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21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERBEEEEY #)

(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the
following currencies:

RekReEEMRIATERIIE:

Group Company
AEHE b /N

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E—-RFE —T—mg —F-1f —T-@OF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHAT FiERT FHAT
Hong Kong dollars BT 17,903 7,529 543 422
United States dollars ETT 89,570 83,014 226 43
Renminbi ARE 69,379 78,710 - =
Other currencies Hip g 137 151 9 10
176,989 169,404 778 475

As at 31 March 2015, the effective interest rate on bank
deposits was 0.4% (2014: 1.0%) per annum. The bank
deposits of the Group have an average maturity of 7
days (2014: 46 days).

The conversion of bank balances and cash of the
Group denominated in Renminbi into foreign currencies
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the Mainland Chinese
Government.

R-_E-—RFE=A=+—8 RTEX
CEBNEAEEF0L4% (ZT—PO4:
1.0% ) e AEE 2 R1TF R 2 FHEEHHE
BIR(ZZE—HF :46K) ©

AEBUARBHEZRITEBREBAES R

BN AR B R BT R M6 2 I E
B il FR ) Ko 48 T AT BR 1 <
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B 75 s 3R B v
22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 ENE SERMA R H thETFIE
Group Company
A&ER VN
2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-Rnf —T-0NF ZF-HE —T-NIEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEL FTET FEL
Trade payables N E SRR 148,930 171,749 - =
Salaries and staff welfare payable — fES#¢ & 8 T2 7| 14,401 9,584 - =
Accrued expenses fEFTE H 4,662 4,390 2,424 3,082
Deposit received (Note 30(a)) Bl S
(Bt7E30(a)) - 17,595
Others HAitb 19,775 14,170 - -
Total trade and other payables B SRR R EM
FE i FRIA s R 187,768 217,488 2,424 3,082
(@) The ageing of the trade payables is as follows: (a) ENESERZEFEITUOT
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E—1f —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFAET
0 to 30 days TEx=+H 134,542 145,566
31 to 60 days =+—zx+H 3,881 16,560
61 to 90 days At—z=A+H 690 1,379
91 to 180 days ht+—z=—B"N+A 3,318 1,568
Over 180 days el =PAG =0 = 6,499 6,676
148,930 171,749
The fair values of the Group’s trade and other REBEENE ZERRZEMEN K
payables approximate their carrying values. B A EEHREBERES -
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B T R T o
22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 ENE SERMA R HE thEFIE
(Continued) (%)
(@) (Continued) (@ (&)
The carrying amounts of trade payables are BRNEZERZEREBERATEE
denominated in the following currencies: A :
Group
AEHE
2015 2014
—E—1f —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong dollars B IT 15,721 21,533
United States dollars eV 117,049 131,676
Renminbi AR B 16,147 18,540
Other HA 13 =
148,930 171,749
(b) The carrying amounts of other payables are (b) HMEMNFIBZREEBEZNATEE
denominated in the following currencies: HI{E -
Group Company
rEHE VN
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1f C"T-WNF C"F-1f _—T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT FTET TET
Hong Kong dollars VoW 13,220 8,977 2,424 3,082
Renminbi ARE 23,592 34,554 - -
United States dollars xETT 2,026 2,202 - -
Other currencies H it 5% - 6 - -
38,838 45,739 2,424 3,082
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BTSRRI aE
23 BANK BORROWINGS 23 RiTEE
Group
AEH
2015 2014
—E—-RF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET AT
Non-current ERB
Long-term bank borrowings REISRITEE 100,788 85,529
Less: current portion of long-term bank 38 : REASRITEE R H
borrowings (88,383) (37,798)
12,405 47,731
Current N
Current portion of long-term bank
borrowings RERITEE RS I D 88,383 37,798
Total borrowings BEEHRE 100,788 85,529
The terms of borrowings are as follows: BER T EMEEE
Group
AEHE
2015 2014
—E—-RfF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FET
Within one year —F RN 88,383 37,798
In the second year E_F 2,863 35,331
Between 2 and 5 years EFE_FEFERF 9,542 8,703
Over 5 years AE E - 3,697
100,788 85,529
At 31 March 2015, the Group has aggregate banking R-E—REF=ZA=+—H K&EEH
facilities of approximately HK$610,195,000 (2014: B BEXRREIREBRITEER
HK$587,513,000) for overdrafts, loans and trade %8 49610,195,0008 Tt ( =& — O 4 :
financing. 587,513,000/ 7T ) °
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B F R M 5
23 BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 23 RiITEE#®)
Unused facilities at the same date amounted A B 2 &) A& & £9509,407,000/ 7T (=
to approximately HK$509,407,000 (2014: T — P4 : 501,985,000/ L) - Z E @&
HK$501,985,000). These facilities are secured by: AT B IR B fEHE R
(a) certain land and buildings (Note 6) of the Group (a) AKEBRMEEA39,635,000%8 7T (=
with the carrying amount of HK$39,635,000 T — U4 : 44,259,000 T) 2B/ T
(2014: HK$44,259,000). T REF (H5E6)
(b) corporate guarantees provided by the Company (b) ARARKREETHEBARRERHZA
and certain of its subsidiaries. AR
In addition to the above, the Group is required to Br bt E SN AEBAEESTE THRITHMN
comply with certain restrictive financial covenants 2 % T BR il B 75 35 o
imposed by certain banks.
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate AEBEERH  NEEHRRNEHNE
changes and the contractual repricing dates were as IEBAENT
follows:
Group
AEH
2015 2014
—E—-Af —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi&T FHT
6 months or less 7~E A s AT 76,966 18,895
7 to 12 months +t=+ @A 11,418 18,903
1 to 5 years —ERF 12,404 44,034
Over 5 years AFE E - 3,697
100,788 85,529
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B 5 R Y A

23

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date
were as follows:

23 RITEE (2

Group
AEE
2015 2014
—E—1f —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi#Ex FHET
Bank borrowings RITEE 2.3% 2.1%

As all the bank borrowings were at floating interest
rates, the carrying amounts of the borrowings
approximate their fair values and all balances are

SI{E -

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

24 IEEFRISH

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax BEAEMIBEERBELERIBEEBES AT

liabilities is as follows:

Group
AEH
2015 2014
—E—-If —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TBIT
Deferred income tax assets: FEIEFTSTRE E
— Deferred income tax asset to be —@+ @A %YKL
recovered after more than RIEFTIS T & E
12 months (762) (2,811)
Deferred income tax liabilities: REFTEHEE:
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be —Bt+_EAR%EEZ
settled after more than 12 months RIEFMSHAE 2,105 4,649
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24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movement in the net deferred income tax (assets)/

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

EERSH &)
BRRIEF R (AE) /AEFE &

liabilities account is as follows: AT :
Group
AEHE
2015 2014
—_E—1F — g4
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FATT
At 1 April A A— E| 1,838 2,235
Disposal of subsidiaries HEREA (1,513) -
Debited/(credited) to consolidated income R4R& Wz %:z?l] B
statement (Note 33) (5T A) (HMI#E33) 1,002 (415)
Translation differences & =58 16 18
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,343 1,838

The movement in deferred income tax assets
and liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same
tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

BLEMFHEERBBRRFANZED (K
SRR REEREE 2 &8R) 10
T

Intangible assets Accelerated tax depreciation Total
BRLEE MERBHE &t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
-1 —T-Nf —Z%-i1f -T-NFf C“F-1f —T-Mf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
t#%  TER  FER AR FER TEn
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEHEE
At 1 April REA—H 2,622 3,472 2,000 2,260 4,622 5,732
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR
(Note 30(a)) (H3E30(a)) - - (1,513) - (1,513) -
Credited to consolidated income ~ REEAMEREA
statement (850) (850) (154) (260) (1,004) (1,110
At 31 March R=R=+—H 1,772 2,622 333 2,000 2,105 4622
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B 75 3R 2R P 5
24 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 24 EERTFFH (&)
Decelerated tax depreciation Tax loss Total
HERENE REER h
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
—5-1f TN CZE-1f —T-NE CZE-1f —ZT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAET TET TET TEx TET
Deferred income tax assets ERFMGHEE
At 1 April REA—H (1,859) (955) (925) (2,542) (2,784) (3,497)
Charged/(credited) to consolidated %4 i %
income statement ne/ (GtA) 1,702 (922) 304 1617 2,006 695
Translation differences EHERS 16 18 - - 16 18
At 31 March R=R=+—H (141) (1,859) (621) (925) (762) (2,784)

As at 31 March 2015, the Group has unrecognised tax
losses of HK$3,881,000 (2014: HK$3,467,000) for
Hong Kong profits tax purposes, which have no expiry,
and unrecognised tax losses of HK$25,331,000 (2014
HK$5,985,000) for PRC corporate income tax purposes
which will expire during year 2015 to year 2019. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised for these tax
losses as the directors consider that it is not probable
that the temporary difference will be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

At 31 March 2015, deferred income tax liabilities of
HK$1,817,000 (2014: HK$2,110,000) has not been
recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of certain subsidiaries as the Company controls the
dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is not
probable that these subsidiaries would distribute
earnings in the foreseeable future. Unremitted earnings
totalled HK$36,350,000 as at 31 March 2015 (2014:
HK$42,196,000).

R-_B—RHE=A=+—8 #EENE
mms (MEAEERE) AKEAEX
(RRERTE A E1E3,881,000% T (—ZZE—MW
% :3,467,00087C) AR BIEMER
5« A HE R IE &5 18 525,331,000
7t ( ZZ P04 : 5,985,000/ 7T ) © W%
TR RAFFEE T -NFFERH-
MREERAEREEAJRETERAR
A RED - B ZEHIEEERERE
EFRIBEE -

R-_ZE—RAE=F=+—H8 EEHFE
MBeE1,817,0008 Tt (=T — W&
2,110,000 ) WA E THEB AR 2K
EHAMNERENREEMAHRE  REA
AABEHZENB AR ZBRERE M
ZEWB R AT RER AT B 55K 5k
Bl -RN_E—FRF=A=1+—HZKE
H &4 # 436,350,000/ 7 (—ZZF—Y
£F 1 42,196,0005 7T) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B F R M 5
SHARE CAPITAL 25 BE 7K
Number of
shares Nominal value
iR =] HE
‘000 HK$' 000
F A% FHET
Authorised — ordinary shares of EE—BREECIETL
HK$0.1 each LA 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid — ordinary shares of 2 2$1T & &4 & —&Fh%
HK$0.1 each H1EO0.1E L 2 i@k
As at 1 April 2013, 31 March 2014 R-—E—=Fm"A—AH"
and 1 April 2014 —Z—NFE=A=+—H
F—ZF—WMFEMYA—H 272,294 27,229
Proceeds from shares issued upon P17 {50 B AR e BF B 1T AR 1
exercise of options FT1S 3878 1,418 142
As at 31 March 2015 R-ZE—RAF=HA=+—H 273,712 27,371

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 6 August 2012. Pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant
share options to certain grantees (including directors
and employees) of the Group to subscribe for shares of
the Company. The maximum number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under this Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes adopted
by the Group shall not exceed 30 per cent of the share
capital of the Company in issue from time to time. The
subscription price will be determined by the directors,
and will not be less than the highest of the nominal
value of the shares, the closing price of the shares
quoted on the Stock Exchange on the trading day of
granting the options and the average of the closing
prices of the shares quoted on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
granting the options.

26 Rzt

ARABR-ZT——F\ANBRMABR
a8 (BT 3)) - RIRBRBEST
2 ARBRRAAEEETEARA (B
EEZNEE)URBIREARBEARBK
0 o RIREE B T 8 R AN SR BB 2 A
HAbRE R 81 h M W RITEZ PR %
TTEIMNERARETER A RERIT 2 &S
MEE  FNEBEEARARBITRD ETRA
30% - RBBERHEFETE B IIRN
BOEE EBREZRZBERRD
PR X P PR W (B N R BB UL I B
HA R T (32 5 A B {0 A8 32 P T ¥R T 15 4R
mE (UA&xmE/E) -
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26 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
during the year are as follows:

26 R (&)

FRRRITEBRESE <230 T

2015 2014
—F-If —T-mF

Average Average

exercise exercise
price in HK$ Number of  price in HK$ Number of
per share options per share options

BR2TY S T4
BRITEE BEREEZA  BrafE  EREZE
'000 ‘000
45 T
At 1 April RIEA—H 1.658 4,964 1.316 1,486
Granted during the year FRNERE 2.158 5,200 1.780 3,670
Exercised BEATE 1.396 (1,418) = =
Lapsed B R 1.770 (248) 1.334 (192)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 8,498 4,964

As at 31 March 2015, all the outstanding options were
fully vested.

Options exercised in 2015 resulted in 1,418,000 shares
(2014: Nil) being issued at a weighted average price
of HK$1.396 each (2014: Nil). The related weighted
average share price at the time of exercise was
HK$1.95 (2014: Nil) per share.

RZEB-—RAF=A=+—8" FIARKIT
EzBRECEEEE-

R-ZE—RFTFEREE UL INE TS

BRER1I96BT (T — P04 &)%

771,418,00008 A 1D ( —ZF—PU4F  £) - 17

ErF 2 AR MEFEEREAZR1GET
ZEHFE) o

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2014/15




26 SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have

the following expiry dates and exercise prices:

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

26 HERTHE (&

RE R KT EIBRAE 2 B8 B R (T2 (B
T

Number of options Vested percentages

Exercise %Hﬂgﬂ E E%E—Eﬁtt
Expiry date price 2015 2014 2015 2014
ZH A TEE Z§-1% _—T-NF& ZE-If _—T-NF
'000 '000
T T
Directors 5=
20 March 2019 “Z-hE=A-1H 1.780 800 800 100% 100%
18 January 2020 “E-TE—[+N\H 2.158 2,200 = 100% =
Employees E&
28 April 2015 “Z-AFMA-+/\H 1.331 110 110 100% 100%
3 June 2015 “Z-R%F~A=H 1.145 - 858 - 100%
21 October 2016 ZZ-R"E+AZ+—A 1.750 240 326 100% 81%
20 March 2019 —Z-hE=A=-1H 1.780 1,948 2,670 100% 3%
18 January 2020 —E-TE—[+N\H 2.158 3,000 = 100% =
Others Hit
20 March 2019 —E-AF=A=-tH 1.780 200 200 100% 100%
8,498 4,964

The weighted average fair value of the options granted
during the year ended 31 March 2015 determined
using the binomial option pricing model was
approximately HK$0.377 (2014: HK$0.367) per share.
The significant inputs into the model were share price
of HK$2.140 (2014: HK$1.78) as at the grant date,
exercise price as shown above, volatility of 35.301%
(2014: 38.569%), expected life of options of five years
(2014: five years), expected dividend yield of 7.611%
(2014: 7.425%) and annual risk-free interest rate of
1.020% (2014: 1.469%). The volatility measured at
the standard deviation of expected share price returns
is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s
share price over a period of five years (2014: five years)
before the date when the options were granted.

REE_Z—AF=A=+—HILFER
RbzBRERA _BEARAEEERRN
BE IEFGRFEORER0377E
T(ZFE—-WF:03678L)  ZRAZ
TEHABBR/NIR LB HZK(E2.140
BT (ZT—MF:1.7887T) - EXFR
ZATEE K 1835.301% (ZFE— M4 :
38.569% ) - R EMFMAF (=T
—mFE:AF) BHREEEREKT611%
(ZZE—M%F:7.425% ) & & &2 Bz F
E1.020% (ZZE—MF:1.469% ) - & &
HAR (B @ 2 R R =5t B 2 RIB VIR
ARmzBERBEREERL B SR
F(ZZ—F: 15F) PR 2 BE KRBT

s
= o
A

EEBRREEARAGF | 2014/15F

165



166

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7 2= P 5
27 RESERVES 27 #E
Group
AEE
Share-  Available-
based for-sale
Capital compen- financial
Share reserve sation asset  Exchange Retained
premium  (Note (a)) reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
At E
BARE URHZA BBHEE
BRinaE (fw@) MeREsE e  EiRE REEH G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT TR THT
At 1 April 2013 n=_Z—=FNA—A 63,778 10,591 413 1,644 43,408 326,195 446,029
Exchange difference arising 2 EGINIB A7)
on translation of foreign MELERZE
subsidiaries - - = = (4,348) = (4,348)
Release of fair value gain upon FABE [ AT (S B 54 &
redemption of available-for  EBEBHATERE
sale financial asset - - - (2,958) = - (2,958)
Fair value gain on an available- A/t EHBEE 2
for-sale financial asset AFEKR = = = 7,099 = = 7,099
Employee share option scheme: (& 8 B A2 :
Value of employee services EER%ZER = = 521 = = - 521
Profit for the year FRa A - - - - - 81,487 81,487
Dividends paid BIRRE - = - - - (35,398) (35,398)
At 31 March 2014 RZE—mF
=B=+—H 63,778 10,591 934 5,785 39,060 372,284 492,432
Representing: BER:
Proposed dividend RS 21,852
Others Hit 350,432
372,284
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BTGk I 5
27 RESERVES (continued) 27 #EB 2
Group
K&
Share- Available-
based for-sale
Capital compen- Property financial
Share reserve sation  revaluation asset  Exchange Retained
premium  (Note (a)) reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
AHHE
EXRE UBRBEE WEER  MBEEE
BHiEE (MiE@) Meké 1o fE  ERGHE RLEH At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FER TiET TET FET TiET TET FER T#R
At 1 April 2014 RZE—mF
mA—AH 63,778 10,591 934 - 5,785 39,060 372,284 492,432
Exchange difference £ EBINIBA A
arising on translation of FTEALEH =5
foreign subsidiaries - - - - - (2,350) - (2,350)
Fair value gains on At ERKEE
available-for-sale 2 A YAk
financial assets - - - - 1,936 - - 1,936
Fair value gain on land B R E R BN ER
and buildings upon TiREFZ
transfer to investment ~ AF{E MKz
property - - - 6,790 - - - 6,790
Employee share option  {& 8 B2 &I:
scheme: - - - - - - - -
Proceeds from shares  FA{TE R AR TE RS
issued upon EEelian)
exercise of options Fifs I8 1,837 - - - - - - 1,837
Transfer of reserve RITfE R AR R
upon exercise of B
options 457 - (457) - - - - -
Options lapsed BESVE 1T - - (221) - - - 221 -
Value of employee EERBKZER
services - - 2,951 - - - - 2,951
Profit for the year FRa A - - - - - - 170,406 170,406
Dividends paid 2R E - - - - - - (54,633) (54,633)
At 31 March 2015 R-E—1%F
=A=+—H 66,072 10,591 3,207 6,790 7,721 36,710 488,278 619,369
Representing: HER:
Proposed dividend BIRARE 22,031
Others HAt 466,247
488,278
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27 RESERVES (continued) 27 #E (2
Note: B 3E
(@) The capital reserve of the Group includes the difference (a) AEEEARERER-_ZET-ZFLAR
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued by BAREEEEBBRORIRARRITETT
the Company and the aggregate amount of the share capital I3 AR B B AT U RE T B A B 2 B AN R AR
and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through an NeERAEREZEZ -

exchange of shares pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation
in September 2002.

Company
ARHE
Share-
based
Contributed compen-
Share surplus sation Retained
premium (note (b)) reserve earnings Total
BARE  LRHIH
BiaE  (FEb) e REB2F CH)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

At 1 April 2013 RZE—=FNA—H 63,778 64,872 413 29,844 158,907
Employee share option scheme: EEEREE:
Value of employee services EER%EZER - = 521 = 521
Profit for the year FRa A - = = 29,616 29,616
Dividends paid 2R E = - - (35,398) (35,398)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-mHF=A=1+—H 63,778 64,872 934 24,062 153,646
Representing: HER:

Proposed dividend RS 21,852

Others Hity 2,210

24,062
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27 RESERVES (continuea)

B TS R T 5
27 f#fE (=
Company
VNS
Share-
based
Contributed compen-
Share surplus sation Retained
premium (note (b)) reserve earnings Total
BNEH  URBEM
BREE  (HE®b) MemE BRH EE

Notes to the Financial Statements

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2014 RZE—WENA—H 63,778 64,872 934 24,062 153,646
Employee share option scheme: EEERES: - - - - -
Proceeds from shares issued upon exercise of R {T{5 B8 RRAERF B TR (3
options Fifs 508 1,837 - - - 1,837
Transfer of reserve upon exercise of options ~ FAfT B8 ARIER: 88 ek 3 457 - (457) - -
Options lapsed BESE-1T - - (221) 221 -
Value of employee services EER% 2 ER - - 2,951 - 2,951
Profit for the year FRRA - - - 74,634 74,634
Dividends paid BIRRE - - - (54,633) (54,633)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=A=1+—H 66,072 64,872 3,207 44,284 178,435
Representing: HER:
Proposed dividend RS 22,031
Others Hity 22,253
44,284
Note: B 5
(b)  Contributed surplus represents the difference between the (b) BABBREIEARBETEITRGD 2 EEHE

nominal amount of shares issued and the book value of the
underlying net assets of subsidiaries acquired in return.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders, subject
to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if (i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable value of
its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

FRUREBH B A RIERF EEREEC Z5/ -

RIBARE-NN\—FRRE  BARRA
DIk TR AR IA T GRIEPIRR - Bin B
BABRRERIOR NS AL 2K - M)
ARAE B AT AME IR R SOAEE R R
HeE HNEEEZTERERNEA
B HEBTRARROEE 2@ A1
SIELBERDIK-
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BTSRRI aE

28 REVENUE 28 &=
The Group is principally engaged in the research and AEBETENEEFER BEARBRE
development, manufacture and sales of electronic uuﬁﬂﬁ&?ﬂﬁé RSB E T - T
products, moulds and plastic products. Revenues RZWEEIT

recognised during the year are as follows:

2015 2014
—E—IHF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET

Sales of goods BEYEER
— electronic products —BTEMR 1,317,435 1,216,395
— moulds and plastic products —EERBRBER 24,489 28,433
1,341,924 1,244,828

29 OTHER INCOME 29 Hfthg N

2015 2014
—E-If —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Scrap sales FERLH & 527 411
Rental income e WA 120 =
647 411
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30 OTHER GAINS, NET 30 Hile s iR
2015 2014
ZE—RF —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss on disposal on financial assets at fair H&ER A FELZAEBZZ
value through profit or loss VBEEEE - (178)
Net foreign currency exchange gain P b UK %5 5 /e 5,402 3,226
Fair value loss on derivative financial
instruments MEERTAZATFEEE (1,928) (2,949)
Net realised gain on derivative financial ~ $T4A&@ T A~
instruments IR W R 2,820 791
Realised gain on redemption of an BRI HEEMBEE L
available-for-sale financial asset IR UG =5 - 2,958
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note a) &M B AU (Mista) 149,427 —
Factory relocation costs (Note b) T = B A AR (P sED) (32,405) -
123,316 3,848

Note:

(a)

On 19 December 2012, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
the purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase, and
the Group conditionally agreed to sell, 100% equity
interests in Universal Gain Assets Limited (“UGL") at
cash consideration of RMB138,000,000 (approximately
HK$174,050,000). UGL is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group which has interests in a piece of land in the
PRC. In addition, the purchaser conditionally agreed to
grant the Group the right to repurchase certain of the
re-developed properties in future upon the completion
of the re-development. The Group received a deposit
of HK$17,595,000 in prior year, which was included in
trade and other payables as at 31 March 2014. On 23
September 2014, the Group completed the disposal of
UGL and recognised a disposal gain of approximately
HK$149,427,000.

P &E :

(a)

R-E——F+-_A+NB AEBEFZL
—HEBEWHE Bt EFEERERERE
B AEEE B EERE LS R Universal
Gain Assets Limited ([UGL J) 2 100% A&
B2 R E A AR #138,000,0007T (47
174,050,000/ 7T ) ° UGLTA A E 2 2= &R/
BAR MERFE 2z —RILbEFERE-
Itoh - B BB IEHRE BBRR K EER
RAEERLABREE TEEDMEZER -
RE—FE AEEEWEIZ£17,595,000
B HER-_Z—NF=A=+—H5tA
ENESERREMEMERER - R —
FNAZ+=0 AEBEZTKLEUGLK
TR & U 25 #9149,427, 00078 7T ©
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30 OTHER GAINS, NET (continuea)

30 Hil & B8 (&

Note: (Continued) Mizk: (&)

(@)  The following table summarises the consideration received (@) TREBEA LS E AR KE KRR
for the disposal of subsidiaries and the amounts of the HERHMEESZARANEEREEZS
identifiable assets and liabilities disposed at the disposal ¥ o
date.

HK$'000
FHET
Consideration KB 174,050
Net asset value of subsidiaries WEBARZEEZFE (24,623)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR TSk 149,427
Assets and liabilities disposed: HEZEERARE:
— property, plant and equipment (Note 6)  —#1% W= & 3245 (FizE6) 23,909
— land use right (Note 7) — T Hb{E A RE (MT5E7) 2,227
— deferred tax liabilities (Note 24) —RERIE B & (FizE24) (1,513)
Net asset value BEFE 24,623
Proceeds from disposal of HEMBRARMEBRIBRE:
subsidiaries comprise:
Cash consideration received BUWIRESKE 156,455
Deposit received (Note 22) Bl S (MiE22) 17,595
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEKBRRTERIEA 174,050

(b)

During the period, the Group relocated certain of its (b)
manufacturing plants to Dongguan and had incurred
relocation costs of approximately HK$32,405,000.
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31 EXPENSES BY NATURE 31 HHHEE D ZHEX

AEABERA 7
RITBERER AW T :

Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution and
selling expenses and general and administrative
expenses are analysed as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

HRHEERUR—R

2015 2014
ZE—-AfF —T—MF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T F&ET
Cost of inventories FERKA 992,393 930,573
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BEREEITE
equipment
— owned assets —-BBEE 25,295 14,068
Amortisation of land use rights o b {50 R A 5 1,218 1,258
Amortisation of intangible assets BT A B i 5,154 5,154
Gain on disposals of property, plantand ~ HE&E%¥ - BE &
equipment = W (31) (439)
Operating lease rental of premises BFgEloEse 3,941 6,731
Employee benefit expense (including BETRNMAXZ (B
directors’ emoluments) (Note 37) BEEME) (ME37) 178,887 141,087
Provision for impairment of trade JEWE 5 R FUR B R &
receivables - 75
Provision for impairment of loan receivable & X & U % 38 il (B B 5
(Note 19) (FFEEL9) 2,750 -
Provision for impairment of interest in REEE R A2 B &
an associate and amount due from an f”&ﬂsﬁ%’&
associate IR R E R 1,752 -
Write-back on provision for inventory FERERERD
impairment (2,480) -
Auditor's remuneration % ELED B 2,400 2,476
Commission expense HeMX 9,191 2,286
Other expenses Hfx 67,273 55,157
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling $H&EKAS - D iE R HEE F
expenses and general and administrative A K& —f& MITH B2 E
expenses 4828 1,287,743 1,158,426

=
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32 FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE 32
COSTS

33

AEWNERE R A
2015 2014
—E—TH —E—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Interest income from:

KA NISRZABRA

— bank deposits —iRITER 733 2,339
— bond investment —EHTE 526 969
— others —HAh 313 741
Finance income BB WA 1,572 4,049
Interest expense on: L FEECAMER%:
— bank borrowings wholly repayable — AR AFRNEE
within five years BEZIRITEE (3,335) (3,062)
— bank borrowings wholly repayable — AR A FEBE
after five years EEZRITEE - (236)
— discounting of interest on other —H b U FRIB A B
receivable iR (1,173) -
(4,508) (3,298)
Less: amount capitalised on BB EREELZ
qualifying assets BEERNMLERE 1,144 927
Finance costs B & R A (3,364) (2,371)
Finance (costs)/income — net BME (KA) WA —FEE (1,792) 1,678
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 33 MEHMEX
(A) BERMUDA AND BRITISH VIRGIN (A) BRENABREXESHED
ISLANDS INCOME TAX
The Company is exempted from taxation in ARABEZE - "FAE2HE R
Bermuda until 2016. The Company’s subsidiaries ERB - ARNARNABRELHES M
in the British Virgin Islands are incorporated under BARNRERBREXHSBHERE
the International Business Acts of the British FOETAMKA - At e AR B R
Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are exempted ERTEH -
from the British Virgin Islands income taxes.
(B) HONG KONG PROFITS TAX (B) BENEH

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the
rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on the estimated
assessable profits for the year.

BEBMNEHIATR16.5% (—ZF—M
F:16.5% ) AN FE fEFT R BG
A -

SUGA INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED | Annual Report 2014/15




33 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(C)

PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX

Suga Electronics (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“SESL"),
Suga Networks Equipment (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“SNESL"), Pets & Supplies (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd
(“PSSL”), Nodic-Matsumoto Tooling and Plastic
Injection (Huizhou) Co., Ltd. (“Nodic”), Chummily
Trading (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“CTL"), Suga
Electronics (Dongguan) Co., Ltd (“SEDG”) and
Suga Technology (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. (“STDG”)
are subsidiaries established in Mainland China.
All the Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China are
subject to corporate income tax at 25% effective
from 1 January 2008.

MACAO TAXATION

Suga Macao Commercial Offshore Limited is a
subsidiary established in Macao and is exempted
from Macao Complementary Tax.

The amount of income tax charged to the

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

33 FIEHAX#)

(C) FEERMAEH
EEEFORIDBERRR ([EE
BF]) EEBKSEM CRIDBR
RE ([EERESEM]) MmEERE
CRIDBERAR (AEEXR]) B8
N—IARRETE (BM)BRQF
(TN EXBS (RIDBRA
A(IEX]) FEEEF (RR)BER
AR ([EEEFRE]) MR= R

LEARAR ([R5 ]) IR H
BIABERK S 2 M B A R - REE RN
BAEZAEMNBLARE —TZN
F—H— BHEEAER25% 2 R G
E S IEEE A

(D) RFIFRIA
HERPIREFRHERBERAAR
FORPIKLZ B A R) - RBURFIFT
S FER

BiRA WSR2 ABHR BN

consolidated income statement represents: T
2015 2014
—E—1f —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Current income tax: B RS

— Hong Kong profits tax —BANEH 4,163 9,929
— Income tax outside Hong Kong —BBBINTEH 1,567 2,084
— Over-provision in prior years —BAFEBRBEEE (1,034) (910)
Deferred income tax (Note 24) BEIEFTISHL (FI7E24) 1,002 (415)
5,698 10,688
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33 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 33 FifEREAZ (#)
The income tax on the Group’s profit before income REERAAEHADE N TS EES
tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise AR EFE 2 EmEBEMTR  #18
using the taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows: mr:
2015 2014
“E—1F —F—mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T TAET
Profit before income tax B FT 13 A5 B & A 175,712 91,597
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% #2165% (ZZE— M4
(2014: 16.5%) 16.5% ) i &5 & 28,992 15,113
Effect of different income tax rates on BBRINATE £ WA LR R
income arising outside Hong Kong TRFAMGEHEzZE 10,434 (588)
Tax loss not recognised RERIHIAEE 6,615 1,510
Expenses not deductible for income tax ~ TR 2 B2
purpose 5,328 2,411
Income not subject to income tax BRSBTS 2 WA (44,427) (6,726)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (1,034) (910)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax 2 5 38 1+ A HE iR 51 T /B 18
losses (210) (122)
Income tax expense TS Hi 3 5,698 10,688
There is no tax charge relating to components of other MENEE HEEMm K AIEE G/ -
comprehensive income.
34 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE 34 KRB B ANELET
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to the owners of the Company is RATHEAR AEEREFE 474,634,000
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to BT (ZZF—M4F : 29,616,000/ 7T ) B &5
the extent of a profit of approximately HK$74,634,000 AR QR BEHRE -

(2014: HK$29,616,000).
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35 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(A)

BASIC

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

35 BREF

(A) £
BRERNBANTIZANRARREE AR
1608 MBR A F A BT E @A Z 0

by the weighted average number of ordinary YIRS ETE o
shares in issue during the year.
2015 2014
—g-nf —B-NF
Profit attributable to owners of the ~ ARRQ ARG AFE(E%H F
Company (HK$'000) (F&7T) 170,406 81,487
Weighted average number of ordinary & 2517 & 3@ A% hi#E F 15
shares in issue ('000) fxE (Fh%) 272,442 272,294
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &RXEARZF (BAL) 62.55 29.93
DILUTED (B) #%

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The
Company has one category of dilutive potential
ordinary shares which is the share options
granted to employees. For the share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number of
shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average market price of the
Company’s shares) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding
share options. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares
that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options.

BREBTRANDINBRABEEE
BEBROCEENBER T ABRT
EINE BN PR BEL A E -
ARRA—HBEEEE LR M
BER T B - BLEBAEMS -
B E DA BRRRITERR
BzRBREZoREENRAE B
AR AFE (ARR R FHTE
SE)BAZBRMDER < A LA ITE
FREZRMEE & ERREREE
TTEMEL BTN BB LLE -
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35 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continuea) 35 Bl AR &)
(B) DILUTED (Continued) (B) #& (&)
2015 2014
—T-1f —T—MF
Profit attributable to owners of the RAa R BT
Company (HK$'000) (F#&mT) 170,406 81,487
Weighted average number of ordinary & 2§77 @I Nt
shares in issue ('000) e (F&) 272,442 272,294
Adjustments for share options ('000) BB EFAE (T4) 622 448
Weighted average number of ordinary EMEERR]~
shares for diluted earnings per I 38 A% hn A £ 39 AR B
share ('000) (F1) 273,064 272,742
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) &R #EZF (B1L) 62.41 29.88
36 DIVIDENDS 36 Iz 2
The dividends paid during the year ended 31 March HE_ZT—AF=A=1t—HItFEEf
2015 were HK$32,781,000 (HK7.0 cents per share i% B9 Bl &32,781,000/%& 7T (&A&7.078 11
and a special dividend of HK5.0 cents per share) and 45 Bl RS B & BE5.058 1) &21,852,000/%
HK$21,852,000 (HK8.0 cents per share) respectively. A T (ERS.0BM) - BR=ZFE—RHF N\ A
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2015 of ANENBRRBAFAE LEEZSKEE_Z
HK$8.0 cents per share, amounting to a total dividend —HAF=A=1+T—HLFEMNRKREERKRS.0
of HK$22,031,000, is to be proposed at the annual Bl (4aR% 2 &22,031,0008 7T ) ° % E 8
general meeting on 6 August 2015. These financial TR A B R ZETAR S -
statements do not reflect this dividend payable.
2015 2014
—E-1f —T-F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FET FHET
Interim dividend, paid, of HK7.0 cents EIRFHREGRE BK
(2014: HK6.0 cents) and special 708 (ZF—mME:
dividend, paid of HK5.0 cents (2014: nil)  6.07&1ll1) & B R4 5l B8
per ordinary share B AR @mARS.08
(ZE—NF #|E) 32,781 16,337
Final dividend, proposed, of HK8.0 cents  #t& & HAf% 5 &A% & @B A%
(2014: HK8.0 cents) per ordinary share ~ 8.071ll (=T — P04 :
8.07811l) 22,031 21,852
54,812 38,189
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37 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Notes to the Financial Statements
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37 EIRAMMAX (B EEM

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ &)
EMOLUMENTYS)
2015 2014
—E-1F —E-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET F&ET
Wages and salaries ERE® 154,983 127,104
Bonus 1€ ,iI 8,287 1,267
Staff welfare ,\Iﬁﬂ 6,066 6,359
Share-based compensation expenses A& 10 4~F 3% 3R B A 2 2,951 521
Unutilised annual leave *TEHXETEX 31 213
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RR 4 B 2R — & 78 G2l 6,569 5,623
178,887 141,087
(A) DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR EEMe NS RERBAEFTM

MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of every director for the year

ended 31 March 2015 is set out below:

HE-_E—hFE=A=1+—HBIF
EE&LEEZHEHINWMT :

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other  Discretionary scheme  Share-based Total
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions compensation  emoluments
&R RKEHN Bfn 13k
e HitfEH BB FHEHEE e Meas
Executive director: BTES:
Dr. Ng Chi Ho REREL (ZER

(Chairman and Chief fTR#E)

Executive Officer) - 3,799 4,040 380 - 8,219
Mr. Ma Fung On SETRAE - 1,824 - 91 - 1915
Non-executive director: FUTES:
Mr. Lee Kam Hung ZRELE 180 - - - - 180
Independent non-executive BV FHTEE:

director:
Professor Wong Sook Leung, EERAIR

Joshua 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven  2F#54 198 - - - - 198
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BALRTE 198 - - - - 198
Mr. Cheung Nim Kwan RoLE ()

(Note) 100 - - - - 100
Note: B 5

Appointed on 15 October 2014

R-ZF-—MOFE+ATHAAEZRE
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37 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The emoluments of every director for the year
ended 31 March 2014 is set out below:

37 EIRMAX (BREEME)

(%)

(A) ZE =
(4)
BE-—T-—-WE-A=-+—BitHE
EELEE HMeHINT

ThEREIEA S HM

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other ~ Discretionary scheme  Share-based Total
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions  compensation  emoluments
ek BB Ript
e L E7 BiEEa TEIfST £l B¢ A5t
Executive director: BIESE:
Dr. Ng Chi Ho RERBL(ZER
(Chairman and Chief TR
Executive Officer) - 3,493 - 349 - 3,842
Mr. Ma Fung On BEREE = 1,621 - 8l - 1,702
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Lee Kam Hung TERERE 180 - - - - 180
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
director:
Professor Wong Sook Leung, EE=#K
Joshua 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Leung Yu Ming, Steven  2F 84 180 - - - - 180
Mr. Chan Kit Wang BAERE 180 - - - - 180

(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year included
two (2014: two) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining three
(2014: three) individuals during the year are as

(B) hAE&mmHMAL
RAFEE AEEREARSFHMA
TERMAE(ZE-—HFE - MB)E
S EEZMESE RN LRSI HR
BR-FARMNESGK=Z2(ZF—U
FZR)ALZBEMT

follows:

2015 2014
—E—I#F —E-mF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET TBTT

Basic salaries, allowances and other EZAR¥ 4 20L&
benefits in kind E {thE Y 4E A 5,345 5,169
Contribution to retirement scheme — :RAKET &I 176 171
5,521 5,340
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W SRR M 5
37 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 37 ETRFIAXZ (BREEME)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ (&)
EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (B) AZEZ=mHMAL (&)
(Continued)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: e T FIATEE :
Number of individuals
AE
2015 2014
—E—1f —ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Emolument bands M <& %6 [F]
Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z %2 1,000,0007% 7T - =
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ T &
2,000,000/ 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L&
2,500,000/% 7T - =
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,0018 T &
3,000,000/ 7T 1 1
3 3
No emoluments were paid to the directors or the AAFIRNEAMERES S O A&
five highest paid individuals as an inducement SHEMA TS - fEARSIE
to join or upon joining the Group, or as BASh PN E N BB K &£ B B 2 22 B sl Rl
compensation for loss of office during the year. BEE - FAN HEEEI LR
No directors or the five highest paid individuals A THES R ENEEAE -
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year.
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38 CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATIONS

Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated

38 REXBELEZR®

FREMNEBLEXKMELR S H R

from operations as follows: ™
2015 2014
“E-HF —T-0F
HK$’000 HK$' 000
F#&T FHET
Profit for the year F A5 A 170,014 80,909
Adjustments for: I
— Income tax expense —FEHAX 5,698 10,688
— Finance income —BERA (1,572) (4,049)
— Finance cost — BB KA 3,364 2,371
— Depreciation of property, plant and —ME - HE KR
equipment RIETE 25,295 14,068
— Amortisation of land use rights — i {sh R 8 1,218 1,258
— Amortisation of intangible assets — | & 5 5,154 5,154
— Gain on disposals of property, plantand —H &%  HBE MR E
equipment & (31) (439)
— Share based compensation expenses — B 15 SRR B =2 2,951 521
— Fair value loss on derivative financial —TEERMIAZ
instruments NEEEE 1,928 2,949
— Loss on disposals of financial assets at —H SR AFELZA
fair value through profit or loss BRWEEERE - 178
— Realised gain on redemption of —REE At E M
available-for-sale financial assets BE 2SR W= - (2,958)
— Share of loss of an associate — 15— Ak E R REE 640 742
— Provision for impairment of interest in =~ — R —REt & A 7 2w
an associate and amount due from T e g — Rl B 8 R |
an associate IR R E R 1,752 -
— Provision for impairment of loan — B EWRKIE
receivable VPRI L] 2,750 =
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries —HEMRBRRZ WS (149,427) -
— Write-back of provision for inventory —FERERERED
impairment (2,480) -
67,254 111,392
Changes in working capital: LiBEEEE:
— Inventories —FE (42,960) (15,126)
— Trade and other receivables —EKE SRR K
H i & Y R IE 5,202 (75,646)
— Amount due from a joint venture — Rl —EEERENIEA (404) -
— Trade and other payables —ERESERZKR
H th S 708 (19,124) 53,171
Cash generated from operations KEEBEE RS 9,968 73,791
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38 CASH GENERATED FROM

39

OPERATIONS (continued)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment comprise:

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

3 REXFBEEXEZRE (&)

HEYME BFEMRREZMEHIARE:

2015 2014

—E-If —E—mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Net book value (Note 6) BRMFE (KI5E6) 1,058 119

Gain on disposals of property, HEWE BEK

plant and equipment 2 W= 31 439
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE HMENREZ

plant and equipment Fr{S K18 1,089 558

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

As at 31 March 2015, the Company had provided
guarantees in respect of banking facilities of
its subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$610,195,000 (2014: HK$587,513,000).
The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries as at 31
March 2015 amounted to HK$100,788,000 (2014:
HK$85,528,000).

39

MBER

R-_E—RF=FR=+—H ' &AxRQA
MEKNBRARZETEERES &
#9610,195,000& 5t ( =T — PO F :
587,513,000 L) ZER - N =T —HF
Z—A=Z+—RH ZEWEBRFEHAE
B 58 4100,788,000/ 7T (— T — P04 :
85,528,000 7T, ) ©
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B RS R R A
40 COMMITMENTS 40 K
(I) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS () REEELEE
At 31 March 2015, the Group had future N—ZZE—HAF=A=+—0 &~&E
aggregate minimum lease payments in respect of REEYHERETAHELEHEL
rented premises under non-cancellable operating RREN 2 HEHSBEEOAT :

leases as follows:

Group
AEHE
2015 2014
—E-I1f —T—MmF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
F#& T FHT
Not later than one year —FK 779 3,401
Later than one year and not later FREIFERN
than five years 430 1,199
1,209 4,600
(1) CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (1) BARAEYE
At 31 March 2015, the Group had the following RZZE—RAF=A=+—H F5E
capital commitments: B RE|E AN A -
Group
AEE
2015 2014
—F-1F —T—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
Contracted but not provided for: BET4{B R B -
— Property, plant and equipment —M%E - WERZE 27,200 75,050
As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Group has RZE—RAFEER-_ZT—NHFE=H
no significant commitments authorized but not =+ —H AEEWESFEEBRET
contracted for. 2 BRAESE-
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41 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% to 10% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland
China, the Group contributes to state-sponsored
retirement plans for its employees in Mainland China.
The Group contributes approximately 7% to 12% of
the basic salaries of its employees, and has no further
obligations for the actual payment of pensions or post-
retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible
for the entire pension obligations payable to retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Macao,
the Group has arranged its Macao employees to
join the government provident fund scheme (the
“Macao Scheme”). The Group and its employees
makes monthly contributions of MOP30 and MOP15,
respectively, per month to each employee to the Macao
Scheme, and had no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the monthly contributions.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the aggregate
amount of the Group’'s contributions to the
aforementioned pension schemes were approximately
HK$6,569,000 (2014: HK$5,623,000).

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

41 EERIKEF

AEEEREBBEERF2ERHIER
EestEl ([aESstEl]) - mEestalT)
EBRBETREE ABILEEABTE -RE
mET A S AEREEERE D KRR
HERAERENE ARZt MR &5
REBWAZE%ZEL0% » — R
AEBRBEELE - FNKEE

REBIZ R B AFE R A FOER 2 3 TE -
REAETBEAE B8 RBEIREBRKET
ST - ANEEREEEEATEN/%E
12% M5 BRFREHERIN WEE R A
BRSHEREBHNZEMEE-BXE
BRAKFEIBEMRKNERENENZ 2
RS -

BRRFIZHRAERG REEEREH
RPIEB2NBUF AE S8 (DRFIF
gl -AEENEEEGANERERSD
Rl R P ET B4t FR30RPIHE K 158 T -

BREAHRZIN YEERMRASHR
K@Mz EMEE-

BHE-_ZTZ-—HAF=A=+—HItEE"
AEER EMRKESFTEIEL 2 #HK
45 #) 56,569,000 7T ( —ZF — Y 4F -
5,623,000/ 7T ) °
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42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 March 2015, 40.19% of the total issued
shares of the Company is owned by Superior View Inc.,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
and 16.09% of the total issued shares of the Company
is owned by Billion Linkage Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate
controlling parties of the Group are Dr. Ng Chi Ho, a
director of the Company, and Ms. Lee Wai Fun, wife of
Dr. Ng Chi Ho, respectively.

(A) TRANSACTION WITH RELATED PARTIES

In additional to amounts stated elsewhere, during
the year, the Group has the following related party
transactions:

42 FRAEALR 5

RZE-—AE=A=+—8 &X27E
BT AREE 240.19% h R FE R B R X
B SRR 32 2 2 B]Superior View Inc.
B MAREE BT ARRE 216.09% )
R 7E R 8 R 2 B B s K32 2 2 FlBillion
Linkage Limited# 5 - AL B &AIERA L
DRBARREERATBELRFRS
T(REFEBLZET) -

(A EBBEEALRS
BRABPTLM SR AEERFR
BETININEHAEALRS

2015 2014
—E-1F —E—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Sales of electronic products to a m—EREARZ
minority shareholder of a subsidiary D ERE R HEE T &M 14,465 15,028

In the opinion of the Directors, the above
transactions were carried out in the normal course
of the Group's business and conducted at terms
mutually agreed by the respective parties.

(B) KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

The aggregate remuneration of key personnel
management, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors and certain of the highest
paid employees, as disclosed in Note 37, is as

EERA MR FRAEEEHE
B A S 5 E AR E 2 R
70

(B) TEEIEEHRM
TEEHEEBABZHFHMARBEEREE
NARREZERETERSFHEEL
FOR (R EE37HE) - T

follows:

2015 2014
—E—TH —ZE—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET BT

Salaries and other short-term e hEME HEBRER
employee benefits 16,754 10,983
Post-employment benefits BE B 12 @ A 724 634
17,478 11,617
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42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Financial Statements
W SRR M 5

42 EHEAEANTXR 5 (&)

(Continued)
(C) YEAR-END BALANCES WITH RELATED (C) ERBRAEANT 2 FIREERR
PARTIES
2015 2014
—E—1F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT
Amount due from an associate e U — Bt = A B 3B
(Note 1) (FI5EL) - 267
Amounts due to minority BB AR 2 PERE
shareholders of subsidiaries I8 (KYEE2)
(Note 2) 3,315 2,835
Amounts due from minority AL EINCIPAA &
shareholders of subsidiaries I8 (KFsE2)
(Note 2) 71 941
Amounts due from a joint venture Ul —R& B F¥HKIE
(Note 3) (FF5E3) 404 =
Note 1: The terms of balances with related parties are MIeELl © BB RS AT 2 88 2 IR K

43 EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET

disclosed in Notes 12.

Note 2: The balances were unsecured, repayable on B 52 -

demand and interest free, and are included in
other payables and other receivables, respectively.

Note 3: The terms of balances with related parties are B FES

disclosed in Notes 13.

DATE

In June 2015, the Group entered into a shareholders’
agreement to invest for a 25% equity interests in
Concept Infinity Limited. The principal business of
Concept Infinity Limited is engaged in publishing digital
personalised story books. Total investment amount is

HK$5,000,000.

12 -

RHRSEER REREERR
B W0 BEH A B A FRIE K
th 8 W R IE

8 BB A £ 2 4 88 2 R B
HI3HE -

43 HEHKSER

R_TE—HFRXH KEEBHConcept
Infinity Limited 2 25% A # 1% & 5T 2 — 1A Bk
B 17 3% ° Concept Infinity Limitedz = &2 %
BAREHREECHEBHNEE-RER
%8 /45,000,0007% T ©
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Five Year Financial Summary (Unaudited)

AFEBEHE (K

ALY

L

#=ar)

For the Year ended 31 March 2015 #HZE=ZZ—HF=A=1+—HILtFE

A summary of the consolidated results and of the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out below:

ot
A
i)
25
[
Bl
=]
E
e
a
Xt
N
S
op
M
Mt
S
X
i
op

BEENBEMEHEIIMT

For the year ended 31 March

BE-AZ+-HLEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—T——f —T--F 2= —T-mE ZE-If
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAEL FAEL TAET FET
Consolidated results L
Revenue Wiz 1,191,058 1,241,997 1,107,488 1,244,828 1,341,924
Operating profit Sl 101,816 99,962 81,806 90,661 178,144
Profit before income tax BR FT15 A A 102,366 101,843 82,817 91,597 175,712
Income tax expense FTERHY (11,928) (8,757) (5,364) (10,688) (5,698)
Profit attributable to the owners of AR EIHA A
the Company e R T 90,438 93,252 77,841 81,487 170,406
As at 31 March
R=A=+-—H
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
T4 —T——F —T-=F keSS iif: S —E-1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FTAET FTAT AT TET
Consolidated assets and liabilities S&EER&E
Property, plant and equipment ER S 113,367 116,678 117,366 200,943 257,317
Investment property REME - - - = 10,100
Land use rights £ {5 4,225 4,159 60,798 58,973 55,528
Intangible assets BYEE - = 21,046 15,892 12,372
Goodwill EES 1,059 1,059 3,949 3,949 3,949
Interests in associates N YNCI = 1,733 1,868 1,702 -
Amount due from an assaciate [l — Fel B & 1 ]
W 267 267 267 -
Long-term loan receivables REESEKFE - 16,250 16,575 = -
Available-for-sale financial asset A/t HEHBEE 4,150 2,679 4,323 7547 13,358
Financial assets at fair value through & A FEZABZEZ
profit or oss — long term BREE-—RH 11,481 6,993 1,279 = -
Bonds investments -long term BEHFRE-RH 14,011 9,109 7,711 7,711 7,711
Deferred income tax assets BIEFEHREE 1,888 3,665 3,524 2811 762
Other non-current receivables HiIEmen el zIR - = 3,875 852 1,658
Current assets MEEE 487,590 504,869 513,543 540,816 586,673
Current liabilities RERE (200,039) (204,985) (174,534) (270,554) (289,702)
Net current assets REEEFE 287 551 299,884 339,009 270,262 296,971
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERTEHE B 437,732 462,476 581,590 570,909 659,726
Long term borrowings REEE (33,499) (22,463) (85,532) (47,731) (12,405)
Other non-current liabilities HwERBaRE - - (17,595) - -
Deferred income tax liabilities ERMEHARE (2,275) (2,807) (5,759) (4,649) (2,105)
Total equity e 401,958 437,206 472,704 518,529 645,216
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